
 

Democratic Services 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
10.00 am, THURSDAY, 28TH SEPTEMBER, 2017 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1SH 

 
 

 

 

 

Contact Point 

Bethan Adams 

01286 679020 

BethanAdams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru  

(DISTRIBUTED 22/09/17) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
mailto:BethanAdams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP (19) 
 
 

Plaid Cymru (10) 
 

Councillors 
 

Alan Jones Evans Aled Ll. Evans Aled Wyn Jones 
Charles Wyn Jones Huw Gruffydd Wyn Jones Berwyn Parry Jones 

Peter Read Paul John Rowlinson Cemlyn Rees Williams 
Gethin Glyn Williams   

 
 

Independent (6) 
 

Councillors 
 

Dylan Fernley John Brynmor Hughes 
Richard Medwyn Hughes Dewi Wyn Roberts 

John Pughe Roberts Angela Russell 

 
 

Llais Gwynedd (1) 
 

Councillor 
Aeron M. Jones 

 
 

Lib / Lab (1) 
 

Councillor 
Sion W. Jones 

 
 

Lay Member  
 

Mrs Sharon Warnes 
 
 

Ex-officio Members 
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council 

 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the Chairman 
so they may be considered. 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

  5 - 11 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee, held on 13 July 2017, be signed as a true record.  

 

 

5.   FINAL ACCOUNTS 2016/17 
 

12 - 180 

 To submit the statutory financial statements for 2016/17. 
 

a)  To submit the revised statutory financial statements by the Head of 
Finance for the Committee’s approval.  
 

b)(i)   To submit the formal “ISA 260” report to “those charged with 
governance” by external auditors Deloitte on behalf of the Auditor 
General for Wales on the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts for 
Gwynedd Council. 
 

b)(ii)  To authorise the Committee Chairman and the Head of Finance to 
sign the “letter of representation” on behalf of the Audit and 
Governance Committee, which is charged with governance in 
relation to approving the statutory financial statements for Gwynedd 
Council (Appendix 1 to the report of the external auditors Deloitte on 
behalf of the Auditor General for Wales in (b)(i) above) 
 

c)(i)  To submit the formal “ISA 260” report to “those charged with 
governance” by the external auditors Deloitte on behalf of the 
Auditor General for Wales on the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts for 
the Pension Fund.                                      

  
c)(ii)  To authorise the Committee Chairman and the Head of Finance to 

sign the “letter of representation” on behalf of the Audit and 
Governance Committee, which is charged with governance in 
relation to approving the statutory financial statements for the 
Pension Fund (Appendix 1 to the report of the external auditors 
Deloitte on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales in (c)(i) above) 

 
 
 

 



 

 
6.   2017/18 TREASURY MANAGEMENT - MID YEAR REVIEW 

 
181 - 191 

 To submit, for information, the report of the Head of Finance on the 
Council’s actual borrowing and investment during the current financial year. 

 

 

7.   REPORT OF THE CONTROLS IMPROVEMENT WORKING 
GROUP 
 

192 - 199 

 To submit the report of the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 
outlining the feedback from the meeting of the Working Group on 11 
September 2017. 

 

 

8.   INTERNAL AUDIT OUTPUT 1/7/17 - 15/9/17 
 

200 - 221 

 To submit the report of the Audit Manager. 

 
 

9.   INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 
 

222 - 227 

 To submit the report of the Audit Manager on the progress made on the 
2017/18 Internal Audit Plan. 

 

 

10.   NON-DOMESTIC RATES - DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 
 

228 - 233 

 To submit the report of the Senior Manager Revenues and Risk. 

 
 

 



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/7/17 
 

 
Present:    Councillor R. Medwyn Hughes (Chair) 
   Councillor John Brynmor Hughes (Vice-chair)  
   

Councillors: Stephen Churchman, Aled Ll. Evans, Huw G. Wyn Jones, Dewi Wyn Roberts, John 
Pughe Roberts, Paul Rowlinson, Angela Russell, Cemlyn Williams and Gethin Glyn Williams. 
 

Lay Member: Sharon Warnes 
 

Others invited:  Peredur Jenkins (Cabinet Member for Finance) 
 

Also in Attendance: Dafydd Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Ffion Madog Evans 
(Senior Finance Manager - for Item 7 on the agenda), Caren Rees Jones (Principal Accountant - 
for Item 7 on the agenda), Clare Edge (Financial Audit Manager, Deloitte - for Item 7 on the 
agenda), Caroline Lesley Roberts (Investment Manager - for Item 8 on the agenda), Luned Fôn 
Jones (Audit Manager), Paul Goodlad (Performance Audit Leader, Wales Audit Office) and 
Bethan Adams (Member Support Officer). 
 

Apologies: Councillors Dylan Fernley, Aled Wyn Jones, Berwyn Parry Jones, Charles Wyn 
Jones and Peter Read.  
 

1. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 
 

2. MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meetings of this committee held on 6 June 
and 22 June 2017, as a true record. 

 

3.     THE WALES AUDIT OFFICE – GWYNEDD COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2017 
 

The report was presented by the Financial Audit Manager (Deloitte) and the Performance 
Audit Leader (Wales Audit Office). 
 

Members were guided through the report, which detailed the WAO's audit arrangements for 
2017. The main audit risks and the work in relation to GwE’s grant income and expenditure 
were highlighted. Attention was drawn to the performance audits carried out at a national 
level, and those that were specific to Gwynedd.  

 

  Members were given an opportunity to ask questions, and the following responses were 
provided by the officers: 

 It was believed that the Council had received a repayment of a proportion of the 
WAO's 2015/16 performance audit work fee, and that a proportion of the fee for 
2016/17 would be returned; 

 The total fee for the financial and performance audits for 2017/18 was £417,987; 

 The improvement audit and assessment work involved examining the Council's 
actions on previous recommendations. A short-list of possible recommendations 
would be discussed, before selecting those most relevant to the Council; 

 In relation to the review from a service user perspective, there would be further 
progress on the work undertaken in the Local Government Study on addressing 
dependency and demand, and this project would test the interface for service users 
in each authority. It was noted that the selected groups would be ones which the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

Council had already engaged with, and they would be chosen in relation to specific 
interests and age ranges; 

 In future there might be an opportunity to examine the distribution of services in 
rural and urban areas. The review could include similar groups, such as 50+ 
groups, from across the County from the perspective of the service user. 
Agreement would be reached with the Council about the groups to be included. 

 
The Financial Audit Manager (Deloitte) noted that the Pension Fund's audit plan had been 
drafted, but had not yet been translated, and the plan would be distributed once it was 
available bilingually. The main financial audit risks to be considered as part of the audit were 
highlighted, namely the risk that managers would ignore regulations, the triennial valuation 
held last year and the investments valuation. It was noted that the fee for this specific audit 
would be approximately £34,000. 
 
The Head of Finance Department noted that the Pension Fund had been valued last year, 
and that Gwynedd's projections were among the most prudent on a Wales and British level, 
and that the Government's like-to-like comparisons had confirmed that there was no risk of 
over-stating the value of the Gwynedd Fund's assets. He drew attention to the increase in 
the audit fee for the GwE Joint Committee, and explained that the six councils had set their 
contributions for the year, and that GwE would have to fund the increase from within its 
budget. 
 
RESOLVED to accept the report. 

 
4.  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17 
 
 The Head of Finance Department set out the background and context of the report. 

Attention was drawn to the fact that unaudited draft accounts were being presented here for 
information, with the final version to be submitted for the Committee's approval at the 
meeting on 28 September 2017.  

 
 The Senior Finance Manager expanded upon their content and responded to members' 

general enquiries.  
 
 The Head of Finance Department explained that the £51 million movement in pensions was 

a movement on paper rather than a cash movement. He further explained that the discount 
rate had reduced from 3.5% to 2.6%. He explained interest rates were extremely low, and 
therefore as the true returns on bonds was low, the associated discount rate was also low. 
He noted that the discount rate was used to calculate the current value of the pensions to 
be paid out in future, and subsequently the value of the sum to be paid out appeared to be 
higher. He noted that regardless of the deficit, the Pension Fund's projections meant that 
the deficit would be recouped over 20 years by the employer. It was noted that it had been 
a good year for the Pension Fund; the assets had increased substantially by 22% in 
2016/17, and the value of the Fund as at 31 March 2017 was £1.8 billion. 

 
 A member noted that a table on page 51 of the agenda showed a substantial decrease in 

the capital receipts in 2016/17 compared to 2015/16. In response, the Head of Finance 
Department noted that the figure was based on how much property had been sold during 
the year. He emphasised that this signified the timing of the disposal of property, rather 
than less effective performance.  

 
 In response to an observation by a member about the reduction in the mortality 

assumptions in relation to the pension costs, the Head of Finance Department noted that 
the actuary had undertaken detailed research into the assumptions, and that the Council 
accepted the information. A member added that this was contrary to what was heard about 
individuals' life spans, and asked how frequently the assumptions were reviewed. In 

Page 6



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

response, the Head of Finance Department noted that the assumptions were reviewed as 
part of the triennial actuarial valuation. 

 

 A member enquired about the impact of changing the pension age to 67. The Head of 
Finance Department confirmed that the implications of the change to the pension age had 
been included in the plan and the relevant assumptions when estimating the value of the 
commitments.   

 

 RESOLVED to accept and note the 2016/17 Statement of the Council’s Accounts 
(subject to an audit). 

 

5.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2016/17 
 

 The background and context of the report was presented by the Investment Manager, in 
relation to the actual results of the Council's Treasury Management during 2016/17, 
compared with the strategy established for that financial year. Details were provided on the 
economic background, the borrowing requirements and debt management, investment 
activity and compliance with prudential indicators. 

 

The Head of Finance Department noted that a briefing meeting would be held for committee 
members on 24 January by Arlingclose, the Council's Treasury Management Consultants, 
to discuss and explain the Council's Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2018/19. 
He explained that the Committee, in its meeting on 8 February 2018, would make a 
recommendation to the Full Council in relation to the Council's Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement for 2018/19. A similar decision had been made in February/March 2016 
in relation to the 2016/17 strategy, which was the subject of this paper.   

 

 In response to a question from a member regarding interim borrowing, the Investment 
Manager noted that interim borrowing occurred only in exceptional circumstances for a 
bridging period before money was received, and that the loan would only be for a very short 
term. She further explained that it could occasionally be cheaper, due to low interest rates, 
to borrow money for a short period rather than using an overdraft.  

 
 A member asked whether it would be more prudent to use reserves than borrow money. In 

response, the Head of Finance Department noted that the Council "self-borrowed", rather 
than borrowing to serve assets, and that decisions about borrowing were closer to the daily 
cash flow situation. He explained that the situation in relation to the reserves was different, 
and that long term loans were avoided. 

 
 In response to an observation by a member on the first sentence on page 158 of the 

agenda in the context of the Council's Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), the Head of 
Finance Department noted that the sentence should note that the need to invest was 
increasing, and that borrowings were not sufficiently decreasing to address the CFR.  

 
 In response to queries about setting prudential indicators, the Head of Finance Department 

noted that organisations produced indicators which were particular to their circumstances, 
and that organisations had differing levels of expectations and restrictions. It was confirmed 
that the Council's indicators were in accordance with the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice on Treasury Management.   

 

 RESOLVED to accept the report for information. 
 

6. WALES AUDIT OFFICE REPORT - GOOD GOVERNANCE WHEN DETERMINING 
SIGNIFICANT SERVICE CHANGES 

 

The report was presented by the Performance Audit Leader (Wales Audit Office). He noted 
that the report, examining the situation in Gwynedd in relation to governance when 

Page 7



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

determining significant service changes, was generally positive. He explained that there 
had been a delay before the submission of the report to the committee due to the local and 
general election periods. He noted that a report on the national situation would be published 
before the autumn.  
 

He drew attention to the conclusion that "...Gwynedd Council’s governance arrangements 
for service change are sound and improving, better supporting effective decision-making.” 
He highlighted the proposal for improvement, in order to reinforce the Council's governance 
arrangements: "Scrutiny committees having the opportunity to review and challenge service 
change business cases in a timely manner before a final decision is made by Cabinet." He 
noted that the Council had already expanded the role of scrutiny members with two scrutiny 
members attending the Cabinet Members' performance challenge meetings.  
 

A member referred to the Scrutiny Review Sub-group and asked whether the Sub-group 
could consider the progress made in responding to the proposal for improvement. The 
Head of Finance Department noted that the Council was acting on the proposal for 
improvement and that he would confirm the situation regarding the Sub-group, and inform 
the member. 
 

In response to an observation by a member regarding monitoring good scrutiny, the 
Performance Audit Leader (Wales Audit Office) noted that CIPFA provided guidance, and 
that the Committee's remit and the Council's Constitution would be considered. It was 
further explained that how scrutiny was evidenced would be monitored, by examining 
Scrutiny Committee meetings to see the elements of challenging that took place, the 
evidence submitted and the decision. 

 

 RESOLVED to note and accept the report. 
 

7. REPORT FROM THE CONTROLS IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP 
 

 Submitted – the report of Councillor Angela Russell on a meeting of the above-mentioned 
working group held on 9 March 2017 to consider the audits that had received a category C 
opinion, namely - 

 a) Support Workers (Derwen) 
 b) Sales of Diesel 
 c) YGC Overtime 
 ch) Plas Gwilym  
  

 Officers had been invited to attend the meeting in order to discuss the matters that had 
arisen from the audits and the work undertaken since the audit reports were published in 
order to strengthen the internal regulations in question. It was noted that no officers had 
been present in the working group's meeting to discuss the 'Plas Gwilym' audit. It was 
explained that the Area Manager, North - Residential and Day-care, and Plas Gwilym's 
Manager were unable to attend the Working Group meeting as they were holding interviews 
that could not be re-arranged. It was noted that the officers had sent a written summary of 
the steps taken to reduce the risks that had been highlighted in the report, and that they 
received the Working Group's attention, in addition to the evidence received from Plas 
Gwilym's Manager. 

 

 In relation to the sales of diesel, a member asked whether it would be a good idea to 
change the payment method to be card-only, in order to reduce the risk. In response, the 
Audit Manager noted that customers paid with cash and that some were invoiced, that 
receiving card payments would improve cash flow but that this was a matter for the service. 
In response to a further observation, the Audit Manager noted that the follow-up review 
would examine the usage level of the new arrangements for card payments.  

 

 A member noted that she had raised a matter in the Local Joint Consultative Committee on 
7 July 2017 on the need for contact between the officers that were presenting the 

Page 8



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

information to the Joint Committee and the internal audit officers where matters of concern 
arose. In response, the Audit Manager said that she would welcome the opportunity to hold 
discussions with the officers if any matters of concern arose when preparing the Internal 
Audit Plan for the year. 

 

 Members expressed their concerns regarding staff turnover levels in residential homes and 
recruitment problems in the field of care. It was proposed and seconded to ask the Care 
Scrutiny Committee to consider the matter for scrutiny. 

 

 RESOLVED:  
(i) to accept the report; 
(ii) to ask the Care Scrutiny Committee to consider scrutinising the levels of staff 

turnover in residential homes and recruitment problems in the field of care. 
 

8. INTERNAL AUDIT OUTPUT 1/4/17 – 30/6/17 
 

  Submitted - the report of the Audit Manager outlining Internal Audit’s work for the period. It 
was noted that two reports on audits from the operational plan had been completed, two 
reports on audits from the 2016/17 Audit Plan and one grant audit.   

  

Each individual report was considered and, during the discussion, reference was made to 
the following matters – 
 

Workers' Awareness of the Whistle-blowing Policy 
 

In response to a member’s question, the Audit Manager explained that the questionnaire 
had been sent to all Council office workers. 
 

The lay member noted that consideration should be given to the whistle-blowing 
arrangements being administered by an external company.  

 

The lay member asked about the whistle-blowing arrangements in schools and for 
volunteers. In response, the Audit Manager noted that there was an individual policy for 
each school and that there would be a separate audit. She noted that the Education 
Department had a central policy that schools could amend for their use, and that there were 
arrangements for reviewing the central policy. In relation to volunteers, they were expected 
to be aware of the policy and they could be included if an audit was held on field workers' 
awareness of the policy.   

 

In response to a question from the lay member on the Whistle-blowing Contact Card as part 
of the induction pack, the Audit Manager explained that the number of individuals who had 
received the card had decreased since the previous audit and that it was a matter for the 
Corporate Support Department to consider in relation to the promotion of the policy. It was 
noted that the number of whistle-blowing cases was very low, which could either be a 
positive or a negative reflection.  

 

Hafan's Direct Debits 
 

In response to a member's observation about the fact that the audit had not received an 
opinion category, the Audit Manager noted that this was because a review of Hafan's 
management was due to be carried out. She drew attention to the fact that the service had 
committed to acting on the review of business contingency arrangements to mitigate the 
risks that had been highlighted during the audit. 

 

RESOLVED: 
(i) to accept the report on the work of Internal Audit for the period from 1 April 2017 

to 30 June 2017 and to support the agreed actions that had already been 
submitted to the managers of the relevant services; 

Page 9



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

(ii) that the members appointed to serve on the Controls Improvement Working 
Group at the meeting of the Committee on 6 June to also consider the audits that 
have received a category ‘C’ opinion in this period;  

(iii) that it was the responsibility of any member unable to attend the Working Group 
to arrange a substitute. 

 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 
 

The report of the Audit Manager was submitted, providing an update on the current 
situation in terms of completing the 2017/18 internal audit plan. 

 

 It was reported that up to 30 June 2017 the Internal Audit Unit had completed 3.33% of the 
plan, and that 2 of the 60 audits in the 2017/18 plan had been released in a finalised 
version. It was explained that one reason for the lower performance than the quarterly 
target was due to staff recruitment difficulties. The staffing level throughout the quarter had 
reduced by a level that corresponded to two full-time auditors. It was added that two new 
staff members had started during April and had been receiving their necessary training 
during this period. It was noted that there were steps in place to resolve the situation and 
that specific audits had been designated to the auditors. 

 
 In response to an enquiry by a member regarding the reasons for the recruitment 

difficulties, the Audit Manager noted that one of the reasons was the Senior Auditor salary 
scale, with nearby councils designating a higher salary for the post. She added that she 
was of the view that the salary did not reflect the duties and responsibilities of the post. 

 
 The lay member noted that the Senior Auditor's salary scale should be reviewed. She 

added that the staffing levels to deliver the internal auditing work was a cause for concern 
in other councils in the area, with some councils purchasing staff hours from other councils.   

 
 Members expressed their concerns in relation to the risk of not delivering the internal 

auditing work in accordance with the 2017/18 plan, and the need to review the Senior 
Auditor's salary scale. In response, the Head of Finance Department noted that he would 
arrange an assessment to examine whether the salary scale was fit for purpose, and would 
ask the Audit Manager to review the job description, and ask the Corporate Support 
Department to re-evaluate the salary scale. 

   
RESOLVED to accept and note the contents of the report as an update of progress 
against the 2017/18 audit plan. 

 

10. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
 

The Head of Internal Audit presented the Internal Audit Charter to the Committee, which 
had been produced in accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 2013 (amended April 2017). Members were guided through the Charter, and 
their attention was drawn to the purpose of the Internal Audit Service: 
 

"To give confidence to the citizen and the Council on the Council’s control environment and 
governance arrangements through independent and objective reporting to the Head of 
Finance and the Audit and Governance Committee." 

 

 She explained that, the Audit and Governance Committee was referred to as the "Board" 
and "Audit Committee" in the document and that she as the Audit Manager acted as the 
"Chief Audit Executive" in accordance with the terminology in the Standards. 
 
She highlighted that one of the major changes in the Charter was that the Audit Manager 
reported directly to the Senior Revenue and Risk Manager, who was accountable to the 
Head of Finance Department. The change reflected the working arrangements. 

Page 10



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13/07/17 

She drew attention to the fact that Internal Audit, after an appropriate period, would conduct 
follow-up testing to ensure that what was agreed with the Services was acted upon, 
regardless of the audit’s opinion category. This reflected the move towards encouraging 
managers' ownership of the agreed steps. 
 
The Head of Finance Department noted that the move towards encouraging managers' and 
officers' ownership of the steps had been welcomed and praised by himself and the Chief 
Executive. 
 
A member noted that the Charter was clear and commendable. The member asked how the 
Audit Manager would report if it was considered that there was a lack of resources to 
complete the work. In response, the Audit Manager noted that any lack of resources would 
be highlighted in the progress reports submitted to the Committee. She added that if action 
was required, she would hold discussions with the Senior Revenue and Risk Manager and 
the Head of Finance Department.  
 
The lay Member referred to paragraph 10.1 under the heading 'Internal Audit Resource 
Requirements', and the need to strengthen the paragraph. In response, the Audit Manager 
noted that she would add a clause stating that in the event of insufficient resources the 
matter would be referred to the Committee. 
 
A member noted that he appreciated the process of discussing and agreeing upon actions 
with managers to encourage their ownership of the solutions. 

 
 RESOLVED to approve the Internal Audit Charter. 
 
11. INTERNAL AUDIT QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
 

The Head of Internal Audit presented the report, and noted that the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, and associated CIPFA Local Government Application Note, required the 
Audit Manager (the "chief audit executive" in the Standard's terminology) to develop and 
maintain a quality assurance and improvement programme to encompass all aspects of 
internal audit activities.   
 
She noted that she had conducted an internal self-assessment and had discussed the 
outcomes with the Senior Revenue and Risk Manager, and had agreed upon the actions to 
be included in the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme where there were 
instances of partial compliance or non-compliance with the Standards. Attention was drawn 
to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme included as an appendix to the 
report.  
 
It was explained that the external assessment of Gwynedd Council's Internal Audit Service 
had been planned to be conducted in autumn 2017 by Carmarthenshire County Council's 
chief audit executive and that the results of the external assessment would be submitted to 
the Committee. The Audit Manager informed the Committee that she would be undertaking 
Denbighshire County Council's external assessment in spring 2018. 

 
RESOLVED to approve the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme. 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.05am and concluded at 12.30pm. 
 
 
 

________________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 11



MEETING Audit and Governance Committee 
 

DATE 28 September 2017 
 

TITLE Final Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 
relevant Audit 
 

PURPOSE 
 

To submit – 

 Statement of Accounts post-Audit; 

 Deloitte’s ‘ISA260’ reports; 

 Letters of Representation (Appendix 1). 
 

RECOMMENDATION To consider and approve the information before 
authorising the Chairman to certify the letters. 
 

AUTHOR Dafydd L Edwards, Head of Finance 
 

 

1. ACCOUNTS FOR 2016/17 
Members will recall that the Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 (pre-audit) were 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee on 13 July 2017, when it was 
scrutinised accordingly. 

 
2. AUDIT BY DELOITTE ON BEHALF OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES 
 It was noted in the July meeting that these accounts would be subject to audit by 

Deloitte, and the ‘ISA 260’ reports are presented here by the Auditor General for 
Wales detailing Deloitte’s main findings. 

 
3. POST-AUDIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2016/17 
 The final version (post-audit) of the Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 is also 

presented here.  The main amendments since the pre-audit version have been 
outlined in Appendix 3 to Deloitte’s ‘ISA260’ report. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 The Audit and Governance Committee is asked to consider and approve the – 

 ‘ISA260’ report by Deloitte in respect of: 

 Gwynedd Council 

 Gwynedd Pension Fund 

 Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 (post-audit) 
 
5. LETTERS OF REPRESENTATION   

The Chairman of the meeting, together with the Head of Finance, are asked to 
certify the Letters of Representation (Appendix 1 to Deloitte’s reports) after the 
Audit and Governance Committee has approved the above.   

 
6. CERTIFICATION BY THE APPOINTED AUDITOR 
 After receiving the Letters of Representation duly certified by the Chairman and 

the Head of Finance, the Auditor General for Wales (Huw Vaughan Thomas) will 
issue the certificate on the accounts.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



 
Gwynedd Council 

 
 

STATEMENT OF 
ACCOUNTS 
2016/17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance Department 
www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

 

Page 13



1

INDEX

Page

Narrative Report 2 - 6

Statement of Responsibilities 7

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 8

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 9

Movement in Reserves Statement 10

Balance Sheet 11

Cash Flow Statement 12

Notes to the Accounts 13 – 76

Gwynedd Pension Fund Accounts and Notes 77 – 106

Auditors Report

Appendix A – The Welsh Church Fund

107 – 108

109

Appendix B – FMG Morgan Trust Fund

Appendix C – Annual Governance Statement

110

111 –127

Page 14



2

NARRATIVE REPORT

Introduction

Gwynedd Council's accounts for the year 2016/17 are presented here on pages 8 to 106.

The Accounts consist of:-

• Expenditure and Funding Analysis – Whilst this is not a statutory statement, it shows how annual
expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, council tax and business rates) by local
authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices.

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This is the Council’s main revenue account.
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting
cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

• Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement in year on the different
reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ and ‘unusable reserves’. The taxation
position is reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

• The Balance Sheet - Sets out the financial position of the Council on 31 March 2017.

• The Cash Flow Statement - This statement summarises the flow of cash to and from the Council
during 2016/17 for revenue and capital purposes.

• The Gwynedd Pension Fund Accounts and Balance Sheet.

• The Welsh Church Fund and FMG Morgan Trust Fund Accounts.

These accounts are supported by this Narrative Report, the Accounting Policies and various notes to the accounts.

Page 15



3

Revenue Expenditure

Financial Strategy

The annual budget is established within the context of the medium-term financial strategy, in order to ensure that
the budget is prepared for the future position, rather than addressing the requirements of one year only. This
medium-term planning has proven to be very beneficial to the Council, enabling it to plan necessary savings
rationally, without having to take rushed/inappropriate decisions in terms of the benefits to our citizens, and
establishing a regime to identify budgetary savings and cuts.

Financial Performance 2016/17

• The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on page 9 shows that the Council’s gross revenue
expenditure on ‘Cost of Services’ level was £348m during 2016/17, with the net position as £227m.

• Despite the sustained need to achieve challenging savings, the final financial position of the Council’s
departments for 2016/17 confirms that there was effective financial management. The financial out-turn
position for 2016/17 was reported to the Cabinet at its meeting on 6 June 2017. The members of the
Cabinet approved the carry-forward of the net services underspend of £469k for the year.

• The favourable financial performance in 2016/17 enabled the Council to earmark £700k towards the essential
financing package for the 2017/18 financial strategy, whilst also increasing the unearmarked general fund
balance by £1.4m.

• The 2016/17 financial position was taken into consideration in the process of establishing the 2017/18 budget.

TABLE 1 – Budget and Actual Comparison Summary (Net)

Table 1 provides a budgetary performance comparison at a summary level, and which is detailed further in Table 2.

Budget Actual Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Net Expenditure on Operations 241,043 239,728 (1,315)

Departmental Carry-forward at year-end 0 469 469

241,043 240,197 (846)

Financed by -

Council Tax Income (74,093) (74,640) (547)

Share of National Non-Domestic Rate (37,158) (37,158) 0

General Government Grants (129,792) (129,792) 0

Contribution to the General Fund Balance 0 1,393 1,393

0 0 0

• The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves Statement on pages
9 and 10 detail the analysis in movements for the year.

Page 16



4

TABLE 2 – Transposition movement between ‘Budget and Actual Comparison Summary
(Net)’ (Table 1) to the Income and Expenditure format reflecting Departmental
Management Structure.

Department P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

R
e
p

o
rt

(O
u

tt
u

rn
)

T
ra

n
sp

o
si

ti
o

n
A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

t

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le
to

th
e

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

b
e
tw

e
e
n

F
u

n
d

in
g

a
n

d
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
B

a
si

s

In
c
o

m
e

&
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education 81,620 533 82,153 0 82,153

Corporate Support 7,838 77 7,915 0 7,915

Finance 5,660 85 5,745 0 5,745

Economy and Community 6,641 (87) 6,554 0 6,554

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 44,560 (8) 44,552 0 44,552

Children and Family Support 13,187 (15) 13,172 0 13,172

Highways and Municipal (including Trunk Roads) 20,709 (1,427) 19,282 1,681 20,963

Environment 5,960 (55) 5,905 0 5,905

Corporate Management Team and Legal 1,991 (76) 1,915 0 1,915

Gwynedd Consultancy 222 2 224 0 224

Corporate 35,334 (19,628) 15,706 21,865 37,571

Cost of Services 223,722 (20,599) 203,123 23,546 226,669

Other (Contains Centralised and Corporate
Adjustment)

16,475 20,599 37,074 (23,546) 13,528

Total 240,197 0 240,197 0 240,197

Transposition Adjustment - Adjustments in the transposition column relate to the net contribution to and from reserves.

• Material Items of Income and Expenditure

Related items include:-
• £51m on pensions, being the remeasurements of the net defined benefit assets relating to pensions,

in line with Gwynedd Pension Fund’s Actuary’s assessment (Note 23).
• Following a revaluation of part of the Council’s land and buildings portfolio (which is now carried out

on a rolling programme basis), a net surplus of £7m on the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment assets (Note 15 & 23).

• Other Issues

• There have been unprecedented problems in the worldwide financial situation in recent years.
Because of this general situation, it has been necessary for the Authority to take the circumstances
into consideration in its financial plans, whilst maintaining a prudent level of reserves.

• Since the referendum on the UK’s membership of the European Union, there has been a degree of
economic uncertainty. This is expected to last for some time and may affect some factors and
financial decisions made by the Authority in 2016/17 and into the medium term.

Page 17



5

Capital Expenditure in 2016/17

Capital expenditure for 2016/17 amounted to £29.3m. The following table gives an analysis of this expenditure and
the way it was financed.

SUMMARY OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

12,354 Education 15,033

8,495 Environment 5,053

348 Corporate Support 70

494 Finance 609

5,147 Economy and Community 1,951

3,894 Adults, Health and Wellbeing 2,802

103 Children and Family Support 58

4,508 Highways and Municipal 2,558

191 Gwynedd Consultancy 1,175

35,534 29,309

FINANCED BY -

6,029 Borrowing 11,106

17,635 Grants and Contributions 11,460

1,622 Capital Receipts 770

10,248 Revenue and Other Funds 5,973

35,534 29,309

• Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute of £5.0m is included in the above table. This has
been charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Total expenditure on Non-current
Assets and Assets Held for Sale was £24.3m as shown in Note 15 and 20 on pages 38 to 40 and page 50.

• The Council’s Loan Debt on 31 March 2017 was £111.5m – a decrease of £1.9m (from £113.4m) during the
year. Repayments of £2.06m were made in accordance with the terms of individual loans.

Provisions and Reserves

In addition to the unmarked element of General Balances of £6.9m, the Council had other provisions of £8.1m,
earmarked reserves of £43.6m and school balances of £2.9m. In total, these amounted to £61.5m. These are detailed
in the Balance Sheet, Movement in Reserves Statement and in Note 10 and 22.

Pension Fund

The Council (as an employer) has a net liability from its share of the assets and liabilities of the Gwynedd Pension
Fund, which has been calculated in accordance with International Accounting Standard 19. The Balance Sheet
contains an assessment by the Fund’s Actuary, Hymans, of the Council’s share of the Pension Fund liability. This net
liability has increased by £57m to £235m in 2016/17. Refer to Note 38 for further information.

The net pension liability is a position at one point in time. Market prices can move substantially up or down in the
short term and it is therefore not possible to quantify the long-term effect such movements in market prices will
have on the Pension Fund.

Page 18



6

Gwynedd Pension Fund

The Gwynedd Pension Fund Accounts (pages 77 to 106) show an increase during the year of £339m in the market
value of the net assets of the Fund, to £1,864m. The book value of the net assets at 31 March 2017 was £1,170m
(2016: £1,127.6m).

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted by the Council comply with all relevant recommended accounting practices and are
fully explained in the Accounting Policies set out in Note 1 to the Accounts on page 13.

Changes in Accounting Policies and to the Statement of Accounts

There were no changes to accounting policies during the 2016/17 financial year.

Impact of changes to Accounting Standards

Following the “Telling the Story” review of the presentation of local authority financial statements and in line with
the accounting standards IAS 1, the 2016/17 code changed the segmental reporting arrangements for the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and introduced the Expenditure and Funding Analysis with
relevant notes. The presentation of the Movement in Reserves Statement has also been amended. Both the CIES and
EFA reflect the Council’s reporting and monitoring structure. The 2015/16 statements have been restated for
comparison with the 2016/17 figures, but there is no impact on the Balance Sheet information.

Impact of changes to Accounting Standards in the future

There is a change to the treatment of Pensions that will affect the accounts from 2016/17 onwards. Refer to Note 4
for further information.

Further Information

The Statement of Accounts is available on Gwynedd Council’s website www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru.

Further information relating to the accounts is available from:

Ffion Madog Evans
Senior Finance Manager
01286 679133

or

Caren Rees Jones
Principal Accountant
01286 679134

Finance Department
Gwynedd Council
Council Offices
Caernarfon
Gwynedd
LL55 1SH

This is part of the Council's policy of providing full information relating to the Council's affairs. In addition,
interested members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit is completed. The
availability of the accounts for inspection is advertised in the local press at the appropriate time.

Page 19



Page 20



8

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources
(government grants, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources
consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how
this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s departments. Income and
expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2015/16 2016/17

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le
to

th
e

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

A
d

ju
st

m
e
n

ts
b

e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

F
u

n
d

in
g

a
n

d
A

c
co

u
n

ti
n

g
B

a
si

s
(s

ee
N

o
te

8
)

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

in
th

e
C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

si
v
e

In
co

m
e

a
n

d
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

C
h

a
rg

e
a
b

le
to

th
e

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

A
d

ju
st

m
e
n

ts
b

e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

F
u

n
d

in
g

a
n

d
A

c
co

u
n

ti
n

g
B

a
si

s
(s

ee
N

o
te

8
)

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

in
th

e
C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n

si
v
e

In
co

m
e

a
n

d
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

82,394 0 82,394 Education 82,153 0 82,153

7,236 0 7,236 Corporate Support 7,915 0 7,915

5,782 0 5,782 Finance 5,745 0 5,745

7,459 0 7,459 Economy and Community 6,554 0 6,554

44,553 0 44,553 Adults, Health and Wellbeing 44,552 0 44,552

13,183 0 13,183 Children and Family Support 13,172 0 13,172

19,036 1,754 20,790 Highways and Municipal (including Trunk Roads*) 19,282 1,681 20,963

5,789 0 5,789 Environment 5,905 0 5,905

2,026 0 2,026 Corporate Management Team and Legal 1,915 0 1,915

(121) 0 (121) Gwynedd Consultancy 224 0 224

13,798 18,456 32,254 Corporate 15,706 21,865 37,571

201,135 20,210 221,345 Cost of Services 203,123 23,546 226,669

20,098 8,944 29,042 Other Operating Expenditure 20,466 694 21,160

23,732 (9,689) 14,043 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 19,563 (7,253) 12,310

(241,476) (13,970) (255,446) Taxation and non-specific grant income (241,598) (9,288) (250,886)

3,489 5,495 8,984 (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 1,554 7,699 9,253

(58,422) Opening General Fund Balance (54,933)

3,489 (Surplus)/Deficit on General Fund in Year 1,554

(54,933) Closing General Fund Balance (53,379)

* Trunk Roads - Adjustments relating to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

Page 21



9

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2015/16 2016/17

G
ro

ss
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

ss
In

c
o

m
e

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
o

te

G
ro

ss
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

ss
In

c
o

m
e

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

101,435 (19,041) 82,394 Education 100,797 (18,644) 82,153

9,833 (2,597) 7,236 Corporate Support 10,587 (2,672) 7,915

8,068 (2,286) 5,782 Finance 8,026 (2,281) 5,745

17,514 (10,055) 7,459 Economy and Community 15,158 (8,604) 6,554

68,038 (23,485) 44,553 Adults, Health and Wellbeing 69,566 (25,014) 44,552

16,577 (3,394) 13,183 Children and Family Support 16,679 (3,507) 13,172

35,357 (14,567) 20,790
Highways and Municipal (including Trunk
Roads*)

36,453 (15,490) 20,963

14,778 (8,989) 5,789 Environment 15,260 (9,355) 5,905

2,501 (475) 2,026 Corporate Management Team and Legal 2,657 (742) 1,915

2,122 (2,243) (121) Gwynedd Consultancy 2,520 (2,296) 224

65,029 (32,775) 32,254 Corporate 70,482 (32,911) 37,571

341,252 (119,907) 221,345 Cost of Services 348,185 (121,516) 226,669

29,286 (244) 29,042 Other Operating Expenditure 11 21,200 (40) 21,160

14,551 (508) 14,043
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure

12 12,623 (313) 12,310

0 (255,446) (255,446) Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income 13 0 (250,886) (250,886)

385,089 (376,105) 8,984
(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of
Services

382,008 (372,755) 9,253

(6,095)
(Surplus) / Deficit on revaluation of Fixed
Assets

23.1 (7,282)

(57)
(Surplus) / Deficit on revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets

23.2 159

(80,568)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)

23.6 51,322

(86,720)
Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

44,199

(77,736)
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

53,452

* Trunk Roads - Adjustments relating to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency

Page 22



10

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different
reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or
reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the
Authority’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for
the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in the year
following those adjustments.

Additional Information Statement of Movement in Reserves

N
o

d
yn

U
ne

ar
m

ar
ke

d
G

en
er

al
Fu

nd
B
al

an
ce

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

G
en

er
al

Fu
nd

R
es

er
ve

s

T
ot

al
R
es

er
ve

s
he

ld
by

Sc
ho

ol
s

G
en

er
al

Fu
nd

B
al

an
ce

C
ap

it
al

R
ec

ei
p
ts

R
es

er
ve

C
ap

it
al

G
ra

n
ts

U
na

pp
lie

d

T
o

ta
l
U

sa
b

le
R

e
se

rv
e
s

U
n

u
sa

b
le

R
e
se

rv
e
s

T
o

ta
l
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
R

e
se

rv
e
s

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance 31 March 2015 carried
forward

(6,350) (48,576) (3,496) (58,422) (2,728) (2,577) (63,727) 11,734 (51,993)

Movement in reserves during 2015/16

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

8,984 0 0 8,984 0 0 8,984 (86,720) (77,736)

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations

9 (5,495) 0 0 (5,495) 693 1,484 (3,318) 3,318 0

(Increase)/Decrease in 2015/16 3,489 0 0 3,489 693 1,484 5,666 (83,402) (77,736)

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 10 (2,656) 2,497 159 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in 2015/16 (showing
transfers to Earmarked Reserves)

833 2,497 159 3,489 693 1,484 5,666 (83,402) (77,736)

Balance 31 March 2016 carried
forward

(5,517) (46,079) (3,337) (54,933) (2,035) (1,093) (58,061) (71,668) (129,729)

Movement in reserves during 2016/17

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

9,253 0 0 9,253 0 0 9,253 44,199 53,452

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations

9 (7,699) 0 0 (7,699) (862) 61 (8,500) 8,500 0

(Increase)/Decrease in 2016/17 1,554 0 0 1,554 (862) 61 753 52,699 53,452

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 10 (2,947) 2,489 458 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in 2016/17 (showing
transfers to Earmarked Reserves)

(1,393) 2,489 458 1,554 (862) 61 753 52,699 53,452

Balance 31 March 2017 carried
forward

(6,910) (43,590) (2,879) (53,379) (2,897) (1,032) (57,308) (18,969) (76,277)

Page 23



11

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that
the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use to
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

31 March
2016 Note

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000

424,305 Property, Plant and Equipment 15 433,687

60 Heritage Assets 60

247 Investment Property 16 197

2,517 Surplus Assets 15 2,039

2,341 Long-Term Investments 17 2,171

4,301 Long-Term Debtors 17 4,094

433,771 Long-Term Assets 442,248

50,055 Short-Term Investments 17 26,044

459 Assets Held for Sale 20 148

1,321 Inventories 1,286

32,539 Short-Term Debtors 18 54,889

14,191 Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 1,384

98,565 Current Assets 83,751

(39,430) Bank Overdraft 19 (30,035)

(2,757) Short-Term Borrowing 17 (3,335)

(54,687) Short-Term Creditors 21 (56,972)

(465) Short-Term Provisions 22 (357)

(2,364) Capital and Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance 32 (2,196)

(99,703) Current Liabilities (92,895)

0 Long-Term Creditors 17 0

(8,221) Long-Term Provisions 22 (7,776)

(110,676) Long-Term Borrowing 17 (108,143)

(178,332) Net Pension Liability 38 (235,413)

(2,127) Finance Leases Liability 35 (1,993)

(3,548) Capital and Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance 32 (3,502)

(302,904) Long-Term Liabilities (356,827)

129,729 Net Assets 76,277

(58,061) Usable Reserves (57,308)

(71,668) Unusable Reserves 23 (18,969)

(129,729) Total Reserves (76,277)

Page 24



12

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash
flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is
a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing Activities represent the extent to
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

2015/16 Note 2016/17

£'000 £'000

8,984 Net (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 9,253

(32,570) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-
cash movements

24a (13,099)

942 Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities

24b 1,603

(22,644) Net cash flows from Operating Activities (2,243)

46,268 Investing Activities 25 3,574

(1,302) Financing Activities 26 2,081

22,322 Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3,412

2,917 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 19 25,239

25,239 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 19 28,651

Page 25



13

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial year and its position at
the year-end of 31 March 2017. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the
Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014, in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices
primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and the Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory
guidance issued in the 2014 Act.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

In relation to a policy regarding capitalisation of expenditure, our practice is to operate on the basis of the nature of
expenditure rather than a prescribed level of expenditure.

1.2 Accruals of Expenditure and Income
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Authority.

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and
expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or
creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Where the Authority has short-term investments readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value, these are classified as cash equivalents and included in Cash and Cash
Equivalents on the Balance Sheet. The investments included in this definition are short-term deposits with financial
institutions which are immediately available at the Balance Sheet date.

1.4 Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

1.5 Corporate
The Corporate heading includes items relating to the Democratic Representation and Management and Corporate
Management. The Democratic Representation and Management include corporate policy-making and member

Page 26



14

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

activities while the Corporate Management includes costs that relate to the general running of the Authority.

1.6 Employee Benefits
1.6.1 Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such
benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost
of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the
year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

1.6.2 Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept redundancy voluntarily and are
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Corporate Services line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Authority can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits or when the Authority recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the Council Fund
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

1.6.3 Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Authority are members of two separate pension schemes:

• The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by the Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Westminster
Government’s Department for Education

• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the Gwynedd Pension Fund at Gwynedd Council.

Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees
when they worked for the Authority.

However, the arrangements for the teachers' scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot be identified to
the Authority. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contributions scheme and no liability for
future payment of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Children’s and Education Services line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the employer’s contributions payable to The
Teachers’ Pension Scheme in the year.

1.6.4 The Local Government Pension Scheme
All other staff, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are entitled to become members of the Local Government
Pension Scheme. The pension costs charged to the Authority’s accounts in respect of this group of employees are
determined by the fund administrators and represents a fixed proportion of employees’ contributions to this funded
pension scheme.

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme.

The liabilities of the Gwynedd Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in
relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions such as mortality rates,
employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.6% calculated as a weighted
average of ‘spot yields’ on AA rated corporate bonds.

Page 27



15

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The assets of the Gwynedd Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair
value as determined by the Fund's actuary.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

Service cost comprising:

• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – allocated in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked.

• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years
of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Corporate costs.

• Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset), i.e. the net interest expense for the Authority – the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) that arises from the passage of time
charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset) at the beginning of the
period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments.

Remeasurements comprising:

• The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided
with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their
assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• Contributions paid to the Gwynedd Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the Pension
Fund in settlement of liabilities not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Council Fund balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the Pension Fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that
there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the
beneficial impact to the Council Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows
rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 governs how the long-term liabilities which exist in relation to pension
costs should be reported. Local councils in England and Wales are required to produce their financial statements in
accordance with IAS19.

1.6.5 Discretionary Benefits
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including teachers) are
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to
the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Page 28



16

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.7 Events After the Reporting Period
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end
of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events
can be identified:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement of

Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not

adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made
in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

1.8 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the
change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides
more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless
stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy
had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period.

1.9 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another. Thus the term financial instrument covers both financial assets and financial liabilities.

In accordance with the requirements the Council’s financial assets and liabilities have been reviewed in order to
categorise them and determine their treatment. The financial instruments identified as a result of this review were:

Financial liabilities
• Trade payables and other payables (creditors).
• Long-term borrowings including deferred premiums and discounts on early settlement of such loans.

The Council values its financial liabilities at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is calculated using the effective interest rate.
As the Council’s long-term borrowing is all at fixed rates the interest charged is the amount accrued in the year.

Gains or losses arising on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are treated as extinguishment of the
financial liability unless strict conditions are met when the transaction may be treated as a modification of the
existing loan terms and any gain or loss adjusts the carrying amount of the loan debt received.

Financial assets
• cash
• bank accounts
• fixed term deposits with banks and building societies
• loans to other local authorities
• trade receivables for goods and services delivered

Financial assets are classified into two categories:
• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market

Page 29



17

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable
payments including Covered Bonds

The majority of the Council’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and as such are valued at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and
interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in
the loan agreement.

The Council’s investments in Covered Bonds are valued using the discounted cash flow analysis method to provide
the fair value for the Balance Sheet.

Where the Authority has short-term investments readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value, these are classified as cash equivalents and included in Cash and Cash
Equivalents on the Balance Sheet. The investments included in this definition are short-term deposits with financial
institutions which are immediately available at the Balance Sheet date.

Short duration Payables and Receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at original invoice amount. This
includes all trade payables and trade receivables.

The Local Authorities (Capital Financing and Accounting) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2007 allow the effect of
the restatement of financial instruments to be adjusted through the Movement in Reserves Statement and the
resulting adjustments are shown in the Financial Instrument Adjustment Account and the Available-for-sale Financial
Instruments Reserve on the Balance Sheet. The adjustment allowed by statute means that the net effect on the
Council’s balances is equivalent to the transfer under this policy.

1.10 Government Grants and Other Contributions
Grants and contributions relating to capital and revenue expenditure are accounted for on an accruals basis, and
recognised immediately in the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
income, except to the extent that the grant or contribution has a condition that the Authority has not satisfied.

Grants and contributions funding capital expenditure that has been credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are not proper income charges due to the capital control regime requirements to finance
capital expenditure as part of the Capital Financing Requirement. Therefore, the Authority accounts for these
amounts as follows:

• Where a capital grant or contribution has been received, and conditions remain outstanding at the Balance Sheet
date, the grant is recognised as a Capital Grant Receipt in Advance on the Balance Sheet. Once the condition has
been met, the grant or contribution is transferred to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

• Where a capital grant or contribution has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, and the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has been incurred at
the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution is transferred from the General Fund to the Capital
Adjustment Account, reflecting the application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

1.11 Heritage Assets
Heritage assets are tangible assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental
qualities that are held by the Authority principally for their contribution to knowledge or culture. The Council has
identified the following categories of heritage assets:

• Pictures and Paintings
• Civic Regalia
• Library Collections/Archives
• Museums and Art Gallery Collections
• Historic Buildings and Scheduled Monuments
• Parks and Local Nature Reserves

Page 30



18

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Council used an external valuer (Bonhams) to provide estimated valuations of its civic regalia and paintings and
pictures. For consistency, the Council has applied the same de-minimis levels for valuation purposes to Heritage
Assets as its other long-term assets – see policy 1.17.

The Council considers that heritage assets held by the Council will have indeterminate life and high residual value;
hence, the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation for the assets. Heritage assets recognised
in the accounts will be assessed annually for any impairment – see policy 1.17.

1.12 Inventories and Long-Term Contracts
Stocks and work in progress should be shown in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value, in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Practice. Due to the practicalities of the Council’s main stock
systems, the majority of stock is shown in the accounts at average cost. The difference from the basis of valuation is
not material.

1.13 Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is
not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for
sale. These properties are valued on a fair value basis. Values are based on specific techniques, and the inputs to
these measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with three levels. All the Authority’s inputs are level 3
(unobservable inputs for the asset). This is due to the level of adjustment required to all evidence due to the
uniqueness of the assets, and the dearth of relevant market transactions.

1.14 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the property, plant or equipment to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Authority as Lessee:
Amounts held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the commencement of the lease, at fair value (or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments), with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the
lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between a finance charge (charged directly to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) and a charge applied to
write down the lease liability. The related asset is treated in accordance with the policies applied generally to such
assets and is subject to depreciation charges as appropriate.

Operating lease payments are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of
the relevant service on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Authority as Lessor:
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as
a disposal, to be included in the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Rental income from property granted under an operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, and the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet.

1.15 Surplus Assets
The Authority classifies Surplus Assets separately on the Balance Sheet. These assets are shown at their fair value
based on market value. Values are based on specific techniques, and the inputs to these measurement techniques are
categorised in accordance with three levels. All the Authority’s inputs are level 3 (unobservable inputs for the
asset). This is due to the level of adjustment required to all evidence due to the uniqueness of the assets, and the
dearth of relevant market transactions.

1.16 Overheads and Support Services
Some overheads and support services costs are apportioned to the appropriate services in accordance with the
Council’s arrangements, with budget monitoring under corporate control. But some costs are not apportioned at all,

Page 31



19

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

and are reported under the corporate heading. The information is required for total costing purposes but it is not
reflected in the Statements as this is not the Management Structure.

1.17 Long-Term Assets
The Council’s assets as recorded on the Property Services database are revalued at least every five years. Since the
2015/16 financial year, the Authority has established a rolling programme for re-valuing different categories of these
assets annually. This is in accordance with the Code and the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance
Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Land and Buildings are shown at fair value or Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) for specialised properties.

Investment Properties are shown at fair value.

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment are shown at depreciated historical cost.

Infrastructure and community assets are shown at depreciated historical cost.

Assets in the course of construction are included at historical cost until such time as they are completed, when they
are valued in accordance with the accounting policies and transferred to the appropriate category of asset.

A de-minimis limit for valuation purposes of £20,000 is used for the Council’s operational Land and Buildings and
£5,000 for single items of Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment.

Expenditure in year on new and existing assets is added annually, and then consideration is given as to whether this
expenditure has increased the value of the asset. If there has been an increase, this is reflected through the
Revaluation Reserve; if there is no increase it follows that there has been an impairment to the value of the asset
(see below for the method for accounting for impairment). Specifically for assets categorised as Land and Buildings,
and Community Assets where expenditure in year of over £100,000 has been incurred on a single asset, the
Council’s Corporate Property Manager (M.R.I.C.S.) reviews the assets and re-values any one as appropriate.

Impairment and Depreciation

Impairment
An impairment is the consumption of economic benefit that is specific to an asset. In line with International
Accounting Standard 36 the Council reviews its assets each year in order to recognise any impairment or reduction
in value due to the consumption of economic benefits. In addition, the residual values and useful lives of assets are
reviewed annually and adjusted where appropriate.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Depreciation
The main element of IAS 16 is that buildings must be depreciated if they are not valued each year. In addition, each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item
shall be depreciated separately. A de-minimis threshold, below which assets are disregarded for componentisation
purposes, needs to be established, which is based on potential material impacts on the financial statements. (For the
2016/17 financial year this has been set at £2.04m which is 1% of the total value of the buildings). The apportionment
to be considered for the non-land element of assets above the de-minimis threshold is:
a) plant and equipment and engineering services, and
b) structure

Page 32



20

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The majority of the Council’s buildings (over 75%) are valued using the DRC (Depreciated Replacement Cost)
method, which is developed on a component approach, and the identification of the components is reflected in the
details of the calculations. However, identified within the above are buildings which include material items of plant
and equipment which are deemed to have shorter useful lives e.g. boilers and heating equipment within swimming-
pools and leisure centres. These components are recognised by adjusting the useful life of the building to take
account of the shorter life components.

For the remaining buildings, based on a review of the nature and type of buildings which the Council owns, these are
deemed to have no significant items of plant and equipment or engineering services that need to be componentised
separately.

Depreciation is generally charged on the Balance Sheet value of assets to write them off as follows:
(i) Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful life (3–15 years)
(ii) Infrastructure is depreciated over 40 years
(iii) Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute is written down in the period in which it arises
(iv) Land is not depreciated
(v) Buildings are depreciated over their estimated remaining useful life (5–80 years)
(vi) Investment Properties, Assets under Construction and Assets Held for Sale are not depreciated

Depreciation is not charged in the year of acquisition.

Minimum Revenue Provision
The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/588
(W.59)) place a duty on local authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption. Guidance on Minimum
Revenue Provision has been issued by the Welsh Ministers and local authorities are required to “have regard” to
such Guidance under section 21(1B) of the Local Government Act 2003.

The four MRP options available are:
- Option 1: Regulatory Method
- Option 2: CFR Method
- Option 3: Asset Life Method
- Option 4: Depreciation Method
NB This does not preclude other prudent methods.

MRP in 2016/17: Options 1 and 2 may be used only for supported (i.e. financing costs deemed to be supported
through Revenue Support Grant from Central Government) Non-HRA capital expenditure funded from borrowing.
Methods of making prudent provision for unsupported Non-HRA capital expenditure include Options 3 and 4
(which may also be used for supported Non-HRA capital expenditure if the Council chooses).

The MRP Statement was submitted to Council before the start of the 2016/17 financial year. If it is ever proposed to
vary the terms of the original MRP Statement during the year, a revised statement should be put to Council at that
time.

The Council applied Option 1 in respect of supported capital expenditure funded from borrowing, and Option 3 in
respect of unsupported capital expenditure funded from borrowing.

MRP in respect of leases and Private Finance Initiative schemes brought on Balance Sheet under the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) based Accounting Code of Practice matches the annual principal repayment for
the associated deferred liability.

The Authority will be reviewing this policy annually in light of the Asset Management Plan.

In accordance with the Code of Practice, revenue financing of capital expenditure on Council Fund Services is
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Page 33



21

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.18 Non-Distributed Costs
The items that are excluded from the service items’ total costing are defined as Non-Distributed Costs and include
the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on assets
held for sale. They are shown in the Corporate row of the CIES.

1.19 Provisions
The Council sets aside provisions for specific obligations which are likely or certain to be incurred but the amount of
which cannot yet be determined accurately. Provisions are also made for doubtful debts. Known uncollectable debts
are written off against the relevant service. The Council classifies these provisions as long-term or short-term
liabilities as appropriate according to the nature of each provision.

1.20 Reserves (and Balances)
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1992, the Council maintains a –
• General Fund which represents the general reserves (“balances”) of the Authority, namely a working balance to

help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and as a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events
or emergencies.

• Number of capital and revenue Specific Reserves earmarked for specific purposes, namely, money accumulated
to meet anticipated commitments. The Council undertakes a continuous review of the adequacy and use of
specific reserves.

The Council takes a risk-based approach to maintaining an adequate level of balances and reserves to meet future
spending needs. When considering the annual budget and medium-term financial strategy, the Council will set out its
intention regarding the level of general balances and reserves, in the context of all relevant risks. Refer to the
approval of the full policy in respect of reserves by the Council Cabinet on 23 June 2015.

• Certain reserves, namely “unusable reserves”, are kept for the technical purpose of managing the accounting
processes for non-current assets, financial instruments and employee benefits. These do not represent the
usable resources of the Authority.

1.21 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute
Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding purposes when it does not result in the
expenditure being carried on the Balance Sheet as an asset. The purpose of this is to enable it to be funded from
capital resources rather than be charged to the General Fund and impact on that year’s Council Tax. This type of
expenditure is valued at historical cost and written down over a year.

1.22 Value Added Tax
Only in a situation when VAT is irrecoverable will VAT be included or charged as ‘irrecoverable VAT’ in capital and
revenue expenditure.

1.23 Debtors and Creditors
The Council's Accounts are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice.
The accounts reflect actual expenditure and income relating to the year in question irrespective of whether the
payments or receipts have actually been paid or received in the year.

An exception to this principle relates to electricity and similar quarterly payments which are charged at the date of
meter reading rather than being apportioned between financial years, and certain annual payments such as insurance.
This policy is consistently applied each year and therefore does not have a material effect on the year's accounts.

1.24 Allocation of Interest Received
The Authority invests surplus funds for periods varying from overnight to 13 months (with the exception of
Covered Bonds) and the interest is credited to the General Fund, Gwynedd Pension Fund, Welsh Church Fund and
other trust funds based on the level of their daily balances and the rate of interest earned.

Page 34



22

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.25 Borrowing Costs
The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset as permitted by the Code.

Interest payable on external loans is included in the accounts in the period to which it relates on a basis which
reflects the overall economic effect of the borrowings.

1.26 Interest in Companies and Other Entities
In the Authority’s accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are recorded as financial assets at cost, less
any provision for losses.

1.27 Current Assets Held for Sale
In order for an asset to be recognised as Held for Sale, the asset must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition, the sale must be highly probable, the asset must be actively marketed and the sale completed within one
year from the date of classification. The asset is recognised at fair value (market value) less costs to sell on
reclassification. Values are based on specific techniques, and the inputs to these measurement techniques are
categorised in accordance with three levels. All the Authority’s inputs are level 3 (unobservable inputs for the
asset). This is due to the level of adjustment required to all evidence due to the uniqueness of the assets, and the
dearth of relevant market transactions.

1.28 Disposal of Assets
When an asset is disposed of, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is written off to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at
the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account.

1.29 Capital Receipts
When the Authority sells an asset, legislation prescribes the use of the proceeds received.

All capital receipts that belong to the Council’s Fund are 100% usable and it is no longer necessary to set aside a
percentage of the receipt. The receipts are held in the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve until such time as they are
used to finance capital expenditure.

1.30 Accounting for the Costs of the Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme
The Authority is subject to the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme. Authorities
participating in the scheme are required to purchase and surrender allowances, currently retrospectively, on the
basis of emissions i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is used.

1.31 Cost Relating to Equal Pay Claims
A reserve is contained within the Authority’s Accounts in respect of the cost of Equal Pay Claims and reflects the
best estimate of potential cost as at 31 March 2017.

1.32 Landfill Allowances Scheme
The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Wales) Regulations 2004. Local
Authorities are allocated annual allowances for the maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be
sent to landfill. For each ton of biodegradable municipal waste sent to landfill in excess of the allowance a Local
Authority may be liable to a penalty of £200 per ton. It is not a “cap and trade” scheme since landfill allowances are
not tradable in Wales. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance Sheet.
Gwynedd Council was within its landfill allowance in 2016/17.

1.33 Service Concession Arrangements
Service Concession Arrangements, otherwise known as Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes, are agreements to
receive services, where the responsibility for making available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide
the services passes to the PFI contractor for the duration of the contract but where the assets transfer to the
Authority at the end of the period without any additional cost. The Authority controls the service that is provided

Page 35



23

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

and is able to control who else is able to use the facility. The cost of using the facility is agreed with the Company
before setting the agreement through a Competitive Dialogue process.

1.34 Joint Operations
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangements. The activities undertaken by the Authority in
conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of assets and resources of those joint operators. In relation
to its interest in a joint operation, the Authority as a joint operator recognises its share of assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses.

1.35 Schools
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom confirms that the balance of control for local
authority maintained schools (i.e. those categories of school identified in the School Standards and Framework Act
1998, as amended) lies with the local authority. The Code also stipulates that those schools’ assets, liabilities,
reserves and cash flows are recognised in the local authority financial statements (and not the Group Accounts).
Therefore schools’ transactions, cash flows and balances are recognised in each of the financial statements of the
Authority as if they were the transactions, cash flows and balances of the Authority.

1.36 Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates
Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates income for the year is treated as accrued income, and is included
within the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Gwynedd Council is a Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates billing authority. It collects Council Tax on behalf of
itself and other authorities, and collects Non-Domestic Rates as an agent on behalf of Welsh Government.

1.37 Fair Value
The Authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment properties and some
of its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Authority takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the Authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Authority can
access at the measurement date

• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly

• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Page 36



24

NOTE 1 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.38 Other Policies
Gwynedd Council has policies in respect of the following, but they are not considered material for the 2016/17
financial year:
- Intangible Assets
- Contingent Assets
- Foreign Currency Conversion.

NOTE 2 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

There were no changes to accounting policies during the 2016/17 financial year.

NOTE 3 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

There are no prior period adjustments during 2016/17.

NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT
YET BEEN ADOPTED

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom requires the expected impact of
any accounting standards that have been issued but not yet adopted to be disclosed.

The related accounting standards in the 2017/18 Code of Practice affect statements within the Pension accounts.

The Code requires implementation from 1 April 2017 and there is therefore no impact on the 2016/17 Statement of
Accounts, and none of the new or amended standards within the 2017/18 Code are expected to have a material
impact on the information provided in the financial statements. However, CIPFA has determined that there will be a
change in the presentation of the Narrative Report so that the content adheres to specific principles.

NOTE 5 – CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Authority has had to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions relating to complex transactions, those involving uncertainty about future events and also the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The judgements, estimates and associated assumptions applied are based on current proper practices, historical
experience, and other factors that include historical and current assumptions and projections, and actual future
projections, professional assessments, current trends, and local factors that are considered to be relevant.

In recent years there has been some uncertainty about future levels of funding from Welsh Government relating to
revenue and capital grants. This issue forms an important part of the Council’s continually revised financial strategy,
and where all known and forecasted factors are given due consideration.

All available and related information is sourced and applied in assessing and determining the position, which is
particularly critical when considering such matters as the revaluation, depreciation and impairment of assets,
actuarial valuation of pension fund assets and liabilities, earmarked reserves, provisions and contingent liability.
However, because these issues cannot be determined with certainty, actual results may subsequently differ from
those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.

Page 37



25

NOTE 6 – ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Authority about
the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current
trends and other relevant factors. However, because certain balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be different from the assumptions and estimates.

The following items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 may be considered to be a significant risk (in
terms of certainty in estimation of value), with the possibility of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year:

• Property, Plant and Equipment – Assets are depreciated over their useful life in accordance with
standard accounting and associated practices. Any difference between the depreciation applied and actual
deterioration to assets will be naturally reflected in future spending patterns. The current economic climate
brings with it uncertainties for councils in their ability to sustain the necessary spending on repair and
maintenance. This obviously would have implications on asset life. Land and buildings are revalued at least
every five years, and since 2015/16 a rolling programme of revaluation has been introduced. A number of
judgements are required to be made as part of the revaluation and impairment assessment process. This
brings with it uncertainties, and assumptions have to be made and responded to accordingly. Where
necessary, any resultant long-term implications would be incorporated into our financial strategy.
Information relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is contained in Note 15.

• Provisions – Various separate provisions, the basis of which have been individually assessed from the latest
information available, are contained within these accounts as detailed in Note 22, and include provisions for
items such as Waste Sites and certain insurance liability aspects. We are unable to confirm the accuracy of
the provisions until such matters are concluded.

• Pension Liability – The Pension Liability position as contained within the accounts is based on a number of
complex assessments and judgements and varying profiles such as discount rate used, projected salary levels,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets, as provided by
Actuaries engaged by the Pension Fund. Further details are contained in Note 37 and 38.

• Doubtful Debts Impairment – A specific impairment level policy in respect of doubtful debts is contained
within the accounts. The impairment level is reviewed regularly in order to respond to any changes in the
economic climate, and necessary action taken as appropriate within the accounts to respond accordingly.
Doubtful Debts impairments are contained within the figures for Short-Term Debtors contained in Note 18.

NOTE 7 – MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE

Material items of income and expense include the following:-
• £51m on pensions, being the remeasurements of the net defined benefit assets relating to pensions, in line

with Gwynedd Pension Fund’s Actuary’s assessment (Note 23).
• Following a revaluation of part of the Council’s land and buildings portfolio (which is now carried out on a

rolling programme basis), a net surplus of £7m on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment assets
(Note 15 and 23).

Page 38



26

NOTE 8 – NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

2016/17
ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN

FUNDING AND ACCOUNTING
BASIS

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
amounts A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
C

a
p

it
a
l
P

u
rp

o
se

s
(i

)

N
e
t

c
h

a
n

g
e

fo
r

th
e

P
e
n

si
o

n
s

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

(i
i)

O
th

e
r

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

(i
ii
)

T
o

ta
l

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education 0 0 0 0

Corporate Support 0 0 0 0

Finance 0 0 0 0

Economy and Community 0 0 0 0

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0 0 0 0

Children and Family Support 0 0 0 0

Highways and Municipal (including Trunk Roads*) 1,681 0 0 1,681

Environment 0 0 0 0

Corporate Management Team and Legal 0 0 0 0

Gwynedd Consultancy 0 0 0 0

Corporate 21,842 (484) 507 21,865

Cost of Services 23,523 (484) 507 23,546

Other Operating Expenditure 694 0 0 694

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (13,428) 6,243 (68) (7,253)

Taxation and non-specific grant income (9,288) 0 0 (9,288)

(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 1,501 5,759 439 7,699

* Trunk Roads - Adjustments relating to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency

Page 39



27

NOTE 8 – NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS (continued)

2015/16
ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN

FUNDING AND ACCOUNTING
BASIS

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
amounts A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
C

a
p

it
a
l
P

u
rp

o
se

s
(i

)

N
e
t

c
h

a
n

g
e

fo
r

th
e

P
e
n

si
o

n
s

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

(i
i)

O
th

e
r

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s

(i
ii
)

T
o

ta
l

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education 0 0 0 0

Corporate Support 0 0 0 0

Finance 0 0 0 0

Economy and Community 0 0 0 0

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0 0 0 0

Children and Family Support 0 0 0 0

Highways and Municipal (including Trunk Roads*) 1,754 0 0 1,754

Environment 0 0 0 0

Corporate Management Team and Legal 0 0 0 0

Gwynedd Consultancy 0 0 0 0

Corporate 16,688 2,163 (395) 18,456

Cost of Services 18,442 2,163 (395) 20,210

Other Operating Expenditure 8,944 0 0 8,944

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (17,622) 8,016 (83) (9,689)

Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income (13,970) 0 0 (13,970)

(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (4,206) 10,179 (478) 5,495

* Trunk Roads - Adjustments relating to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency

(i) Adjustments for Capital Purposes

• For services, this column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and losses.

• Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of

assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

• Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing

i.e. revenue provision for the financing of capital investment and other revenue contributions are

deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted

accounting practices.

• Taxation and non-specific grant income – capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable

under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the

year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year.

The Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year

without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Page 40



28

NOTE 8 – NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS (continued)

(ii) Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension
related expenditure and income:
• For Services, this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the

authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.
• For Financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the defined

benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

(iii) Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:
• For Services, this represents an adjustment for accumulated absences earned but not taken during

the year.

• For Financing and investment income and expenditure, the other differences column

recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.

Page 41



29

NOTE 9 – ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS
UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by
the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by
statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Usable Reserves

2016-17

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS
AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
R

e
se

rv
e

C
a
p

it
a
l
G

ra
n

ts
U

n
a
p

p
li
e
d

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t
in

U
n

u
sa

b
le

R
e
se

rv
e
s

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance
with statutory requirements

Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) (5,759) 0 0 5,759

Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustments
Account)

75 0 0 (75)

Holiday pay (transferred to (or from) the Accumulated Absences Reserve) (543) 0 0 543

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital
Adjustment Account)

(14,929) 0 0 14,929

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (21,156) 0 0 21,156

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

29 (1,632) 0 1,603

Revenue provision for the financing of supported capital investment 5,593 0 0 (5,593)

Revenue provision for the financing of unsupported capital investment 1,863 0 0 (1,863)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital
Adjustment Account)

5,972 0 0 (5,972)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 13,457 (1,632) 0 (11,825)

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 0 770 0 (770)

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 0 0 61 (61)

Cash payments in relation to deferred capital receipts 0 0 0 0

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 770 61 (831)

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS (7,699) (862) 61 8,500

Page 42



30

Usable Reserves

2015-16

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS
AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
R

e
se

rv
e

C
a
p

it
a
l
G

ra
n

ts
U

n
a
p

p
li
e
d

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t
in

U
n

u
sa

b
le

R
e
se

rv
e
s

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance
with statutory requirements

Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) (10,179) 0 0 10,179

Financial instruments (transferred to (or from) the Financial Instruments
Adjustments Account)

49 0 0 (49)

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 428 0 0 (428)

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital
Adjustment Account)

(13,402) 0 0 13,402

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (23,104) 0 0 23,104

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(14) (927) 0 941

Revenue provision for the financing of supported capital investment 5,641 0 0 (5,641)

Revenue provision for the financing of unsupported capital investment 1,734 0 0 (1,734)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital
Adjustment Account)

10,248 0 0 (10,248)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 17,609 (927) 0 (16,682)

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure 0 1,622 0 (1,622)

Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 0 0 1,484 (1,484)

Cash payments in relation to deferred capital receipts 0 (2) 0 2

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 1,620 1,484 (3,104)

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS (5,495) 693 1,484 3,318

Page 43



31

NOTE 10 – TRANSFERS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES

School Balances
This sum is represented by the element of balances released under the delegation of budgets directly to schools
which remained unspent at the end of the financial year, and is a net reduction of £458k as compared to the balance
on 31 March 2016:

2016/17 Balance Transfers Balance

31 March
2016

between
reserves in out

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

School Balances 3,337 0 735 (1,193) 2,879

Total 3,337 0 735 (1,193) 2,879

Page 44



32

NOTE 10 – TRANSFERS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES (continued)

Earmarked Reserves
The note below sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide financing
for future expenditure plans, and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund
expenditure in 2016/17, with a net reduction of £2.5m since the 31 March 2016 position.

2016-17 Balance Transfers Balance

31
March

between
reserves in out

31
March

Note 2016 2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

10.1 Renewals Reserves 2,477 0 2,395 (2,079) 2,793

10.2 Capital Reserve 9,458 0 1,120 (757) 9,821

10.3 Insurance Reserve 2,035 0 800 (1,026) 1,809

10.4 Services Fund 4,750 (572) 762 (563) 4,377

10.5 Convergence Programme Fund 211 0 0 (78) 133

10.6 Redundancy Costs to Realise Savings Reserve 3,870 0 300 (369) 3,801

10.7 Central Training 255 10 35 0 300

10.8 Education Service Reserves 994 0 255 (324) 925

10.9 Economy and Community Reserves 67 134 246 (29) 418

10.10 Highways and Municipal Reserves 1,275 0 22 (295) 1,002

10.11 Waste Developments Reserves 278 0 0 (84) 194

10.12 Gwynedd Consultancy Reserves 361 (176) 0 0 185

10.13 Environment Reserves 810 35 11 (336) 520

10.14 Major Maintenance Work on County Roads Fund 420 0 0 (420) 0

10.15 Care Reserves 167 (18) 1,355 (43) 1,461

10.16 Ffordd Gwynedd Fund 334 0 42 0 376

10.17 Invest to Save Fund - Carbon Reduction Plan 484 (28) 62 (209) 309

10.18 Transformation / Invest to Save Fund 9,768 14 749 (1,988) 8,543

10.19 Committed Revenue Grants Fund 303 41 187 (45) 486

10.20 Contracts Tendering Fund 367 (150) 0 0 217

10.21 Housing Water and Sewerage Services Fund 606 0 0 (114) 492

10.22 Housing Environmental Warranty 480 0 0 0 480

10.23 Information Technology Reserve 365 0 173 (162) 376

10.24 Preparatory Work for European Grant Funding Schemes 150 0 0 (75) 75

10.25 Supporting the Financial Strategy Reserve 2,780 998 760 (2,778) 1,760

10.26 Welfare Fund 742 (200) 0 (320) 222

10.27 Electronic Document and Records Management System Fund 76 0 0 (75) 1

10.28 Partnering Arrangements 338 0 230 (46) 522

10.29 Liabilities Related to the Pension Fund 240 0 394 0 634

10.30 Council Tax Property Transfer Reserve 490 0 0 0 490

10.31 Bridges Inspection and Assessment Reserve 150 (35) 0 (115) 0

10.32 Various Other Reserves 978 (53) 218 (275) 868

Total 46,079 0 10,116 (12,605) 43,590

Earmarked reserves closing balance as at 31 March 2017 does not reflect the level of commitments against them.
Details are given below of the Council’s main specific reserves.

Page 45



33

NOTE 10 – TRANSFERS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES (continued)

10.1 The Renewals Reserves are used by the various departments of the Council to replace vehicles and
equipment.

10.2 The Capital Reserve represents resources already committed to finance part of the Council’s Capital
Programme.

10.3 Gwynedd Council does not insure all risks with external insurers but instead it has established an internal
reserve to meet those uninsured risks. The balance on the Insurance Reserve also includes an element
relating to the relevant insurance requirements of the former Gwynedd County Council (pre 1996) and
which is administered by Gwynedd Council.

10.4 The Services Fund represents the element of slippages and underspend that service departments have the
right to carry forward for use in the subsequent financial year, other relevant specific budgets and one-off
budgets that extend over more than one year.

10.5 Convergence Programme Fund - fund was created for additional capital or revenue costs which arise from
the requirements to develop plans under the convergence programme.

10.6 Redundancy Costs to Realise Savings Reserve – provision for financing redundancy costs to realise budgetary
savings.

10.7 Central Training – relates to the Council’s staff training programme.

10.8 Education Service Reserves – includes sums set aside to respond to related financial problems with
‘Integration’ requirements, changeable demands in ‘Out of County – Special Educational Needs’, ‘Supporting
Schools’ and the ‘Schools Loans Scheme’.

10.9 The Economy and Community Reserves include a number of balances relating to schemes operating on a
partnership basis, mainly where the scheme balances must be accounted for separately.

10.10 The Highways and Municipal Reserves include mostly sums set aside to protect situations of uneven income
and expenditure (equalisation accounts) and likely requirements from contracts.

10.11 The Waste Development Reserve is for relevant commitments and developments in the waste field including
our commitment to the North Wales Residual Waste Partnership.

10.12 Gwynedd Consultancy Reserves – includes amounts set aside to protect against situations of uneven
expenditure on some works field and possible additional employment requirements resulting from changes in
the Consultancy Service’s work programme.

10.13 Environment Reserves – include a number of balances relating to schemes operating mainly on a partnership
basis, and where the scheme balances must be accounted for separately, together with specific requirements
relating to the Local Development Plan, and amounts for uneven expenditure situation.

10.14 Major Maintenance Work on County Roads Fund – to support the cost of large maintenance work on
county roads.

10.15 Care Reserves – includes amounts set aside to protect against possible situations of uneven expenditure due
to contract requirements.

10.16 Ffordd Gwynedd Fund – to aid the business transformation process, realise savings and assist the Council to
achieve “Ffordd Gwynedd” aims and objectives.

Page 46



34

NOTE 10 – TRANSFERS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES (continued)

10.17 Invest to Save Fund – Carbon Reduction Plan – partly funding the Carbon Reduction Plan programme of
works to reduce carbon emissions whilst generating monetary revenue savings for the Council.

10.18 Transformation / Invest to Save Fund – in order to transform the Council’s internal procedures to be more
effective and efficient, and to invest in various schemes to realise permanent financial savings.

10.19 Committed Revenue Grants Fund – includes revenue grants received and committed for future use.

10.20 Contracts Tendering Fund – in response to uneven spending situations as a result of the tendering process
for transport.

10.21 Housing Water and Sewerage Services Fund – amounts reserved for requirements relating to sewerage
procedures, water piping and sewage treatment work on old council housing estates, which were not
adopted by Welsh Water.

10.22 Housing Environmental Warranty – reserved for possible implications as a result of giving environmental
warranties to Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd, in connection with specific and special circumstances that
relate to environmental plans on the land of old council housing estates.

10.23 Information Technology Reserve – for responding to the demands in the information technology field,
including a renewals fund, and to respond to uneven patterns of expenditure.

10.24 Preparatory Work for European Grant Funding Schemes – provision towards the cost of preparing business
cases to attract European funding sources and grants.

10.25 Supporting the Financial Strategy Reserve – a fund established to assist and support the Council’s financial
strategy.

10.26 Welfare Fund - provision to respond to uneven patterns in the related requirements.

10.27 Electronic Document and Records Management System (EDRMS) - provision for the work programme
related to the documents and records management system.

10.28 Partnership Arrangements – includes amounts allocated in relation to various requirements of partnerships
and joint working.

10.29 Liabilities Related to the Pension Fund – for various future requirements and commitments.

10.30 Council Tax Property Transfer Reserve – provision relating to the implications of properties transferring
from Council Tax to National Domestic Rates.

10.31 Bridges Inspection and Assessment Reserve – develop an arrangement for the inspection and assessment of
the condition of our bridges, culverts and some retaining walls.

10.32 Various Other Reserves – includes amounts set aside to meet a variety of other commitments.

Page 47



35

NOTE 11 – OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

1,677 Community Council’s Precepts 1,829

Levies

11,733 North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 11,990

5,603 North Wales Fire Authority 5,598

1,016 Snowdonia National Park Authority 962

68 Local Drainage Boards 87

18,420 18,637

8,945
(Gains)/losses on the disposal and de-recognition of non-
current assets 694

29,042 Total 21,160

NOTE 12 – FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

6,400 Interest payable and similar charges 6,380

8,013 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 6,243

(370) Interest receivable and similar income (313)

14,043 Total 12,310

NOTE 13 – TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

2015/16 Note 2016/17

£'000 £'000

(71,880) Council Tax Income 13a (74,640)

(35,646) Non-Domestic Rates 13b (37,158)

(133,950) Non-ring-fenced Government Grants 32 (129,800)

(13,970) Capital Grants and Contributions 32 (9,288)

(255,446) Total (250,886)

Page 48



36

NOTE 13a - COUNCIL TAX

The Council determines its expenditure requirement for the year and converts it to a Band D Council Tax by
dividing this sum by a calculation of the number of properties in each Council Tax band converted into the
equivalent number of properties in Band D (The Council Tax Base). The North Wales Police and Crime
Commissioner’s requirement is then added to this amount to establish the County's Council Tax.

The Council Tax Base for 2016/17 was calculated as follows:-

CALCULATION OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2016/17

Valuation
Bands

Number of
Properties

following
discounts

Statutory
Multiplier

Equivalent Band D
Properties

A* 8 5/9 4.17

A 7,347 6/9 4,898.05

B 13,287 7/9 10,334.08

C 10,587 8/9 9,410.92

D 9,188 1 9,187.82

E 7,340 11/9 8,970.63

F 3,622 13/9 5,231.06

G 1,163 15/9 1,938.33

H 164 18/9 328.00

I 56 21/9 130.08

Total 50,433.14

Council Tax base after allowing for losses on collection 49,928.81

An analysis of the net income accruing to the Council is given below:-

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

(72,323) Council Tax raised (74,750)

443 Less Increase in the provision for bad debts 110

(71,880) (74,640)

NOTE 13b - NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES

National Non-Domestic Rates (“Business Rates”) are managed by the Government but local authorities are
responsible for their collection and for paying them to a central pool run by the Welsh Government. They
subsequently allocate amounts from the pool to Local Authorities, on a population basis.

Page 49



37

NOTE 13b - NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (continued)

The Government sets the National Non-Domestic rate for the year (48.6p in 2016/17) which is then multiplied by
the rateable value of the property. Subject to the effects of transitional arrangements and some other reductions,
this is the amount payable by the ratepayer.

At the end of the 2016/17 financial year there were 7,593 properties on the local valuation list in Gwynedd,
representing a rateable value of £101,816,158.

An analysis of the net income accruing to the Council from National Non-Domestic Rates is as follows:-

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

(37,136) National Non-Domestic Rate raised (37,789)

375 Cost of Collection allowance 381

289 Provision for Bad Debts 331

36,472 Sum paid to the National Pool 37,077

0 0

(35,646) Receipts from the National Pool (37,158)

(35,646) Net Income from Non-Domestic Rates (37,158)

NOTE 14 – BUILDING CONTROL INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

This account shows the expenditure and income which relate to the building regulations checking and supervision
function, including consideration of any enforcement action but not the service of notices under the provisions of
the Building Act 1984.

The account is expected to break-even over a three-year rolling period, and this requirement is reviewed annually.
There was a surplus in 2016/17 and it can be seen that there is an accumulated surplus over the three-year period.

2016/17 £'000

Total charges income received (excluding VAT) (450)

Total expenditure incurred 430

(Surplus)/Deficit for 2016/17 (20)

(Surplus)/Deficit for 2015/16 (2)

(Surplus)/Deficit for 2014/15 (2)

(Surplus)/Deficit for the last three years (24)

Page 50



38

NOTE 15 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements on Property, Plant and Equipment Balances

Movements in 2016/17:

L
a
n

d
a
n

d
B

u
il
d

in
g
s

In
fr

a
st

ru
c
tu

re

V
e
h

ic
le

s,
P

la
n

t
a
n

d
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

A
ss

e
ts

S
u

rp
lu

s
A

ss
e
ts

A
ss

e
ts

u
n

d
e
r

c
o

n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
,
P

la
n

t
a
n

d
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Value

Balance at 01.04.16 272,021 193,750 38,395 1,073 2,581 10,351 518,171

Additions 5,487 4,422 3,006 17 3 11,414 24,349

Sales (1,798) 0 (800) 0 (407) 0 (3,005)

Transfers 16,336 0 0 0 (69) (16,258) 9

Revaluation - to Revaluation
Reserve

1,855 0 0 0 0 0 1,855

Revaluation - to Services (2,461) 0 0 0 0 0 (2,461)

Balance at 31.03.17 291,440 198,172 40,601 1,090 2,108 5,507 538,918

Depreciation

Balance at 01.04.16 4,055 33,992 20,736 9 1 0 58,793

Depreciation in year 4,685 5,223 3,555 1 2 0 13,466

Sales (102) 0 (780) 0 0 0 (882)

Transfers 0 0 0 0 (1) 0 (1)

Revaluation (3,848) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,848)

Balance at 31.03.17 4,790 39,215 23,511 10 2 0 67,528

Impairment

Balance at 01.04.16 32,132 63 68 230 63 0 32,556

Impairment in year
- to Revaluation Reserve

2,374 0 0 0 0 0 2,374

Impairment in year
- to Services

4,859 0 0 0 5 0 4,864

Sales (175) 0 0 0 0 0 (175)

Transfers 0 0 0 0 (1) 0 (1)

Revaluation (3,954) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,954)

Balance at 31.03.17 35,236 63 68 230 67 0 35,664

Net Book Value 251,414 158,894 17,022 850 2,039 5,507 435,726

31 March 2017

Net Book Value 235,834 159,695 17,591 834 2,517 10,351 426,822

31 March 2016

Page 51



39

NOTE 15 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Comparative Movements in 2015/16:

L
a
n

d
a
n

d
B

u
il
d

in
g
s

In
fr

a
st

ru
c
tu

re

V
e
h

ic
le

s,
P

la
n

t
a
n

d
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

A
ss

e
ts

S
u

rp
lu

s
A

ss
e
ts

A
ss

e
ts

u
n

d
e
r

c
o

n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
,
P

la
n

t
a
n

d
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Value

Balance at 01.04.15 265,717 182,294 34,926 1,036 2,731 17,161 503,865

Additions 9,844 2,830 4,658 37 17 13,408 30,794

Sales (9,636) 0 (1,189) 0 (48) 0 (10,873)

Transfers 11,244 8,626 0 0 0 (20,218) (348)

Revaluation - to Revaluation
Reserve (5,344) 0 0 0 (89) 0 (5,433)

Revaluation - to Services 196 0 0 0 (30) 0 166

Balance at 31.03.16 272,021 193,750 38,395 1,073 2,581 10,351 518,171

Depreciation

Balance at 01.04.15 5,409 29,456 18,565 8 21 0 53,459

Depreciation in year 4,340 4,536 3,331 1 0 0 12,208

Sales (51) 0 (1,160) 0 0 0 (1,211)

Transfers (13) 0 0 0 0 0 (13)

Revaluation (5,630) 0 0 0 (20) 0 (5,650)

Balance at 31.03.16 4,055 33,992 20,736 9 1 0 58,793

Impairment

Balance at 01.04.15 34,862 63 68 230 66 20 35,309

Impairment in year
- to Revaluation Reserve

3,274 0 0 0 9 0 3,283

Impairment in year
- to Services

3,442 0 0 0 8 0 3,450

Sales (257) 0 0 0 (18) 0 (275)

Transfers 19 0 0 0 0 (20) (1)

Revaluation (9,208) 0 0 0 (2) 0 (9,210)

Balance at 31.03.16 32,132 63 68 230 63 0 32,556

Net Book Value 235,834 159,695 17,591 834 2,517 10,351 426,822

31 March 2016

Net Book Value 225,446 152,775 16,293 798 2,644 17,141 415,097

31 March 2015

Page 52



40

NOTE 15 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Council’s operational Land and Buildings were fully revalued by the Council’s Corporate Property Manager
(M.R.I.C.S) in accordance with the policies noted in section 1.17 of Note 1 of the Accounting Policies. It was noted
that the Authority has established a rolling programme for revaluing different categories of these assets annually.
Refer to this note also for the basis of depreciation on various categories of assets.

14 Church Schools are used in the education service and are not shown in the table above as they are not owned by
the Council. The Council is responsible for their repair and maintenance but the amounts are not significant. For
information purposes, the Cae Top School in Bangor is currently regarded as a Council-owned asset in our
accounts, and not a church school. The legal status of this asset is subject to a legal review which may affect its
treatment in future accounts.

The sources of finance for the assets acquired during the year are shown with the information on capital
expenditure in the narrative report.

Capital Commitments

Significant commitments under capital contracts at 31 March 2017 were as follows:

Sum
Payments

to date Balance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Ysgol Y Berwyn - extension and refurbishment 8,897 2,857 6,040

New Glan Cegin School 4,439 2,333 2,106

Dolgellau Primary School - extension and adaptations 2,194 936 1,258

Page 53



41

NOTE 16 – INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

Rental income from investment property 26 3

Net gain/(loss) 26 3

There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the
Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Authority has no contractual
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property nor for its repair, maintenance or enhancement.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

Balance 1 April 247 247

Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments 0 0

Transfers:

to/(from) Property, Plant and Equipment 0 (50)

Balance 31 March 247 197

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial Instruments - Classifications

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants, do
not give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be represented by
a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities
with another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the Council.

The Council’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and comprised:
• long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders
• Service Concession Arrangements (Private Finance Initiative (PFI)) contracts detailed in Note 41
• overdraft with Barclays Bank plc
• trade payables for goods and services received

Financial Assets

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by cash or other
instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset. The financial assets held by the Council
during the year are held under the following three classifications:

Loans and receivables (financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active
market) comprising:

Page 54



42

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

• cash
• bank accounts
• fixed term deposits with banks and building societies
• loans to other local authorities
• trade receivables for goods and services delivered

Available-for-sale financial assets (those that are quoted in an active market) comprising:
• money market funds and other collective investment schemes
• certificates of deposit issued by banks and building societies
• bonds issued by multilateral development banks and UK companies

Assets held at fair value through profit and loss comprising:
• equity investment in a local waste company

(b) Financial Instruments - Balances

The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

Financial Liabilities Long-Term Short-Term
31 March

2016
31 March

2017
31 March

2016
31 March

2017
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Loans at amortised cost:

Principal sum borrowed 110,676 108,143 2,060 2,702

Accrued interest 0 0 697 633

Total Borrowing 110,676 108,143 2,757 3,335

Loans at amortised cost:

Bank overdraft 0 0 39,430 30,035

Total Cash Overdrawn 0 0 39,430 30,035

Liabilities at amortised cost:

Trade Payables 0 0 0 0

Finance Leases 2,127 1,993 0 0

Total other Long-Term Liabilities 2,127 1,993 0 0

Liabilities at amortised cost:

Trade Payables 0 0 53,722 54,912

Finance Leases 0 0 126 134

Included within Creditors* 0 0 53,848 55,046

Total Financial Liabilities 112,803 110,136 96,035 88,416
* The short-term creditors line on the Balance Sheet includes £1,927,000 (£838,000 at 31 March 2016) creditors (Note 21) that do not
meet the definition of a financial liability.

Page 55



43

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:

Financial Assets Long-Term Short-Term
31 March

2016
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

31 March
2016
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

Loans and Receivables:

Principal at amortised cost 17 17 50,000 26,000

Accrued interest 0 0 55 44

Available-for-sale investments:

Principal at amortised cost 2,324 2,154 0 0

Total Investments 2,341 2,171 50,055 26,044

Loans and Receivables:

Cash 0 0 59 59

Cash equivalents at amortised
cost

0 0 14,132 1,325

Total Cash and Cash
Equivalents

0 0 14,191 1,384

Loans and Receivables:

Trade Receivables 4,301 4,094 17,960 32,341

Included in Debtors* 4,301 4,094 17,960 32,341

Total Financial Assets 6,642 6,265 82,206 59,769
* The short-term debtors line on the Balance Sheet includes £22,547,000 (£14,565,000 at 31 March 2016) debtors (Note 18) that
do not meet the definition of a financial asset.

Material Soft Loans

Local Authorities are allowed to make loans for policy reasons rather than as financial instruments and these loans
may be interest-free or at rates below prevailing market rates. Where loans are advanced at below market rates,
they are classed as “Soft Loans”.

The fair values of such a soft loan are less than the amount of the cash lent. The fair value of a loan at nil interest
rate or below the prevailing market rate is estimated as the present value of all future cash receipts discounted using
the prevailing market rate of interest for a similar instrument. The sum by which the amount lent exceeds the fair
value of the loan is charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement. The 2016/17 Code of Practice sets out
specific accounting and disclosure requirements for soft loans. During 2016/17 Gwynedd Council identified the
following “soft loans”:

• Deferred Payments on charges due from people under care (amount outstanding at 31.03.17 £2,027,329)
• Car and Bike Loans to employees (amount outstanding at 31.03.17 £951,760)

It has been determined that the few “soft loans” that the Council has require no separate disclosure, as they are de-
minimis.

Page 56



44

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are set off against each other where the Council has a legally enforceable right to set off
and it intends to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. The table below
shows those instruments that have been offset on the Balance Sheet. The Council had no other financial assets or
liabilities subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

2015/16 2016/17

Gross
assets

(liabilities)

(Liabilities)
assets set

off

Net
position on

Balance
Sheet

Gross
assets

(liabilities)

(Liabilities)
assets set

off

Net
position on

Balance
Sheet

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Bank accounts in
credit

0 0 0 13,065 (13,065) 0

Total Financial
Assets

0 0 0 13,065 (13,065) 0

Bank overdraft (39,430) 0 (39,430) (43,100) 13,065 (30,035)

Total Financial
Liabilities

(39,430) 0 (39,430) (43,100) 13,065 (30,035)

(c) Financial Instruments - Gains and Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial
instruments consist of the following items:

Financial Liabilities Financial Assets

Liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Loans and
Receivables

Total
2016/17

£'000 £'000 £'000

Interest expense 6,380 0 6,380

Interest payable and
similar charges

6,380 0 6,380

Interest income 0 (311) (311)
Interest and investment
income 0 (311) (311)
Net (gain)/loss for the
year

6,380 (311) 6,069

(d) Financial Instruments - Fair Values

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and all non-derivative financial liabilities are carried in the Balance
Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining
contractual cash flows at 31 March 2017, using the following assumptions:

• PWLB loans have been discounted at the published interest rates for new PWLB certainty rate loans with an
identical remaining term to maturity arranged on 31 March.

• Other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for similar instruments
with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31 March.

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

Page 57



45

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

• The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount.

• In the case of deferred liabilities (such as finance leases) the Authority deems the carrying amount to be a
reasonable approximation of the fair value.

Carrying
Amount

31 March
2016

Fair Value
31 March

2016

Carrying
Amount

31 March
2017

Fair Value
31 March

2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Liabilities:

Loans borrowed (113,434) (170,173) (111,478) (181,814)

Finance leases (2,127) (2,127) (2,127) (2,127)

Trade Payables (53,722) (53,722) (54,912) (54,912)

Total Financial Liabilities
(169,283) (226,022) (168,517) (238,853)

Financial Assets:

Long-term investments 2,341 2,341 2,171 2,171

Short-term investments 50,000 50,055 26,000 26,044

Trade Receivables 17,960 17,960 32,341 32,341

Total Financial Assets 70,301 70,356 60,512 60,556

The fair value of long-term liabilities is higher than the carrying amount because the Authority’s portfolio of loans
includes a number of loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the current rates available for similar loans
as at the Balance Sheet date.

The Council’s investment portfolio at the Balance Sheet date consisted almost entirely of term deposits with Banks
and Building Societies, and call/notice account deposits. The maturity dates of these investments were all within 12
months of the Balance Sheet date. The Council has two longer dated covered bonds maturing in 2018.

(e) Financial Instruments - Risks

The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (and subsequent amendments) and
complies with The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (both revised in November 2011).

As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury Management Strategy
before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks
associated with Financial Instruments. The Council also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the
practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with the Welsh
Government’s Investment Guidance for local authorities. This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to
security and liquidity, rather than yield. The Council’s Treasury Strategy, together with its Treasury Management
Practices, is based on seeking the highest rate of return consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity.

The main risks covered are:

• Credit Risk: The possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet its contractual obligations,
causing a loss to the Council.

• Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to make contracted payments
on time.

• Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in market
variables such as interest rates or equity prices.

Page 58



46

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk: Investments

The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only placed with organisations of high credit
quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. During 2016/17 these include commercial entities with a
minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government, and other local authorities without credit ratings upon
which the Council has received independent investment advice. Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect
predictors of default, the Council has regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when
selecting commercial organisations for investment.

During 2016/17 a limit of 5% of the total portfolio was placed on the amount that can be invested with a single
counterparty (reduced to £1m for some building societies and 2.5% for the RBS Group). The Council also set a total
group investment limit of 5% for institutions that are part of the same banking group (reduced to 2.5% for the RBS
Group). No more than £40m in total could be invested for a period longer than one year.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £26m
cannot be assessed generally, as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal
sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be
unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was
no evidence at 31 March 2017 that this was likely to crystallise.

During 2008/09 the Council made a deposit of £4m with Heritable Bank which was a UK registered bank under
Scottish Law. The company was placed in administration on 7 October 2008. The Council has received a return of
£3,938,407 equating to 98% from the administrators up to 31 March 2017. The administration is ongoing, but it is
likely that the full amount should eventually be recovered.

The Council does not hold collateral against any investments.

The credit quality of £2.103m of the Council’s investments is enhanced as they are covered bonds which have a pool
of assets that secures the bond if the issuer fails. This collateral significantly reduces the likelihood of the Council
suffering a credit loss on these investments.

The tables below summarise the credit risk exposures of the Council’s investment portfolio by credit rating:

Credit Rating Short-Term

31 March 2016
£’000

31 March 2017
£’000

AAA 0 0
AA+ 0 0
AA 0 0
AA- 11,000 10,000
A+ 4,000 0
A 18,000 8,000
A- 1,000 1,000
Unrated 16,000 7,000

Total Investments 50,000 26,000

Page 59



47

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit Rating Long-Term

31 March 2016
£’000

31 March 2017
£’000

AAA 2,272 2,103
AA+ 0 0
AA 0 0
AA- 0 0
A+ 0 0
A 0 0
A- 0 0
Unrated 0 0

Total Investments 2,272 2,103

Trade Receivables

The Council also has a number of longer-term debtors including car loans to employees and mortgages to members
of the public. The car loans are considered to be low risk due to the ability to deduct repayments of car loans from
employees’ salaries, reciprocal arrangements with other local authorities for any staff transferring with outstanding
car loans, specific arrangements for unpaid loans and normal debt recovery procedures for any employees who leave
local government employment. The mortgages are low risk due to the first charge held by the Council on mortgaged
properties.

The Council has launched a Business Loan Fund for small and medium-sized businesses within Gwynedd. The
interest rates charged on such loans are commensurate with the higher credit risk involved in these types of loans.

Liquidity Risk

The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan Board and other local
authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies. There is no perceived risk that the Council will be
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments. It is, however, exposed to the risk that it will need to refinance a
significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. This risk is managed by maintaining a
spread of fixed rate loans and ensuring that no more than 25% of the Council’s borrowing matures in any one
financial year.

The maturity analysis of the principal sums borrowed is as follows:

Time to maturity (years) 31 March 2016
£’000

31 March 2017
£’000

Less than 1 year 2,018 2,702

Over 1 but not over 2 2,550 333

Over 2 but not over 5 3,600 5,322

Over 5 but not over 10 13,829 17,613

Over 10 but not over 20 30,313 27,626

Over 20 but not over 30 15,464 13,697

Over 30 but not over 40 1,768 17,986

Over 40 25,585 9,367

Uncertain date* 16,200 16,200

Total 111,327 110,846
* The Council has £16.2m of “Lender’s option, borrower’s option” (LOBO) loans where the lender has the option to propose an increase in
the rate payable; the Council will then have the option to accept the new rate or repay the loan without penalty. Due to current low interest
rates, in the unlikely event that the lender exercises its option, the Council is likely to repay these loans. The maturity date is therefore
uncertain.

Page 60



48

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market Risk: Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest
rates would have the following effects:

• Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise.
• Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall.
• Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited will rise.
• Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Investments classed as “loans and receivables” and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in their
fair value will have no impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and
receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments classed as “available for sale” will be reflected in
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting upper limits on its net exposures to fixed
and variable interest rates. At 31 March 2017, 100% of net principal borrowed (i.e. debt net of investments) was
exposed to fixed rates and 0% to variable rates.

If all interest rates had been 1% higher or lower (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:
1%

higher
£'000

1%
lower
£'000

Change in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0 0

Change in interest receivable on variable rate investments 76 16

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 76 16

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets 0 0

Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings / liabilities* (26,046) 26,046
*No impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Market Risk: Price Risk

The market prices of the Council’s fixed rate bond investments and its units in collective investment schemes are
governed by prevailing interest rates, and the market risk associated with these instruments is managed alongside
interest rate risk.

The Council does not invest in equity shares and therefore is not subject to any price risk. The Council has shares in
a Local Authority Waste Disposal Company (LAWDC). The relevant activities have been internalised and the
company is being wound up and has, therefore, been classified as an “available for sale asset” and is shown at fair
value in the Balance Sheet. A partial settlement payment for the fair value of the shares was received in 2008/09 and
2009/10 and the balance remains. This process cannot be fully completed until specific and related tax invoices are
resolved with Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs.

Market Risk: Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency. It therefore has no exposure to
loss arising as a result of adverse movements in exchange rates.

Page 61



49

NOTE 18 – SHORT-TERM DEBTORS

Debtors NET of impairment

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000

Welsh Government 6,491 28,921

Other Central Government Bodies 4,258 7,187

Other Local Authorities 2,065 2,608

National Health Service 486 2,594

Public Corporations and Trading Funds 262 18

Council Tax 1,902 1,846

Other Entities and Individuals 17,075 11,715

Total 32,539 54,889

NOTE 19 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£’000 £’000

Cash in hand 13 13

Bank current accounts 46 46

Call Accounts 14,132 1,325

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,191 1,384

Bank overdraft (39,430) (30,035)

Total (25,239) (28,651)

In order to maximise the returns from Short-Term Investments and Cash Deposits, the Council invests any surplus
funds in its bank accounts along with any surplus funds in the Gwynedd Pension Fund bank accounts. An appropriate
share of the interest earned is paid to the Pension Fund and any losses on investment are shared with the Pension
Fund in the same proportion. Due to the nature of the banking arrangements any surplus cash in the Pension Fund
bank accounts is not transferred to the Council’s bank accounts and therefore a proportion of the above Short-
Term Investments (Note 17) and the Call Accounts and Money Market Funds above represent money invested on
behalf of the Pension Fund at the Balance Sheet date. As the Short-Term Investments are made in the name of
Gwynedd Council, they are shown in full on the Balance Sheet. The Pension Fund element of the Short-Term
Investments and Cash Deposits was £15.7m (£25m at 31 March 2016).

Page 62



50

NOTE 20 – ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

Balance 1 April 1,040 459

Assets newly classified as held for sale:

Property, Plant and Equipment 334 74

Expenditure in year 2 2

Revaluation Losses (416) 0

Impairment Losses (2) (2)

Assets declassified as held for sale:

Property, Plant and Equipment 0 (35)

Assets sold (499) (350)

Balance 31 March 459 148

NOTE 21 – SHORT-TERM CREDITORS

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000

Welsh Government 2,285 2,774

Other Central Government Bodies 4,708 3,622

Other Local Authorities 14,376 7,333

National Health Service 499 358

Public Corporations and Trading Funds 290 250

Council Tax 1,203 1,310

Other Entities and Individuals 31,326 41,325

Total 54,687 56,972

Page 63



51

NOTE 22 – PROVISIONS

The Council sets aside provisions for specific obligations, the amount or timing of which cannot be determined
accurately. It is not permitted, under accounting conventions, to make provisions for uneven patterns of
expenditure. However, earmarked reserves may be established and these are disclosed in Note 10.

The details below are analysed into short-term provisions (within 12 months) and long-term provisions (over 12
months). However, the provision level on all related items is reviewed periodically.

Balance at (Addition) / Used Balance at

31 March Reduction / during the 31 March

2016 Transfer year 2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Short-Term Provisions

Waste Sites Provision (294) (254) 291 (257)

Other (1) 1 0 0

Equal Pay (170) 170 0 0

Third Party Claims Provision 0 (100) 0 (100)

(465) (183) 291 (357)

Long-Term Provisions

Waste Sites Provision (7,817) 225 0 (7,592)

Third Party Claims Provision (93) 0 0 (93)

MMI Insurance Provision (198) 0 107 (91)

Other (113) 113 0 0

(8,221) 338 107 (7,776)

Total (8,686) 155 398 (8,133)

Waste Sites Provision – relates to the capping and aftercare requirements of all of the Council’s waste disposal
sites.

Equal Pay Provision – provision relating to the equal pay claims against the Council.

Third Party Claims Provision – relating to cases of third party claims against the Council in the Adults and
Consultancy areas.

Municipal Mutual Insurance (M.M.I) Provision – a provision in respect of the insurance liability this Authority
inherited and is exposed to in relation to the insurance arrangements of its predecessor Authorities and Municipal
Mutual Insurance.

Other Provisions – All the other provisions relate to other minor issues.

Page 64



52

NOTE 23 – UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000

67,131 Revaluation Reserve 71,974

142 Available-For-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve (17)

186,954 Capital Adjustment Account 187,120

(835) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (760)

(178,332) Pensions Reserve (235,413)

(3,392) Accumulated Absences Account (3,935)

71,668 Total Unusable Reserves 18,969

23.1 Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost.
• Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
• Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

62,580 Balance 1 April 67,131

17,470 Upward revaluation of assets 9,916

(11,375) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses (2,634)

6,095 Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of assets 7,282

(971) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation (1,219)

(573) Accumulated gains on assets sold (1,220)

(1,544) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (2,439)

67,131 Balance 31 March 71,974

23.2 Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

The Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases
in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or determinable
payments. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are:

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost.
• Disposed of and the gains are realised.

Page 65



53

NOTE 23 – UNUSABLE RESERVES (continued)

2015/16 2016/17

£000 £'000

85 Balance 1 April 142

57 Upward revaluation of investments 0

0
Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

(159)

0
Accumulated gains on assets sold and maturing assets written out to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Other Investment
Income

0

142 Balance 31 March (17)

23.3 Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement
of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or
enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a
historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of
acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 9 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

179,024 Balance 1 April 186,954

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(15,910) Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (20,793)

(4,844) Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (4,987)

(9,313) Adjustment to non-current balance on the sale of assets (1,077)

971 Transfer from Capital Revaluation Reserve 1,219

Capital financing applied in the year:

1,622 Capital Receipts 770

17,781 Grants and contributions credited to Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing

11,606

5,641 Revenue provision for the financing of supported capital investment 5,593

10,248 Capital expenditure charged in year against the General Fund 5,972

1,734
Capital receipts set aside / Revenue provision for the financing of
unsupported capital investment

1,863

186,954 Balance 31 March 187,120

Page 66



54

NOTE 23 – UNUSABLE RESERVES (continued)

23.4 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account at the end of the financial year represents the amount that should
have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with proper accounting
practices under the Code of Practice, but which Statutory Provisions allow or require to be deferred over future
years.

There is a requirement for all premiums and discounts arising from loan extinguishments to be charged to Income
and Expenditure in full. Where transactions meet the definition of a modification any premiums or discounts are
added to the carrying value of the loan and are then amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement over the life of the new loan. A modification exists where the terms of the new debt are not
“substantially different” from those of the old debt.

Premiums amortised under statutory provisions can be charged to the General Fund over either the remaining life of
the original loan or the life of the replacement loan, whichever is the greater period. Discounts must be credited to
the General Fund over 10 years or the life of the original loan, whichever is the shorter period.

The transactions reflected in the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account are as follows:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

(885) Balance 1 April (835)

46
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous years charged to General Fund in
accordance with statute

46

4 Deferred credit for receipt of charges due from people under care 29

(835) Balance 31 March (760)

23.5 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for
which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these gains
as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash
settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

2 Balance 1 April 0

(2) Principal repayment of Right To Buy Mortgages 0

0 Balance 31 March 0

Page 67



55

NOTE 23 – UNUSABLE RESERVES (continued)

23.6 Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for
post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and
investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

2015/16 2016/17

£000 £000

(248,721) Balance 1 April (178,332)

80,568 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit (liabilities) / assets (51,322)

(30,226)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

(26,259)

20,047
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable
in the year

20,500

(178,332) Balance 31 March (235,413)

23.7 Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement
carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

(3,819) Balance 1 April (3,392)

427
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(543)

(3,392) Balance 31 March (3,935)

Page 68



56

NOTE 24a – CASH FLOW STATEMENT: ADJUSTMENTS TO NET SURPLUS OR DEFICIT
ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR NON-CASH MOVEMENTS

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

(12,208) Depreciation (13,466)

(3,702) Impairment and downward valuations (7,327)

14,228 (Increase)/Decrease in Creditors (1,636)

(9,997) Increase/(Decrease) in Debtors 22,340

(146) Increase/(Decrease) in Stock (35)

(10,179) Pension Liability (5,759)

(9,887) Carrying amount of non-current assets sold or de-recognised (2,297)

(679) Other non-cash items charged to net surplus/deficit on the provision of
services

(4,919)

(32,570) (13,099)

NOTE 24b – CASH FLOW STATEMENT – ADJUST FOR ITEMS INCLUDED IN THE NET
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES THAT ARE INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

942 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets

1,603

942 1,603

NOTE 24c – CASH FLOW STATEMENT – OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

(552) Interest received (323)

5,698 Interest paid 5,616

Page 69



57

NOTE 25 – CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

28,821 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets

24,438

362,420 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 332,978

4,284 Other payments for investing activities 4,780

(929) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets

(1,633)

(348,328) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (356,989)

46,268 Net cash flows from investing activities 3,574

NOTE 26 – CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

119 Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to
Finance Leases

126

(1,421) Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing 1,955

(1,302) Net cash flows from financing activities 2,081

Page 70



58

NOTE 27 – EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

The Authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 Expenditure / Income £'000

Expenditure

163,870 Employee benefits expenses 167,044

135,477 Other Services expenses 135,913

23,178 Support Services recharges 21,725

18,727 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 23,503

14,551 Interest Payments 12,623

20,097 Precepts and Levies 20,466

9,189 Loss on the disposal of assets 734

385,089 Total Expenditure 382,008

Income

(47,153) Fees, charges and other service income (55,838)

(508) Interest and investment income (313)

(107,526) Income from council tax and non-domestic rates (111,806)

(220,674) Government grants and contributions (204,758)

(244) (Gain) on the disposal of assets (40)

(376,105) Total Income (372,755)

8,984 (Surplus) / Deficit on the Provision of Services 9,253

NOTE 28 – AGENCY SERVICES

The Council operates on an agency basis to prepare some services, and also administers the North and Mid Wales
Trunk Road Agency on behalf of the Welsh Government.

In terms of the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency, the principal area of work is managing and maintaining
the trunk road network in the North and Mid Wales Council’s Partnership region that extends to 1,174 kilometres.
The income transactions recovered during 2016/17 were £62.9m (£47.1m in 2015/16).

Gwynedd Council acts as an agent to the original Welsh Government’s ‘Houses into Homes’ scheme, by providing
interest-free loans to owners of empty properties in order to bring the premises back into use, for sale or rent.
During 2016/17, loans amounting to £139k were allocated and £368k was repaid, a net movement of (£229k) (£166k
in 2015/16).

During 2015/16, the Welsh Government established four new schemes with Gwynedd Council acting as agent on
their behalf:

• Houses into Homes 2 – closing balance £396k (£431k in 2015/16)
• Home Improvement Loans – closing balance £315k (£300k in 2015/16)
• Shared Library Management System Implementation – closing balance £0 (£75k in 2015/16)
• Supporting Town Centre Regeneration in Caernarfon – closing balance £431k (£700k in 2015/16).

During 2016/17, the Welsh Government established a further scheme:
• Caernarfon and Bangor Town Centre Scheme – closing balance of £850k, which is yet to be allocated.

Page 71



59

NOTE 29 – MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

The Authority paid the following allowances and expenses to members of the Council during the year:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

1,256 Allowances 1,259

71 Expenses 61

1,327 1,320

NOTE 30 – OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

30a. The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 require the Council to disclose the following information
relating to employees appointed as Senior Officers, and whose salary is between £60,000 and £150,000. In
compliance with the defined requirements, the pensionable pay, employer’s pension contributions and other
employer costs are included below (including termination benefits), but the employer’s national insurance
contributions are excluded.

2015/16 Chief Officers 2016/17

Salary

Employer's
Pension

Contributions Total Salary

Employer's
Pension

Contributions Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

103,805 23,252 127,057 Chief Executive 1 106,787 23,920 130,707

90,222 20,210 110,432 Corporate Director 91,125 20,412 111,537

87,967 19,705 107,672 Corporate Director 91,125 20,412 111,537

87,419 19,582 107,001 Head of Education 2 91,589 20,516 112,105

76,582 17,154 93,736 Head of Finance 77,349 17,326 94,675

76,581 17,151 93,732 Head of Adults, Health and Wellbeing 3 77,009 17,350 94,359

22,465 16,054 38,519
Head of Adults, Health and Wellbeing
(previous holder) 4 37,301 3,616 40,917

73,832 16,990 90,822 Head of Highways and Municipal 75,395 16,888 92,283

71,259 15,962 87,221 Head of Economy & Community 71,972 16,122 88,094

67,697 15,164 82,861 Head of Children and Families 70,174 15,719 85,893

64,134 14,360 78,494 Head of Environment 5 65,338 14,836 80,174

64,134 14,366 78,500 Head of Corporate Support 66,575 14,913 81,488

60,195 13,484 73,679 Head of Gwynedd Consultancy 60,798 13,619 74,417

42,756 9,577 52,333 Specialised Programmes Leader 6 42,979 9,627 52,606

42,756 9,577 52,333 Specialised Programmes Leader 6 42,979 9,627 52,606

1) The figures do not include any remuneration for the Chief Executive in his role as Returning Officer. The amount paid in 2016/17

was £7,085, which is based on rates defined by the respective election bodies.

2) Since 1 November 2016, the Head of Education acts as a temporary part-time Corporate Manager for GwE. He is formally employed

by Gwynedd Council and GwE is recharged 80% of his salary and other remuneration.

3) Holder permanently confirmed in post from 19 September 2016

4) Holder in post to 8 July 2016

5) Holder in post permanently from 6 December 2016

6) Part time post

30b. The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 require the Authority to include a ratio of remuneration.
The ratio of the Chief Executive’s remuneration to the median remuneration of all the Authority’s employees for
2016/17 is 5.39 : 1 (5.29 : 1 in 2015/16). Page 72



60

NOTE 30 – OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

30c. Other Authority employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s
pension and national insurance contributions), were paid the following amounts. The figures include termination
benefits paid in 8 cases in 2016/17 and 10 cases in 2015/16. These posts would not appear below except for the
termination benefits paid in the individual year.

Number of other employees who received more than £60,000
and includes remuneration and termination benefits:

Number in 2015/16 Number in 2016/17

Schools Other Total Schools Other Total

3 3 6 £60,000 - 64,999 6 6 12

6 2 8 £65,000 - 69,999 4 1 5

3 0 3 £70,000 - 74,999 6 1 7

2 0 2 £75,000 - 79,999 2 0 2

1 0 1 £80,000 - 84,999 1 0 1

0 1 1 £85,000 - 89,999 0 1 1

0 0 0 £90,000 - 94,999 0 1 1

2 0 2 £95,000 - 99,999 1 0 1

0 0 0 £100,000 - 104,999 0 0 0

1 1 2 £105,000 - 109,999 0 0 0

0 0 0 £110,000 - 114,999 0 0 0

0 0 0 £115,000 - 119,999 0 0 0

0 0 0 £120,000 - 124,999 0 0 0

0 0 0 £125,000 - 129,999 0 0 0

0 0 0 £130,000 - 134,999 0 1 1

NOTE 31 – EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Authority has incurred the following costs relating to external audit:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

183 Fees payable to auditors appointed by the Auditor General for Wales with
regard to external audit services

183

99 Fees payable to auditors appointed by the Auditor General for Wales in
respect of statutory inspections

99

96 Fees payable to auditors appointed by the Auditor General for Wales for
the certification of grant claims and returns for the year

126

378 408

(2)
Less: Fees payable to auditors appointed by the Auditor General for
Wales in respect of Joint Committees and Harbour Accounts (2)

376 Gwynedd Council Net Fees 406

In 2015/16, Deloitte were appointed by the Auditor General for Wales as Gwynedd Council’s external auditors.

Page 73



61

NOTE 32 – GRANT INCOME

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

2015/16
£'000

2016/17
£'000Note

Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

Outcome Agreement Grant (Non-ring-fenced Government
Grants) 13 1,284 0

Revenue Support Grant (Non-ring-fenced Government Grants) 13 132,666 129,792

Government Revenue Grants and Contributions - Other 1,428 8

Government Capital Grants and Contributions -

21st Century Schools 5,197 3,199

General Capital Grant 2,511 2,516

Other 5,047 3,449

13 12,755 9,164

Other Capital Grants and Contributions 13 1,215 124

Total 149,348 139,088

Grants and Contributions Credited to Services

Welsh Government -

Supporting People Grant (SPG & SPRG) 5,056 5,044

Improvement and Deprivation Grants (Education) 7,350 7,477

Sustainable Waste Management Grant 3,606 3,516

Post-16 Grant (Education) 3,148 3,257

Other 15,037 13,420

34,197 32,714

Other Government Grants and Contributions -

Department for Work and Pensions 30,059 30,237

Other 9,714 12,015

39,773 42,252

Other Grants and Contributions 3,586 3,736

Total 77,556 78,702

Page 74



62

NOTE 32 – GRANT INCOME (continued)

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income
as they have conditions attached to them that could require the monies or property to be returned to the giver.
The balances at the year-end are as follows:

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

Grants Received in Advance £'000 £'000

Long-Term

Revenue Grants and Contributions

Environment (Planning, Transport and Public Protection) Grants 662 752

Adults, Health and Wellbeing Grants 4 0

666 752

Capital Grants and Contributions

Highways and Municipal Capital Contributions 1,665 1,519

Environment (Planning, Transport and Public Protection) Grants 1,217 1,231

2,882 2,750

Total Long-Term 3,548 3,502

Short-Term

Revenue Grants and Contributions

Economy and Community Grants 343 376

Environment (Planning, Transport and Public Protection) Grants 630 420

Adults, Health and Wellbeing Grants 897 1,036

Other Grants 220 109

2,090 1,941

Capital Grants and Contributions 274 255

Total Short-Term 2,364 2,196

Total 5,912 5,698

Page 75



63

NOTE 33 – RELATED PARTIES

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to
operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Authority. To conform to the requirements, this is done by completing a personal declaration by the Members and
Senior Officers, as defined in the CIPFA Code of Practice.

Welsh and Central Government
Welsh Government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority. It is responsible for providing
the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of
grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has within other parties (e.g. council
tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from the Welsh Government and other Government departments are
set out in the subjective analysis in Note 27 which analyses expenditure and income by nature. The position as at 31
March is detailed in Note 32.

Members
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. One member of the
Council did not return a personal declaration. The total of members’ allowances paid in 2016/17 is shown in Note
29.

The Authority appoints members to some external charitable or voluntary bodies or the members have disclosed a
link to organisations, public bodies and authorities. A breakdown of the payments made to these bodies under this
heading during 2016/17 and balances at 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Payments made Amounts owed by the
Council

Amounts owed to the
Council

£’000 £’000 £’000

14,142 1,749 (4,041)

Members have declared an interest or relationship (as defined) in companies or businesses which may have dealings
with the Council. A breakdown of the payments made to these companies under this heading during 2016/17 and
balances at 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Payments made Amounts owed by the
Council

Amounts owed to the
Council

£’000 £’000 £’000

1,873 94 (6)

Officers
Senior Officers (as defined) have declared as required and where appropriate an interest or relationship (as defined)
in companies, voluntary, charitable, or public bodies which receive payments from the Council. A breakdown of the
payments made to these bodies under this heading during 2016/17 and balances at 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Payments made Amounts owed by the
Council

Amounts owed to the
Council

£’000 £’000 £’000

1,499 148 (115)

Other Public Bodies
The Authority is the administering authority for the Pension Fund. Details of transactions with the Pension Fund are
shown in Note 38 on pages 69 to 73 and the Pension Fund Accounts on pages 77 to 106.

Page 76



64

NOTE 33 – RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Welsh Joint Education Committee (WJEC)

Payments made Amounts owed by the
Council

Amounts owed to the
Council

£’000 £’000 £’000

973 0 0

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
Cwmni Cynnal Cyf. was established in 1996 to provide education support services under contract to maintained
schools and the local education authorities as well as school inspection services to Estyn. The company is limited by
guarantee and the Council’s liability is limited to £1. The income of the company can only be applied towards
promotion of its objectives. Copies of the financial statements are available from Cwmni Cynnal, Penrallt,
Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1BN. Payments to Cwmni Cynnal during 2016/17 for services to schools and balances
at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Payments made Amounts owed by the
Council

Amounts owed to the
Council

£’000 £’000 £’000

1,194 12 (1)

Cwmni Gwastraff Môn-Arfon Cyf. was established as a Local Authority Waste Disposal Company in 1994. The two
Councils decided to terminate the arrangement in 2007/08 and to undertake the work in-house. The relevant
operational assets and liabilities and the staff were transferred to the Council in January 2008. The remaining assets
and liabilities will be divided between the two Councils and the final accounts will be completed when the company
is wound up. £52k is the current balance that is owed to the Council.

NOTE 34 – CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of
assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure
incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this
note.

31 March 31 March

2016 2017

£'000 £'000
427,588 Non-current Assets and Assets held for sale 436,131

(67,131) Revaluation Reserve (71,974)

(186,954) Capital Adjustment Account (187,120)

173,503 Capital Financing Requirement 177,037

Page 77



65

NOTE 34 – CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING (continued)

The movement in the year is explained as follows:

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

174,889 Capital Financing Requirement 1 April 173,503

9,844 Land and Buildings 5,487
2,830 Infrastructure 4,422
4,658 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3,006

37 Community Assets 17
17 Surplus Assets 3

13,408 Assets under construction 11,414
2 Assets held for sale 2

4,844 Funded from capital under statute 4,987
(1,622) Capital Receipts used (770)

(17,781) Government Grants and other contributions (11,606)
(10,248) Capital expenditure charged to revenue (5,972)
(5,641) Revenue provision for the financing of supported capital investment (5,593)

Additional voluntary set aside:

(1,734) Revenue provision for the financing of unsupported capital
investment

(1,863)

173,503 Capital Financing Requirement 31 March 177,037

NOTE 35 – LEASES

Authority as Lessee

Finance Leases

The Council has property under finance leases which are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance
Sheet. Included here is the GwyriAD Service Concession Arrangements (Note 41) at the following net amount:

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000

4,236 Property, Plant and Equipment 3,987

4,236 3,987

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the long-
term liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority and finance costs that will be payable by the
Authority in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the
following amounts:

Page 78



66

NOTE 35 – LEASES (continued)

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000
Finance Lease Liabilities
(net present value of minimum lease payments):

126 current 134

2,127 non-current 1,993

2,253 Minimum lease payments 2,127
The remaining asset shown above has been funded by a deferred credit (refer to Note 41).

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

Minimum Lease
Payments

Finance Lease
Liabilities

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

No later than one year 126 134 126 134

Later than one year and not later
than five years

587 623 587 623

More than five years 1,540 1,370 1,540 1,370

2,253 2,127 2,253 2,127

In 2016/17, minimum lease payments were made by the Authority of £126,168 (£118,840 in 2015/16) in respect of
those assets held as a finance lease.

Operating Leases

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000

No later than one year 485 457

Later than one year and not later than five years 817 587

Later than five years 208 142

1,510 1,186

The expenditure charged to the services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the
year in relation to these leases was:

2015/16 2016/17
£'000 £'000

Minimum lease payments 552 564

552 564

Page 79



67

NOTE 35 – LEASES (continued)

Authority as Lessor

Finance Leases

The Council has leased out property on a finance lease, including:
• The Sailing Academy in Pwllheli,
• Rhyd Ddu Centre

These leases are on a peppercorn rent basis and for a term that equates to the economic life of the assets. No
premium has been received for these leases.

Operating Leases

The Authority leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes:
• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community centres
• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000

No later than one year 439 394

Later than one year and not later than five years 599 629

Later than five years 2,243 2,732

3,281 3,755

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the
lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2016/17 £908,227 minimum lease payments
were receivable by the Authority (£828,936 in 2015/16).

Page 80



68

NOTE 36 – EXIT PACKAGES

The number of exit packages with total cost per band, and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are
set out in the table below. The cost in the table below reflects the related package cost to the employer, rather than
the actual value of the payments to the individuals. In accordance with the requirements the related commitments as
known to the Council as at 31 March 2017 are included. Included below are the related gross costs but not the
financial savings to the Council, where appropriate.

Exit package cost
band (including

special payments)

Number of
compulsory

redundancies

Number of other
departures

agreed

Total number of
exit packages by

cost band

Total cost of exit
packages in each

band

£ 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000

0 - 20,000 77 32 11 35 88 67 397 485

20,001 - 40,000 31 2 5 17 36 19 1,018 517

40,001 - 60,000 3 3 1 0 4 3 207 136

60,001 - 80,000 2 0 1 2 3 2 193 123

80,001 - 100,000 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 81

Reflects
adjustment to
previous year

estimates

11 23

Total 113 37 18 55 131 92 1,826 1,365

NOTE 37 – PENSIONS SCHEMES ACCOUNTED FOR AS DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
SCHEMES

Teachers employed by the Authority are members of the Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by the
Government’s Department for Education. The scheme provides teachers with specified benefits upon their
retirement, and the Authority contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of
members' pensionable salaries.

The scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the scheme is unfunded and the Department for
Education uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by local authorities.
The Authority is not able to identify its share of underlying financial position and performance of the scheme with
sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore
accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

In 2016/17 the Council paid £6.63m (£6.42m in 2015/16) in respect of teachers’ pension costs, which represented
15.74% (15.15% in 2015/16) of teachers’ pensionable pay. In addition the Council is responsible for the costs of any
additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside of the terms for the teachers’ scheme. In 2016/17 these
amounted to £1.17m (£1.18m in 2015/16) representing 2.79% (2.75% in 2015/16) of teachers’ pensionable pay.
These costs are accounted for on a defined benefits basis and are included in Note 38.

Page 81



69

NOTE 38 – PENSION COSTS

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Authority makes
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable
until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to make the payments. These need to be disclosed at the
time that employees earn their future entitlement.

Gwynedd Council participates in two post-employment schemes:
a) The Local Government Pension Scheme administered locally by Gwynedd Council. This is a funded

defined benefit scheme based on final salary for service up to 31 March 2014, and based on a career
average salary from 1 April 2014. The Authority and the employees pay contributions into the fund,
calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.

b) Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early
retirement. This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when
awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and
cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

The Gwynedd Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme
and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions Committee of Gwynedd Council. Policy is
determined in accordance with the Local Government Pensions Scheme Regulations. The investment managers of
the fund are appointed by the committee.

The principal risks to the Authority from the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the
scheme, structural changes to the scheme (such as large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation,
bond yields and the performance of equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent
by the statutory requirements to charge the amounts required by statue as described in the accounting policies note
to the General Fund.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge it is required to
make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement
benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the
Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Page 82



70

NOTE 38 – PENSION COSTS (continued)

Change in the Fair Value of
Plan Assets, Defined Benefit
Obligation and Net Liability

Period ended 31 March
2016

Period ended 31 March
2017

Assets Liabilities
Net

(liability)
/asset

Assets Liabilities
Net

(liability)
/asset

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Fair Value of Employer Assets 530,343 0 530,343 547,025 0 547,025
Present Value of Funded Liabilities 0 (750,818) (750,818) 0 (699,750) (699,750)
Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities 0 (28,246) (28,246) 0 (25,607) (25,607)
Opening Position at 1 April 530,343 (779,064) (248,721) 547,025 (725,357) (178,332)
Service Cost
Current Service Cost* 0 (21,913) (21,913) 0 (19,784) (19,784)
Past Service Costs (including
curtailments)

0 (297) (297) 0 (232) (232)

Total Service Cost 0 (22,210) (22,210) 0 (20,016) (20,016)
Net interest
Interest Income on Plan Assets
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit

17,023 0 17,023 19,183 0 19,183

Obligation 0 (25,039) (25,039) 0 (25,426) (25,426)
Total Net Interest 17,023 (25,039) (8,016) 19,183 (25,426) (6,243)
Total Defined Benefit Cost
Recognised in Profit/(Loss)

17,023 (47,249) (30,226) 19,183 (45,442) (26,259)

Cash flows
Plan participants’ contributions 4,683 (4,683) 0 4,992 (4,992) 0
Employer contributions 16,894 0 16,894 17,962 0 17,962
Contributions in respect of
unfunded benefits

1,709 0 1,709 1,706 0 1,706

Benefits Paid (18,303) 18,303 0 (20,072) 20,072 0
Unfunded Benefits Paid (1,709) 1,709 0 (1,706) 1,706 0
Expected Closing Position 550,640 (810,984) (260,344) 569,090 (754,013) (184,923)
Remeasurements
Change in demographic assumptions 0 0 0 0 3,839 3,839
Change in financial assumptions 0 77,463 77,463 0 (109,365) (109,365)
Other experience 0 8,164 8,164 0 (25,588) (25,588)
Return on Assets excluding
amounts included in net interest

(3,615) 0 (3,615) 80,624 0 80,624

Total remeasurements
recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(3,615) 85,627 82,012 80,624 (131,114) (50,490)

Fair Value of Employer Assets 547,025 0 547,025 649,714 0 649,714
Present Value of Funded Liabilities 0 (699,750) (699,750) 0 (856,715) (856,715)
Present Value of Unfunded
Liabilities**

0 (25,607) (25,607) 0 (28,412) (28,412)

Closing Position at 31 March 547,025 (725,357) (178,332) 649,714 (885,127) (235,413)
* The current service cost includes an allowance for administration expenses of 0.5% of payroll
** This liability comprises approximately £10,925,000 in respect of LGPS unfunded pensions and £17,487,000 in respect of
Teachers' unfunded pensions. For unfunded liabilities as at 31 March 2017, it is assumed that all unfunded pensions are payable
for the remainder of the member's life. It is further assumed that 90% of pensioners are married (or cohabiting) at death and that
their spouse (cohabitee) will receive a pension of 50% of the member's pension as at the date of the member's death.

The Major Categories of Plan Assets as a Percentage of Total Plan Assets

The actuary has provided a detailed breakdown of Fund assets in accordance with the requirements of IAS19. This
analysis distinguishes between the nature and risk of those assets, and to further break them down between those
with a quoted price in an active market and those that do not. The asset split for Gwynedd Council is assumed to be
in the same proportion to the Fund’s asset allocation as at 31 December 2016. The split is shown in the table below.
The actuary estimates the bid value of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2017 to be £1,843m based on information
provided by the Administering Authority and allowing for index returns where necessary.

Page 83



71

NOTE 38 – PENSION COSTS (continued)

Fair Value of Employer Assets

The asset values below are at bid value as required under IAS19.

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2017
Asset Category

Quoted
Prices in

Active
Markets

Prices
not

quoted
in

Active
Markets

Total

Quoted
Prices

in
Active

Markets

Prices
not

quoted
in

Active
Markets

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 % £’000 £’000 £’000 %
Equity Securities
Consumer 17,398 0 17,398 3 22,276 0 22,276 3
Manufacturing 0 0 0 0 20,119 0 20,119 3
Energy and Utilities 2,997 0 2,997 1 3,618 0 3,618 1
Financial Institutions 8,917 0 8,917 2 12,461 0 12,461 2
Health and Care 31,539 0 31,539 6 32,068 0 32,068 5
Information Technology 18,103 0 18,103 3 26,123 0 26,123 4
Other 21,793 0 21,793 4 1,780 0 1,780 0
Private Equity
All 0 22,227 22,227 4 0 29,349 29,349 5
Debt Securities
Other 0 73,108 73,108 13 0 81,166 81,166 12
Real Estate
UK Property 10,439 46,057 56,496 10 14,275 35,476 49,751 8
Overseas Property 0 1,033 1,033 0 0 1,319 1,319 0
Investment Funds
and Unit Trusts
Equities 111,036 160,978 272,014 50 138,871 197,659 336,530 52
Bonds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Infrastructure 0 4,552 4,552 1 0 8,711 8,711 1
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
All 16,848 0 16,848 3 24,443 0 24,443 4
Total 239,070 307,955 547,025 100 296,034 353,680 649,714 100

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that
will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, life expectancy and salary levels. Life
expectancy is based on fund-specific projections called VitaCurves with long-term improvement assumed to have
already peaked and converging to 1.25% per annum.

Both the Gwynedd Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been estimated by Hymans Robertson,
an independent firm of actuaries. Estimates for the Gwynedd Pension Fund were based on the latest full valuation of
the scheme as at 31 March 2016. The significant assumptions used by the actuary in the following table have had a
significant impact on the values of the assets and liabilities as follows:-

Page 84



72

NOTE 38 – PENSION COSTS (continued)

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

Financial Assumptions % p.a. % p.a.

Pensions Increase Rate 2.2 2.4

Salary Increase Rate* 4.2 2.4

Inflation Rate 2.2 2.4

Discount Rate 3.5 2.6

Long-term expected rate of return on all
categories of assets 3.5 2.6

Take-up option to convert annual
pension into retirement lump sum

for pre-April 2008 service 50 50

for post-April 2008 service 75 75

Mortality assumptions Years Years

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners

Men 22 22

Women 24 24

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners

Men 24.4 24.0

Women 26.6 26.4

*For unfunded liabilities as at 31 March 2017, it is assumed that all unfunded pensions are payable for the remainder of the member’s life. It is
further assumed that 90% of pensioners are married (or cohabiting) at death and that their spouse (cohabitee) will receive a pension of 50% of
the member’s pension at the date of the member’s death.

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above.
In order to quantify the impact of a change in the financial assumptions used, the actuary has calculated and
compared the value of the scheme liabilities as at 31 March 2017 on varying bases. The approach taken is consistent
with that adopted to derive the IAS19 figures provided in this note.

To quantify the uncertainty around life expectancy, the actuary has calculated the difference in cost to the Council of
a one-year increase in life expectancy. For sensitivity purposes this is assumed to be an increase in the cost of
benefits of broadly 3%. In practice the actual cost of a one-year increase in life expectancy will depend on the
structure of the revised assumption (i.e. if improvements to survival rates predominantly apply at younger or older
ages). The figures in the table below have been derived based on the membership profile of the Council as at 31
March 2016, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation. The approach taken in preparing the sensitivity analysis
shown is consistent with that adopted in the previous year.

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

Change in assumption Approximate
increase to
Employer

Approximate
monetary
amount

31 March 2017 31 March 2017
% £’000

0.5% decrease in real discount rate 11 93,116
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate 2 18,421
0.5% increase in the pension increase rate 8 73,112

Page 85



73

NOTE 38 – PENSION COSTS (continued)

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption (i.e. member life expectancy). For sensitivity
purposes, we estimate that a one-year increase in life expectancy would approximately increase the Employer’s
Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5%. In practice the actual cost of a one-year increase in life expectancy will
depend on the structure of the revised assumption (i.e. if improvements to survival rates predominantly apply at
younger or older ages).

Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows

One of the objectives of the scheme is that employer contributions should be kept at as constant a rate as possible.
Gwynedd Council has agreed a strategy with the fund’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20
years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis.

The contributions paid by the Council are set by the Fund Actuary at each triennial valuation (the most recent being
as at 31 March 2016), or at any other time as instructed to do so by the Administering Authority. The contributions
payable over the period to 31 March 2020 are set out in the Rates and Adjustments certificate. For further details
on the approach adopted to set contribution rates for the Council, please refer to the 2016 actuarial report dated
31 March 2017.

Information about the Defined Benefit Obligation

Liability Split
Weighted

Average
Duration

£’000 %

Active Members 445,625 52.0 24.7
Deferred Members 135,913 15.9 25.3
Pensioner Members 275,177 32.1 12.0
Total 856,715 100.0 19.6

The above figures are for funded obligations only and do not include unfunded pensioner liabilities. The durations are
effective at the previous formal valuation as at 31 March 2016.

Impact in Future Years

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pensions Scheme by the Council in the year
to 31 March 2018 are £23.2m

As the Actuary’s report is based on estimates and due to timing issues, there is a variance of £831,890 in 2016/17
(£1,443,736 in 2015/16) between the deficit in the Scheme based on the Actuarial figures in comparison with the
liability related to the defined benefit pension schemes in the Balance Sheet. This variance has been treated as
Actuarial Gains and Losses on Pension Assets and Liabilities and therefore has been included in the Liability related
to the defined benefit pension schemes in the Balance Sheet.

NOTE 39 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority.

The position below relates to circumstances involving two specific contingent liabilities:

• The capping and aftercare requirements for the Authority’s landfill sites – the provision contained in the
accounts is based on existing and known circumstances, in addition to relevant forecasts. However, the
actual final cost may differ from the current estimated future cost.

Page 86



74

NOTE 39 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

• This Authority is exposed to a potential insurance liability relating to the insurance arrangements of its
predecessor authorities, being Gwynedd County Council, Arfon Borough Council, Dwyfor District Council,
and Meirionnydd District Council, and the closure of the Municipal Mutual Insurance (M.M.I.) Fund on 30
September 1992.

M.M.I. made a scheme of arrangement with its creditors, by which, if M.M.I. had insufficient funds to meet
future claims, a claw-back clause would be triggered (i.e. Scheme of Arrangements) which could affect claims
paid since 1992-93. On 13 November 2012, the directors of the Company concluded that the terms of the
Scheme of Arrangement should be triggered and served notice on the Scheme Administrator and the
Company to that effect. The decision is irrevocable. An initial levy of 15% of the payments made since 30
September 1992 was paid during 2013/14, and a further 10% was paid in 2016/17.

However, in accordance with the scheme, a further levy may be raised should the original levy be insufficient
to meet M.M.I.’s liabilities in the longer term. Gwynedd Council is of the opinion that it would be prudent to
continue with the provision in the expectation that the original levy will be inadequate. The current related
estimated maximum potential liability to this authority is in the order of up to almost £850,000.

NOTE 40 – TRUSTS

The Council acts as sole trustee for 172 bequests such as school prize funds, and comforts and improvements funds
for numerous Council Establishments. The largest fund, the Welsh Church Fund, has a completely separate
accounting ledger, whereas, the Council holds the property for 171 of these bequests but makes no decision on the
funds use. In every case, the funds do not represent the assets of the Council and therefore they have not been
included in the Balance Sheet.

The total balance of the 171 bequests derecognised from the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 was
£679,691 (£646,045 on 31 March 2016). The funds are fully invested to generate income.

The largest bequests, The Welsh Church Fund and FMG Morgan Trust Fund, are detailed in Appendices A and B of
these accounts.

Page 87



75

NOTE 41 – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

Prosiect GwyriAD is a Service Concession Arrangement, otherwise known as a ’Private Finance Initiative’ (PFI)
scheme. The construction commenced in 2012/13 and the plant became operational in September 2013. It is a
treatment plant for source segregated food waste from Gwynedd residents and businesses (mainly) using Anaerobic
Digestion (AD) technology. The enterprise is assisting the Authority to meet its recycling targets, and to work
within its allowances for landfilling of Biodegradable Municipal Waste for a period of 15 years.

The assets used to provide the service are recognised on the Authority’s Balance Sheet. The value of the related
assets was £4.0m as at 31 March 2017 (£4.2m as at 31 March 2016). The Authority makes an agreed payment (gate
fee) each year based on a minimum amount of tonnage which is increased each year by inflation and can be reduced
if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards in any year. The Authority has the right to
increase the amount of tonnages over the agreed 7,500 tons to a maximum of 11,000 tons, and will pay a reduced
gate fee for anything over 7,500 tons.

Payment
for Services

Reimbursement of
Capital Expenditure

Interest Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Paid in 2016/17 498 126 139 763

Payable in 2017/18 498 134 131 763

Payable within 2 to 5 years 1,991 623 437 3,051

Payable within 6 to 10 years 2,489 1,022 304 3,815

Payable within 11 to 15 years 704 348 28 1,080

Total 6,180 2,253 1,039 9,472

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have been calculated to
compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and
interest payable.

The contractor receives income from energy that is generated from the waste which has enabled them to keep the
unitary payment low for the Authority. If the income is higher than what is in the contract, there is an arrangement
for it to be shared between the contractor and Gwynedd Council.

The liability outstanding to be paid to the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows:

2016/17

Lease Liability Deferred Income
£’000 £’000

Balance outstanding at 1 April 2016 (2,253) (1,810)
Repayment of principal during the year 126 0
Release of deferred income 0 146
Balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 (2,127) (1,664)

Either party can terminate the agreement at any time should there be deficiencies, subject to giving notice in
accordance with the terms of the agreement. Equally, the Authority can unilaterally terminate the agreement in
accordance with the terms therein. There would be compensation payments linked to any termination arrangement.
At the expiry of the agreement, the Authority has the right to re-tender for a contractor to provide the service.

Page 88



76

NOTE 42 – JOINT OPERATIONS AND JOINT COMMITTEES

The Council currently participates in a number of joint operations with neighbouring North Wales authorities.

During 2016/17, Gwynedd Council participated in four joint committees, collaborating in particular areas between
Local Authorities. Separate accounts are required for joint committees. The four joint committees relating to
Gwynedd in 2016/17 are:

• Special Educational Needs Joint Committee (SEN)
• Joint Planning Policy Committee
• GwE
• North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project (NWRWTP)

The Joint Committee accounts follow the same timetable in terms of the statutory dates for the completion of the
accounts. In the circumstances, Gwynedd Council’s accounts reflects the related actual net liability, although the
subjective analysis position varies subject to the circumstances, and the reporting arrangements of the various joint
committees. The figures and the share relating to Gwynedd have been included in the table below:

Joint
Committee

Leading
Council

(for
Finance)

Councils participating in the
Joint Committees

Gwynedd
Council’s

Share

%

Value of
Gwynedd’s Share

(Income and
Expenditure

Account)

£’000

Special Educational
Needs Joint
Committee

Gwynedd
Council

Gwynedd Council
Isle of Anglesey County Council

61.4% 779

Joint Planning
Policy Committee

Gwynedd
Council

Gwynedd Council
Isle of Anglesey County Council

50% 483

GwE Gwynedd
Council

Conwy County Borough Council
Denbighshire County Council
Flintshire County Council
Gwynedd Council
Isle of Anglesey County Council
Wrexham County Borough Council

17.77% 728

North Wales
Residual Waste
Treatment Project

Flintshire
County
Council

Conwy County Borough Council
Denbighshire County Council
Flintshire County Council
Gwynedd Council
Isle of Anglesey County Council

20% 83

The individual joint committees’ accounts are available on the website of the leading council in respect of the finance
and accountancy service.

NOTE 43 – EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There are no known events after the balance sheet date to report.

Page 89



77

GWYNEDD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

31 March
2016 Notes

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000
Dealings with members, employers and
others directly involved in the Fund

67,317 Contributions receivable 7 67,695

8 Interest on deferred contributions 7

3 Income from divorce calculations 2

5,075 Transfers in from other pension schemes 8 5,893

72,403 Total contributions received 73,597

(55,186) Benefits payable 9 (53,982)

(2,852) Payments to and on account of leavers 10 (3,970)

(58,038) Total benefits paid (57,952)

14,365 15,645

(10,060) Management Expenses 11 (11,641)

Returns on Investments

11,874 Investment income 14 12,886

(530) Taxes on income 15 (378)

12,383
Profit and (loss) on disposal of investments and
changes in the market value of investments

16 322,316

23,727 Returns on investments net of tax 334,824

28,032
Increase in the net assets available for
benefits during the year 338,828

Net assets of the Fund

1,497,373 At 1 April 1,525,405

28,032 Increase in net assets 338,828

1,525,405 1,864,233

Page 90



78

NET ASSETS STATEMENT

31 March
2016 Notes

31 March
2017

£'000 £'000

1,455,230 Investment assets 16 1,798,325

42,631 Cash deposits 16 49,248

1,497,861 1,847,573

(64) Investment liabilities 16 (235)

31,887 Current assets 21 20,984

(4,279) Current liabilities 22 (4,089)

1,525,405 1,864,233

The Financial Statements do not take into account the Fund’s liability to pay pensions and other benefits to all the
present contributors to the Fund after the scheme year-end, but rather summarises the transactions and net assets
of the scheme. The liabilities of the Fund are taken into account in the periodic actuarial valuations of the Fund (most
recently as at 31 March 2016) and are reflected in the levels of employers’ contributions determined at the valuation,
so that the Fund will again be able to meet 100% of future liabilities. The actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits is shown in Note 20.

Page 91



79

NOTES TO THE GWYNEDD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF FUND

The Gwynedd Pension Fund (“the Fund”) is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and is administered by
Gwynedd Council. The council is the reporting entity for this pension fund. The following description of the Fund is a
summary only. For more detail, reference should be made to the Gwynedd Pension Fund Annual Report 2016/17 and
the underlying statutory powers underpinning the scheme, namely the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

a) General
The Fund is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is administered in accordance with
the following secondary legislation:

- the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended);
- the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment)

Regulations 2014 (as amended);
- the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as

amended).

It is a contributory defined pension scheme administered by Gwynedd Council to provide pensions and other
benefits for pensionable employees of Gwynedd Council, two other local authorities and other schedule,
resolution and admission bodies within the former Gwynedd County Council area. Teachers, police officers
and firefighters are not included as they are in other national pension schemes. The Fund is overseen by the
Pensions Committee, which is a committee of Gwynedd Council.

b) Membership
Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the scheme, remain in
the scheme or make their own personal arrangements outside the scheme. Organisations participating in the
Gwynedd Pension Fund include:

- Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are automatically entitled
to be members of the Fund.

- Resolution bodies, which are city, town and community councils. They have the power to decide if
their employees can join the LGPS and pass a resolution accordingly.

- Admission bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the Fund under an admission
agreement between the Fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted bodies include voluntary,
charitable and similar bodies or private contractors undertaking a local authority function following
outsourcing to the private sector.

Page 92



80

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF FUND (continued)

The following bodies are active employers within the Pension Fund:

Scheduled Bodies

Gwynedd Council Snowdonia National Park
Conwy County Borough Council Bryn Eilian School
Isle of Anglesey County Council Emrys ap Iwan School
Police and Crime Commissioner for North
Wales

Pen y Bryn School

Llandrillo – Menai Group Eirias High School
GWE NWTRA

Resolution Bodies

Llanllyfni Community Council Ffestiniog Town Council
Bangor City Council Llandudno Town Council
Abergele Town Council Llangefni Town Council
Colwyn Bay Town Council Menai Bridge Town Council
Beaumaris Town Council Towyn and Kinmel Bay Town Council
Holyhead Town Council Tywyn Town Council
Caernarfon Town Council Conwy Town Council

Admission Bodies

Coleg Harlech WEA North Wales Society for the Blind
CAIS Conwy Voluntary Services
Conwy Citizens Advice Bureau Careers Wales North West
Ynys Môn Citizens Advice Bureau Mantell Gwynedd
Cwmni Cynnal Medrwn Môn
Cwmni'r Fran Wen Menter Môn
Holyhead Joint Burial Committee

Community Admission Bodies

Cartrefi Conwy Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd

Transferee Admission Bodies

Caterlink Jewsons
Superclean 1 Antur Teifi
ABM Catering

c) Funding
Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members of
the Fund in accordance with the LGPS (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 and range
from 2.75% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2017. Employers also make
contributions which are set based on triennial actuarial funding valuations. New employer contribution rates
were applied for the three years from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017 following the actuarial valuation carried
out as at 31 March 2013.

d) Benefits
Prior to 1 April 2014 pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable pay and length of
pensionable service, summarised below:

Service pre-1 April 2008 Service post-31 March 2008

Pension
Each year worked is worth
1/80 x final pensionable salary.

Each year worked is worth
1/60 x final pensionable salary.

Lump sum

Automatic lump sum of 3 x salary.
In addition, part of the annual pension can
be exchanged for a one-off tax-free cash
payment. A lump sum of £12 is paid for each
£1 of pension given up.

No automatic lump sum.
Part of the annual pension can be
exchanged for a one-off tax-free cash
payment. A lump sum of £12 is paid for
each £1 of pension given up.

Page 93



81

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF FUND (continued)

From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme as summarised below:

Service post-31 March 2014

Pension
Each year worked is worth
1/49 x career average revalued earnings (CARE)

Lump Sum

No automatic lump sum.
Part of the annual pension can be exchanged for a
one-off tax-free cash payment. A lump sum of £12
is paid for each £1 of pension given up.

Accrued pension is increased annually in line with the Consumer Prices Index.

There are a number of other benefits provided under the scheme including early retirement, disability pensions
and death benefits. For more details, please refer to the Gwynedd Pension Fund scheme handbook available
from Gwynedd Council’s Pensions Section.

Benefits are index-linked in order to keep pace with inflation.

NOTE 2 – BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial year and its position at
year-end as at 31 March 2017. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 which is based upon International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits.
The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the
financial year or the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits. The actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 basis, is disclosed at Note 20 of these
accounts.

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund account – revenue recognition

a) Contribution Income
Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employer, are accounted for on an accruals basis at the
percentage rate recommended by the Fund actuary in the payroll period to which they relate.

Employers deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they are payable under the
schedule of contributions set by the scheme actuary or on receipt if earlier than the due date.

Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the period in which
the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset. Amounts not due
until future years are classed as long-term financial assets.

b) Transfers to and from other schemes
Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have either joined or left
the Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations (see Notes 8 and 10).

Individual transfers in and out are accounted for on a receipts and payments basis, which is normally when the
member liability is accepted or discharged.

Page 94



82

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions (see below) to
purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in Transfers In (see Note 8).

Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer
agreement.

c) Investment income
i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the Fund account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the
financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination. Income includes the amortisation of any
discount or premium, transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of the
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

ii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received by
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

iii) Distributions from pooled funds including property
Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not received by the end of
the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

iv) Movement in the net market value of investments
Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all realised and
unrealised profits/losses during the year.

Fund account – expense items

d) Benefits payable
Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the financial year. Any
amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current liabilities.

e) Taxation
The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as
such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments
sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is
permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it arises.

f) Management expenses
The Code does not require any breakdown of pension Fund administrative expenses. However, in the interests of
greater transparency, the Council discloses its pension Fund management expenses in accordance with the CIPFA
guidance Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs.

Administrative expenses
All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All staff costs of the pensions administration team
are charged direct to the Fund. Associated management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to
the Fund in accordance with Council policy.

Oversight and governance costs
All oversight and governance expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All staff costs, management and other
overheads associated with oversight and governance are apportioned to the Fund in accordance with Council policy.

Investment management expenses
All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Page 95



83

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fees of the external investment managers and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates governing their
appointments. Broadly, these are based on the market value of the investments under their management and
therefore increase or reduce as the value of these investments change.

In addition the Fund has negotiated with Fidelity International that an element of their fee be performance-related.
The cost of obtaining investment advice from external consultants is included in investment management charges.

A proportion of the Council’s costs representing management time spent by officers on investment management is
also charged to the Fund.

Net assets statement

g) Financial assets
Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date. A financial asset
is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the
asset. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of asset are recognised by the Fund.

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined as follows:

i) Market-quoted investments
The value of an investment for which there is a readily available market price is determined by the bid market
price ruling on the final day of the accounting period.

ii) Fixed interest securities
Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current yields.

iii) Unquoted investments
The fair value of investments for which market quotations are not readily available is determined as follows:
- Unquoted securities typically include pooled investments in property, infrastructure, debt securities and

private equity. The valuation of these pools or directly held securities is undertaken by the investment
manager or responsible entity and advised as a unit or security price. The valuation standards followed in
these valuations adhere to industry guidelines or to standards set by the constituent documents of the
pool or the management agreement.

- Investments in unquoted property are valued at the net asset value or a single price advised by the Fund
manager.

- Investments in private equity funds and unquoted listed partnerships are valued based on the fund’s share
of the net assets in the private equity fund or limited partnership using the latest financial statements
published by the respective fund managers in accordance with IFRS guidelines. It is important to recognise
the highly subjective nature of determining the fair value of private equity investments. They are inherently
based on forward-looking estimates and judgements involving many factors.

iv) Pooled investment vehicles
Pooled investments vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer prices are published; or if
single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled investment vehicles that are accumulation funds,
change in market value also includes income which is reinvested in the fund, net of applicable withholding tax.

h) Foreign currency transactions
Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have been accounted for at the spot
market rates at the date of transaction. End-of-year spot market exchange rates are used to value cash balances
held in foreign currency bank accounts, market values of overseas investments and purchases and sales outstanding
at the end of the reporting period.

i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.

Page 96



84

NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

j) Financial liabilities
The Fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date. A financial liability is recognised in the
net assets statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the liability. From this date any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised by the Fund.

k) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme actuary in
accordance with the requirements of IAS19 and relevant actuarial standards.

As permitted under IAS26, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement
benefits by way of a note to the net assets statement (Note 20).

l) Additional voluntary contributions
Gwynedd Pension Fund provides an additional voluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets of
which are invested separately from those of the pension Fund. There are three AVC funds. They are held with
Clerical Medical, The Equitable Life Assurance Society and Standard Life. The AVC providers secure additional
benefits on a money purchase basis for those members electing to pay additional voluntary contributions. Members
participating in these arrangements each receive an annual statement made up to 31 March confirming the amounts
held in their account and the movements in year.

AVCs are not included in the accounts in accordance with section 4(2)(b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/3093) but are disclosed as a note only (Note 23).

NOTE 4 – CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unquoted private equity and infrastructure investments
It is important to recognise the highly subjective nature of determining the fair value of private equity investments.
They are inherently based on forward-looking estimates and judgements involving many factors. Unquoted private
equities and infrastructure are valued by the investment managers using guidelines set out by IFRS accounting
standards. The value of unquoted securities at 31 March 2017 was £110 million (£82 million at 31 March 2016).

Pension fund liability
The pension fund liability is calculated every three years by the appointed actuary, with annual updates in the
intervening years. The methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines and in accordance with IAS19.
Assumptions underpinning the valuations are agreed with the actuary and are summarised in Note 19. This estimate
is subject to significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions.

NOTE 5 – ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the accounts. Estimates and assumptions are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with
certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the net assets statement at 31 March 2017 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in
the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Page 97



85

NOTE 5 – ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Item Uncertainties
Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions

Debtors At 31 March 2017, the Fund had a balance of
sundry debtors of £5.6m. A review of
significant balances suggested that it was not
appropriate to make any impairment of the
debts.

If collection rates were to deteriorate, it
would be necessary to reconsider this
decision.

Private equity and
infrastructure

Private equity and infrastructure investments
are valued at fair value in accordance with
British Venture Capital Association
guidelines. These investments are not publicly
listed and as such there is a degree of
estimation involved in the valuation.

The total private equity and infrastructure
investments in the financial statements are
£110 million. There is a risk that this
investment may be under or overstated in
the accounts.

NOTE 6 – EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There are no significant events after the balance sheet date to report.

Page 98



86

NOTE 7 – CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

By category

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

52,149 Employers 52,439

15,168 Employees/Members 15,256

67,317 67,695

By authority

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

22,722 Gwynedd Council 23,210

40,256 Other scheduled bodies 40,231

1,660 Admission bodies 1,514

2,227 Community admission bodies 2,215

203 Transferee admission bodies 252

195 Resolution bodies 219

54 Closed fund* 54

67,317 67,695
* Closed fund – These are contributions received from North Wales Magistrates Court Committee which was an admitted body
but is now a closed fund.

By contribution

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

15,168 Employees’ normal contributions 15,256

45,106 Employers’ normal contributions 46,570

7,043 Employers’ deficit recovery contributions 5,869

67,317 67,695

NOTE 8 – TRANSFERS IN FROM OTHER PENSION FUNDS

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

3,889 Group transfers 1,315

1,186 Individual transfers 4,578

5,075 5,893

Page 99



87

NOTE 9 - BENEFITS PAYABLE

By category

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

39,477 Pensions 41,081

14,070 Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 11,093

1,639 Lump sum death benefits 1,808

55,186 53,982

By authority

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

15,094 Gwynedd Council 15,233

27,319 Other scheduled bodies 25,701

1,275 Admission bodies 1,561

709 Community admission body 1,095

35 Transferee admission body 173

86 Resolution body 58

10,668 Closed fund 10,161

55,186 53,982

NOTE 10 – PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

96
Refunds to members leaving service net of tax
repayments 103

77 Payments for members joining state scheme 11

2,679 Individual transfers 3,856

2,852 3,970

NOTE 11 – MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

1,186 Administrative costs 1,242

8,815 Investment management expenses (Note 13) 10,343

59 Oversight and governance costs 56

10,060 11,641

This analysis of the costs of managing the Gwynedd Pension Fund during the period has been prepared in accordance
with CIPFA guidance.

Page 100



88

NOTE 12 – ADMINISTRATIVE, OVERSIGHT AND GOVERNANCE COSTS

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

Administrative costs

447 Direct employee costs 486

368 Other direct costs 293

257 Support services, including IT 303

29 External audit fees 33

85 Actuarial fees 128

1,186 1,243

Oversight and governance costs

59 Pensions Committee 55

1,245 1,298

Administrative expenses include amounts charged to the Pension Fund by Gwynedd Council for staff costs, support
services and accommodation. Further details are given in Note 24.

NOTE 13 – INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

8,685 Management fees 10,258

54 Custody fees 45

19 Performance monitoring service 3

57 Investment consultancy fees 37

8,815 10,343

The management fees disclosed above include all investment management fees directly incurred by the Fund including
those charged on pooled investment funds.

The investment management expenses above include £322,972 (2015/16 £748,579) in respect of performance-related
fees paid to one of the Fund’s investment managers. In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through
the bid-offer spread on investment sales and purchases. They are reflected in the cost of investment purchases and in
the proceeds of sales of investments (see Note 16a).

Page 101



89

NOTE 14 – INVESTMENT INCOME

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

788 UK equities 427

6,019 Overseas equities 6,405

853 Private equity 1,239

302 Infrastructure 207

3,764 Pooled property investments 4,475

148 Interest on cash deposits 133

11,874 12,886

The Gwynedd Pension Fund has three bank accounts which are held as part of Gwynedd Council's Group of Bank
Accounts. The overall surplus cash held in the Group of Bank Accounts is invested on a daily basis. At the end of the
financial year, Gwynedd Council pays interest over to the Pension Fund, based on the Fund's daily balances over the
year.

The Council had a deposit of £4m with Heritable Bank, which went into administration in October 2008. There
were no distributions during 2016/17. During 2015/16 a distribution of £22,615.66 was received by the Pension
Fund. This amount has been included in the interest on cash deposits figure for 2015/16 in the above table. Further
information is included in Note 27.

The Pension Fund also has a Euro account to deal with receipts and payments in Euros and minimise the number and
costs of exchange transactions.

NOTE 15 – TAXES ON INCOME

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

530 Withholding tax – equities 378

530 378

NOTE 16 – INVESTMENTS

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

Investment assets

198,845 Fixed interest absolute return 236,625

269,784 Equities 345,284

746,944 Pooled equity investments 963,262

157,734 Pooled property investments 142,448

66,278 Private equity 82,023

15,262 Infrastructure 28,053

1,454,847 1,797,695

42,631 Cash deposits 49,248

383 Debtors 630

1,497,861 Total investment assets 1,847,573

Investment liabilities

(64) Amounts payable for purchases (235)

(64) Total investment liabilities (235)

1,497,797 Net investment assets 1,847,338

Page 102



90

Note 16a – Reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives

2016/17

Market
value at
1 April

2016

Purchases
during

the year

Sales
during the

year

Change in
market

value during
the year

Market
value
at 31

March
2017

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed interest absolute return securities 198,845 30,000 0 7,780 236,625

Equities 269,784 73,681 (76,100) 77,919 345,284

Pooled investments 746,944 15,347 (13,492) 214,463 963,262

Pooled property investments 157,734 18,373 (31,465) (2,194) 142,448

Private equity / infrastructure 81,540 29,118 (18,212) 17,630 110,076

1,454,847 166,519 (139,269) 315,598 1,797,695

Cash deposits 42,631 (387) 49,248

Amount receivable for sales of
investments

383 (4) 630

Amounts payable for purchases of
investments

(64) (1) (235)

Fees within pooled vehicles 7,110

Net investment assets 1,497,797 166,519 (139,269) 322,316 1,847,338

2015/16

Market
value at
1 April

2015

Purchases
during

the year

Sales
during the

year

Change in
market

value during
the year

Market
value
at 31

March
2016

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed interest absolute return securities 197,323 0 0 1,522 198,845

Equities 272,050 66,295 (82,842) 14,281 269,784

Pooled investments 773,481 7,279 (5,532) (28,284) 746,944

Pooled property investments 143,288 2,266 0 12,180 157,734

Private equity / infrastructure 71,463 13,516 (12,066) 8,627 81,540

1,457,605 89,356 (100,440) 8,326 1,454,847

Cash deposits 22,082 (47) 42,631

Amount receivable for sales of
investments

420 383

Amounts payable for purchases of
investments

(229) (64)

Fees within pooled vehicles 4,104

Net investment assets 1,479,878 89,356 (100,440) 12,383 1,497,797

Transaction costs, such as commissions, stamp duty and other transaction fees, are included in the cost of purchases
and in sale proceeds. Transaction costs incurred during the year total £171,393 (2015/16 £193,820). In addition to
these costs indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on investment purchases and sales.

Page 103



91

Note 16b – Analysis of investments

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

£’000 £’000

Equities

UK

32,396 Quoted 37,453

Overseas

237,388 Quoted 307,832

Pooled funds

UK

234,401 Unit trusts 301,034

Global (including UK)

198,845 Fixed income 236,625

274,408 Unit trusts 355,661

Overseas

238,135 Unit trusts 306,567

157,734 Property unit trusts 142,447

66,278 Private equity 82,023

15,262 Infrastructure 28,053

1,454,847 1,797,695

Investments analysed by fund manager

Market Value at
31 March 2016

Market Value at
31 March 2017

£’000 % £’000 %

470,435 31.4 BlackRock 601,837 32.6

305,122 20.4 Fidelity 399,686 21.6

198,852 13.3 Insight 236,632 12.8

29,845 2.0 Lothbury 39,599 2.1

81,540 5.4 Partners Group 110,076 6.0

15,931 1.0 Threadneedle 16,476 0.9

83,346 5.6 UBS 48,112 2.6

312,726 20.9 Veritas 394,920 21.4

1,497,797 100.0 1,847,338 100.0

The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the scheme:

Market value
31 March 2016

% of total
Fund Security

Market value
31 March 2017

% of total
Fund

£’000 £’000

274,408 17.99 Fidelity Institutional Select Global Equity 355,661 19.08

234,400 15.37
BlackRock Asset Management Aquila Life UK
Equity Index Fund

301,033 16.15

198,845 13.04 Insight Umbrella Holdings 236,625 12.69

95,490 6.26
BlackRock Asset Management Aquila Life Global
Dev Fundamental Fund

129,078 6.92

Note 16c – Stock lending
The Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) states that stock lending will be permitted subject to specific approval.
Currently the Fund does not undertake any stock lending.

Page 104



92

NOTE 17 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Note 17a – Classification of financial instruments
Accounting policies describe how different asset classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities by category and net assets statement heading. No financial assets were reclassified during
the accounting period.

As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2017

Designated
as fair value

through
profit and

loss

Loans
and

receivables

Financial
liabilities
at cost

Designated
as fair value

through
profit and

loss

Loans
and

receivables

Financial
liabilities
at cost

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets

198,845 Fixed interest securities 236,625

269,784 Equities 345,284

746,944 Pooled investments 963,262

157,734 Pooled property investments 142,448

66,278 Private equity 82,023

15,262 Infrastructure 28,053

63,065 Cash 64,623

11,836 Debtors 6,239

1,454,847 74,901 0 1,797,695 70,862 0

Financial liabilities

(64) (4,279) Creditors (4,324)

(64) (4,279) (4,324)

1,454,783 74,901 (4,279) 1,797,695 70,862 (4,324)

Note 17b – Net gains and losses on financial instruments

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

Fair value Fair value

£’000 £’000

Financial assets

8,325 Fair value through profit and loss 315,598

(36) Loans and receivables (392)

8,289 Total financial assets 315,206

Financial liabilities

0 Fair value through profit and loss 0

0 Financial liabilities at cost 0

0 Total financial liabilities 0

8,289 Net financial assets 315,206

Page 105



93

Note 17c – Fair value of financial instruments and liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities by class of instrument
compared with their fair values.

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
Carrying

value
Fair

value
Carrying

value
Fair

value

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets

1,057,007 1,454,847 Fair value through profit and loss 1,120,845 1,797,695

74,901 74,901 Loans and receivables 70,815 70,811

1,131,908 1,529,748 Total financial assets 1,191,660 1,868,506

Financial liabilities

(64) (64) Fair value through profit and loss (235) (235)

(4,279) (4,279) Financial liabilities at cost (4,038) (4,038)

(4,343) (4,343) Total financial liabilities (4,273) (4,273)

1,127,565 1,525,405 Net financial assets 1,187,387 1,864,233

The Fund has not entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as financial
instruments.

Note 17d – Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value
The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of
information used to determine fair values.

Level 1
Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as Level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed
securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts. Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value
of the investment is based on the bid market quotation of the relevant stock exchange.

Level 2
Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to
determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data.

Level 3
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments could include unquoted equity
investments and hedge fund of funds, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require significant
judgement in determining appropriate assumptions.

The values of the investment in private equity are based on valuations provided by the general partners to the
private equity funds in which Gwynedd Pension Fund has invested. These valuations are prepared in accordance
with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, which follow the valuation principles
of IFRS and US GAAP.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped into Levels
1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable.

Page 106



94

Note 17d – Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Quoted
market

price

Using
observable

inputs

With
significant

unobservable
inputs

Values at 31 March 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss 822,831 864,788 110,076 1,797,695

Loans and receivables 70,811 0 0 70,811

Total financial assets 893,642 864,788 110,076 1,868,506

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss 0 (235) 0 (235)

Financial liabilities at cost (4,038) 0 0 (4,038)

Total financial liabilities (4,038) (235) 0 (4,273)

Net financial assets 889,604 864,553 110,076 1,864,233

Quoted
market

price

Using
observable

inputs

With
significant

unobservable
inputs

Values at 31 March 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss 633,363 739,944 81,540 1,454,847

Loans and receivables 74,901 0 0 74,901

Total financial assets 708,264 739,944 81,540 1,529,748

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss 0 (64) 0 (64)

Financial liabilities at cost (4,279) 0 0 (4,279)

Total financial liabilities (4,279) (64) 0 (4,343)

Net financial assets 703,985 739,880 81,540 1,525,405

Page 107



95

NOTE 18 – NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Risk and risk management
The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. promised benefits
payable to members). Therefore the aim of investment risk management is to minimise the risk of an overall
reduction in the value of the Fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The
Fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk to an acceptable level. In addition,
the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows. The
Council manages these investment risks as part of its overall Pension Fund risk management programme.

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with the Pensions Committee. The Pension Fund’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the resources available to pay pensions. The Funding Strategy Statement produced by
the Administering Authority in conjunction with the Fund’s Actuaries states how solvency and risk will be managed
in relation to liabilities. The Administering Authority has produced this Funding Strategy Statement having taken an
overall view of the level of risk inherent in the investment policy set out in the Statement of Investment Principles
published under Regulation 12 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009 (the Investment Regulations) and the funding policy set out in this Statement. The Administering
Authority will continue to review both documents to ensure that the overall risk profile remains appropriate.

a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk for its investment activities, particularly through its equity
holdings. The level of risk exposure depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield
movements and the asset mix.

The objective of the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk exposure within
acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in terms of
geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, the Council and its investment
advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmark analysis.

The Fund manages these risks in two ways:
• the exposure of the Fund to market risk is monitored through a risk factor analysis to ensure that risk

remains within tolerable levels,
• specific risk exposure is limited by applying risk-weighted maximum exposures to individual investments

Other price risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the
market.

The Fund is exposed to share price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which the future price is
uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk
resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. Possible losses from
shares sold short are unlimited.

The Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and
other financial instruments is monitored by the Council to ensure it is within the limits set in the Fund investment
strategy.

Other price risk – sensitivity analysis
Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, in
consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, the Council has determined that the following movements in
market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2016/17 reporting period.

Page 108



96

NOTE 18 – NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Following analysis of the observed historical volatility of asset class returns in consultation with the Fund’s
investment advisors potential price changes have been determined for the various classes of assets held by the Fund.
The rates to be applied to the Fund’s asset categories are as follows:

Asset type Potential market movement (+/-)
31 March 2016 31 March 2017

% %

UK Equities 9.3 15.8
Global Equities
Private Equity
Absolute Return Bonds

9.3
9.3
1.5

18.4
28.5
2.9

Alternatives (Infrastructure) 6.5 11.3
Property 2.3 14.2
Cash

Whole Fund

0.0 0.0

12.8

The potential volatilities disclosed above are consistent with a one-standard deviation movement in the change of
value of the assets over the latest three years. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates, remain the same.

Had the market price of the Fund investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the market
price of the net assets available to pay benefits would have been as follows:

Asset type Value as at 31
March 2017

Percentage
change

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£’000 % £’000 £’000
UK Equities
Global Equities
Private Equity

338,486
970,060
82,023

15.8
18.4
28.5

391,966
1,148,552

105,399

285,005
791,569
58,646

Absolute Return Bonds 236,625 2.9 243,487 229,763
Alternatives (Infrastructure) 28,053 11.3 28,867 27,240
Property 142,448 14.2 158,545 126,351
Cash 49,248 0.0 56,241 42,255
Total assets available to pay
benefits

1,846,943 12.8 2,083,352 1,610,534

* The whole fund values in the table above are based on 12.8% rather than the total of the individual asset types.

Asset type Value as at 31
March 2016

Percentage
change

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£’000 % £’000 £’000
UK Equities
Global Equities
Private Equity

266,797
749,931
66,278

9.3
9.3
9.3

291,475
819,300
70,613

242,118
680,563
61,943

Absolute Return Bonds 198,845 1.5 201,788 195,902
Alternatives (Infrastructure) 15,262 6.5 16,260 14,264
Property 157,734 2.3 161,409 154,059
Cash 42,950 0.0 42,954 42,946
Total assets available to pay
benefits

1,497,797 1,603,799 1,391,795

Interest rate risk
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These investments
are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund’s interest rate risk is routinely monitored in accordance with the Fund’s risk management strategy,
including monitoring the exposure to interest rates and assessment of actual interest rates against the relevant
benchmarks.

Page 109



97

NOTE 18 – NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is set out below.
These disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value:

Asset type As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2017
£’000 £’000

Cash and cash equivalents 20,434 15,375
Cash balances 42,631 49,248
Fixed interest securities 198,845 236,625
Total 261,910 301,248

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The Council recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and the value of net
assets available to pay benefits. A 1% movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as
part of the Fund’s risk management strategy. The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular
exchange rates, remain constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/-
1% change in interest rates:

Asset type Carrying
amount as at

31 March 2017

Change in year in the net assets
available to pay benefits

+1% -1%
£’000 £’000 £’000

Cash and cash equivalents 15,375 154 (154)
Cash balances 49,248 492 (492)
Fixed interest securities* 236,625 (1,538) 1,538
Total change in assets available 301,248 (892) 892

* A change of 1% in interest rate does not have a direct impact on fixed interest securities but does have a partial
impact as calculated in the tables above

Asset type Carrying
amount as at

31 March 2016

Change in year in the net assets
available to pay benefits

+1% -1%
£’000 £’000 £’000

Cash and cash equivalents 20,434 204 (204)
Cash balances 42,631 426 (426)
Fixed interest securities* 198,845 1,869 (1,869)
Total change in assets available 261,910 2,499 (2,499)

* A change of 1% in interest rate does not have a direct impact on fixed interest securities but does have a partial
impact as calculated in the tables above.

The impact that a 1% change in interest rates would have on interest received is minimal as the average interest rate
received on cash during the year was 0.53%, amounting to interest of £132,567 for the year.

A 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed income assets but will reduce their fair
value, as shown in the tables above. Changes in interest rates do not impact on the value of cash / cash equivalents
but they will affect the interest income received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value of assets and
income received from investments impact on the net assets to pay benefits but as noted above this does not have a
significant effect on the Fund.

Currency risk
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on financial instruments that are
denominated in any currency other than the functional currency of the Fund (£UK). The Fund holds assets
denominated in currencies other than £UK.

Page 110



98

NOTE 18 – NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The Fund has made commitments to private equity and infrastructure in foreign currency, (€214 million and $88.6
million). These commitments are being drawn down on request from the investment manager over a number of
years. The current commitments still outstanding are shown in Note 25. The risk is that the pound is weak relative
to the dollar and euro at the time of the drawdown and then strengthens when the Fund is fully funded. The Fund
has been funding the commitments since 2005 and therefore the liability is balanced out over a long period.

The Fund’s currency rate risk has been calculated based on the volatility of the currencies which would affect the
value of the investments and any cash held in those currencies.

The following table summarises the Fund’s currency exposure as at 31 March 2017 and as at the previous year end:

Currency exposure - asset type As at
31 March 2016

As at
31 March 2017

£’000 £’000
Overseas and Global Equities 749,931 970,060
Global Fixed Income 198,845 236,625
Overseas Alternatives (Private Equity and
infrastructure)

81,540 110,076

Overseas Property 3,116 3,636
Overseas Currency 0 0
Total overseas assets 1,033,432 1,320,397

Currency risk – sensitivity analysis
Following analysis of historical data in consultation with the Fund investment advisors, the likely volatility associated
with foreign exchange rate movements has been calculated with reference to the historic volatility of the currencies
and their relative amounts in the Fund’s investments.

A 10% fluctuation in the currency is considered reasonable based on the Fund investment advisors’ analysis of long-
term historical movements in the month-end exchange rates over a rolling 36-month period to 31 March 2017. The
equivalent rate for the year ended 31 March 2016 was 6 %. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant.

The tables below show a breakdown of the Fund's exposure to individual currencies as at March 31, 2017 and at the
end of the previous financial year:

Currency exposure - by asset type Carrying
amount as at

31 March 2017

Change in year in the net assets
available to pay benefits

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£’000 £’000 £’000
Overseas and Global Equities 970,060 1,067,066 873,054
Global Fixed Income 236,625 260,288 212,963
Overseas Alternatives (Private Equity
and infrastructure)

110,076 121,084 99,068

Overseas Property 3,636 4,000 3,273

Total change in assets available 1,320,397 1,452,438 1,188,358

Page 111



99

NOTE 18 – NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Currency exposure - by asset type Carrying
amount as at

31 March 2016

Change in year in the net assets
available to pay benefits

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£’000 £’000 £’000
Overseas and Global Equities 749,931 794,521 705,341
Global Fixed Income 198,845 210,668 187,022
Overseas Alternatives (Private Equity
and infrastructure)

81,540 86,388 76,692

Overseas Property 3,116 3,301 2,931

Total change in assets available 1,033,432 1,094,878 971,986

b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to discharge
an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss. The market values of investments generally reflect an
assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value
of the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities.

In essence the Fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk. However, the selection of
high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure
to settle a transaction in a timely manner.

The benchmark for the concentration of the funds held with investment managers is as follows.

Investment Manager Percentage of Portfolio
BlackRock 29.5%
Fidelity 19.0%
Veritas 19.0%
Insight 15.0%
Property (UBS, Threadneedle, Lothbury, BlackRock) 10.0%
Partners Group 7.5%

All investments held by investment managers are held in the name of the Pension Fund so, if the investment manager
fails, the Fund’s investments are not classed amongst their assets.

Contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment or receipt that remains outstanding. The residual risk is
minimal due to the various insurance policies held by the exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties.

In order to maximise the returns from Short-Term Investments and Cash Deposits, the Council invests any
temporarily surplus funds in its bank accounts along with any surplus funds in the Gwynedd Pension Fund bank
accounts. An appropriate share of the interest earned is paid to the Pension Fund and any losses on investment are
shared with the Pension Fund in the same proportion. Due to the nature of the banking arrangements any surplus
cash in the Pension Fund bank accounts is not transferred to the Council’s bank accounts. As the Short-Term
Investments are made in the name of Gwynedd Council they are shown in full on the Council’s Balance Sheet. The
Pension Fund element of the Short-Term Investments and Cash Deposits at 31 March 2017 was £15.7m (£25.0m at
31 March 2016).

Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently and meet the
Council’s credit criteria. The Council has also set limits as to the maximum percentage of deposits placed with any
one class of financial institution. In addition, the Council invests an agreed percentage of funds in the money markets
to provide diversification. Money market funds chosen all have AAA rating from a leading ratings agency. The
Council believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk, and has had only one experience of default or
uncollectable deposits when Heritable Bank went into administration in 2008. Full details can be seen in Note 27.

Page 112



100

NOTE 18 – NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Employers in the Fund are not currently assessed for their creditworthiness or individual credit limits set. There is
risk of being unable to collect contributions from employers with no contributing members (e.g. risk associated with
employers with a small number of declining contributing members) so the Administering Authority monitors
membership movements on an annual basis.

New employers to the Fund will need to agree to the provision of a bond or obtain a guarantee to reduce the risk
of future financial loss to the Fund in the event of not being able to meet its pension liability on cessation. As shown
in Note 26 three employers have provided bonds. Any future liabilities falling on the Fund as a result of cessation are
borne by the whole Fund and spread across all employers. This is done to ensure that actuarial recovery periods and
amounts are kept at a manageable level for smaller employers.

This risk has increased by a legal judgement, which potentially indicates that employers with no contributing
members cannot be charged contributions under the LGPS Administration Regulations. This ruling, however, does
not affect the ability to collect contributions following a cessation valuation under Regulation 38(2). The Actuary may
be instructed to consider revising the rates and Adjustments certificate to increase an employer's contributions
under Regulation 38 of the LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 between triennial valuations.

c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
council therefore takes steps to ensure that the Pension Fund has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments
to pay pensions and other costs and to meet investment commitments.

The Administering Authority has a cash flow system that seeks to ensure that cash is available if needed. In addition,
current contributions received from contributing employers and members far exceed the benefits being paid. Surplus
cash is invested and cannot be paid back to employers. The Fund’s Actuaries establish the contributions that should
be paid in order that all future liabilities can be met.

There is no limit on the amount that the Pension Fund bank account can hold. The amounts held in this account
should meet the normal liquidity needs of the Fund. Any temporary surplus is invested by the Administering
Authority in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to provide additional income to the
Pension Fund. Surplus cash is invested in accordance with the Statement of Investment Principles.

The Fund also has access to an overdraft facility through the Administering Authority’s group bank account
arrangements. This facility would only be used to meet short-term timing differences on pension payments. As these
borrowings would be of a limited short-term nature, the Fund’s exposure to credit risk is considered negligible.

The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three months. Illiquid assets are those
assets which will take longer than three months to convert into cash. As at 31 March 2017 the value of illiquid assets
was £158m, which represented 8.5% of the total Fund assets (31 March 2016: £143m, which represented 9.4% of the
total Fund assets).

Management prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to understand and manage the timing of the Fund’s cash flows.
The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms part of the Fund investment strategy.

All financial liabilities at 31 March 2017 are due within one year as was the case at 31 March 2016.

Refinancing risk
The key risk is that the Council will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its Pension Fund financial
instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments that have a
refinancing risk as part of its treasury management and investment strategies.

Page 113



101

NOTE 19 – FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008, the Fund’s actuary undertakes
a funding valuation every three years for the purpose of setting employer contribution rates for the forthcoming
triennial period. The last such valuation took place as at 31 March 2016.

Description of Funding Policy
The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) reviewed as part of
the 2016 valuation.

The key elements of the funding policy are:
• to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long-term view. This will ensure that sufficient

funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment.
• to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate.
• to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund by recognising the

link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return.
• to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution rates by having a

clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can best meet its own liabilities
over future years.

• to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the Council Tax payer
from an employer defaulting on it’s pension obligations.

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing the solvency of
the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.

For employers whose covenant was considered by the Administering Authority to be sufficiently strong,
contributions have been stabilised to return their portion of the Fund to full funding over 20 years if the valuation
assumptions are borne out. Asset-liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrates that if these
contribution rates are paid and future contribution changes are constrained as set out in the FSS, there is still around
a 66% chance that the Fund will return to full funding over the 20 years.

Funding Position as at the Last Formal Funding Valuation
The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 was at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 2016 were
valued at £1,525 million, were sufficient to meet 91% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of promised retirement
benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2016 valuation was £145 million.

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full funding within a time
horizon and probability measured as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to
31 March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its FSS.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to Value the Liabilities
Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the valuation report dated 31 March 2017.

Method
The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable membership up
to the valuation date, and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier
date of leaving pensionable membership.

Assumptions
A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of the Fund assets at
their market value.

Page 114



102

NOTE 19 – FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows:

Financial assumptions 31 March 2016
Discount rate 3.9%
Salary increase 2.1%
Benefit increase 2.1%

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy assumptions are based
on the Fund’s VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2013 model, assuming the current rate of
improvements has reached a peak and will converge to a long-term rate of 1.25% p.a. Based on these assumptions,
the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows:

Copies of the 2016 valuation report and the Funding Strategy Statement are available on the Pension Fund’s website
www.gwyneddpensionfund.org.uk

Experience over the period since 31 March 2016
Since the last formal valuation, real bond yields have fallen placing a higher value on the liabilities. The effect of this
has been broadly offset by strong asset returns. Both events have roughly cancelled each other out in terms of the
impact on the funding position as at 31 March 2017.

The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding Strategy Statement will also be
reviewed at that time.

NOTE 20 - ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the triennial funding valuation, the Fund’s actuary also undertakes a valuation of the Pension Fund
liabilities, on an IAS19 basis every year using the same base data as the funding valuation rolled forward to the
current financial year, taking account of changes in membership numbers and updating assumptions to the current
year. This valuation is not carried out on the same basis as that used for setting Fund contribution rates and the Fund
accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future.

In order to assess the value of the benefits on this basis the actuary has updated the actuarial assumptions (set out
below) from those used for funding purposes (see Note 19) and has also used them to provide the IAS19, and
FRS102 reports for individual employers in the Fund. The actuary has also valued ill health and death benefits in line
with IAS19.

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are shown below:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£’m £’m

Active members 1,285 1,214
Salary increase rate 388 246
Discount rate
Total

747

2,420

514

1,974

As noted above the liabilities above are calculated on an IAS19 basis and therefore differ from the results of the 2016
triennial funding valuation (see Note 19) because IAS19 stipulates a discount rate rather than a rate that reflects
market rates.

Mortality assumption Male
Years

Female
Years

Current pensioners 22.0 24.2
Future pensioners (aged 45 at the 2016 valuation) 24.0 26.4

Page 115



103

NOTE 20 - ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Assumptions used

The financial assumptions used are those adopted for the Administering Authority’s IAS19 report as shown below:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
Assumption % %
Inflation/pension increase rate 2.2 2.4
Salary increase rate 4.2 2.4
Discount rate 3.5 2.6

The longevity assumption is the same as used for assessing the funding position as shown in Note 19 above.

The commutation assumption allows for future retirements to elect to take 50% of the maximum tax-free cash up to
HMRC for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for post-April 2008 service.

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the liabilities are set out below:

Sensitivity to the assumptions for the year
ended 31 March 2017

Approximate %
increase to liabilities

%

Approximate
monetary amount

£m
0.5% p.a. increase in the pension increase rate 8 189
0.5% p.a. increase in the salary increase rate 3 73
0.5% p.a. decrease in the discount rate 11 267

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption. For sensitivity purpose the actuary estimates that
a one year increase in life expectancy would increase the liabilities by approximately 3 – 5%.

NOTE 21 – CURRENT ASSETS

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000
932 Contributions due - employees 820

3,221 Contributions due – employers 2,845

3,901 Transfer value received (individuals who
join)

0

3,399 Sundry debtors 1,944

11,453 Total debtors 5,609

20,434 Cash 15,375

31,887 Total 20,984

Analysis of debtors

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

2,073 Gwynedd Council 2,352

732 Central government bodies 560

5,631 Other local authorities 1,209

3 NHS bodies 3

3,014 Other entities and individuals 1,485

11,453 Total 5,609

Page 116



104

NOTE 22 – CURRENT LIABILITIES

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

1,714 Sundry creditors 2,591

27 Transfer value payable (leavers) 282

2,538 Benefits payable 1,216

4,279 Total 4,089

Analysis of creditors

2015/16 2016/17

£’000 £’000

901 Gwynedd Council 1,051
43
1

Central government bodies
Other Local Authorities

37
138

19 NHS bodies 58

3,315 Other entities and individuals 2,805

4,279 Total 4,089

NOTE 23 - ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVC’s)

The market value of the funds is stated below:

Market value at 31
March 2016

£’000

Market value at
31 March 2017

£’000
Clerical Medical 2,936 3,349
Equitable Life 258 229
Standard Life 51 53
Total 3,245 3,631

AVC contributions were paid directly to the three managers as follows:

2015/2016
£’000

2016/2017
£’000

Clerical Medical 526 561
Equitable Life 0 0
Standard Life 1 0
Total 527 561

NOTE 24 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Gwynedd Council
The Gwynedd Pension Fund is administered by Gwynedd Council. Consequently there is a strong relationship
between the Council and the Pension Fund.

The Council incurred costs of £1,008,589 (£1,075,225 in 2015/16) in relation to the administration of the Fund and
was subsequently reimbursed by the Fund for these expenses. The Council is also one of the largest employers of
members of the pension fund and contributed £17.63m to the Fund in 2016/17 (£17.31m in 2015/16). At the end of
the year the Council owed £2.35m to the Fund (see Note 21) which was primarily in respect of contributions for
March 2017 and the Fund owed £1.05m to the council (see Note 22) which was primarily in respect of recharges
from the Council.

Page 117



105

NOTE 24 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Gwynedd Pension Fund has three bank accounts which are held as part of Gwynedd Council's Group of Bank
Accounts. The overall surplus cash held in the Group of Bank Accounts is invested on a daily basis. At the end of the
financial year, Gwynedd Council pays interest over to the Pension Fund, based on the Fund's daily balances over the
year. During 2016/17, the Fund received interest of £132,567 (£147,611 in 2015/16) from Gwynedd Council.

Governance
There were two members of the Pensions Committee who were in receipt of pension benefits from the Gwynedd
Pension Fund during 2016/17 (committee members T.O. Edwards and P. Jenkins). In addition, committee members
T.O. Edwards, S. Glyn, P. Jenkins, H.E. Jones, W.T. Owen, and P. Read were active members of the Pension Fund.

There was one member of the Pension Board who was in receipt of pension benefits from the Gwynedd Pension
Fund during 2016/17 (Board member S. Warnes). In addition, Board members A.W. Deakin, V. Halloran, A.L Lloyd
Evans, O. Richards and H. Trainor are active members of the Pension Fund.

Key Management Personnel
The CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting exempts local authorities from the key management
personnel disclosure requirements of IAS24, on the basis that the disclosure requirements for officer remuneration
and members’ allowances in the Code satisfy the key management personnel disclosure requirements of IAS24. This
also applies to the accounts of Gwynedd Pension Fund.

The disclosures required can be found in the accounts of Gwynedd Council.

NOTE 25 - COMMITMENTS UNDER INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

Outstanding capital commitments (investments) at 31 March were as follows:

Total
commitments

Commitment at
31 March 2016

Commitment at
31 March 2017

€’000 €’000 €’000
P.G. Direct 2006 20,000 776 776
P.G. Global Value 2006 50,000 3,477 3,477
P.G. Secondary 2008 15,000 1,960 1,960
P.G. Global Value 2011 15,000 5,044 3,372
P.G. Global Infrastructure 2012 40,000 22,005 15,894
P.G. Direct 2012 12,000 1,813 1,181
P.G. Global Value 2014 12,000 7,119 4,638
P.G Direct 2016 50,000 18,202 34,373
Total Euros 214,000 60,396 65,671

$’000 $’000 $’000
P.G. Emerging Markets 2011 7,000 2,078 1,623
P.G Secondary 2015 38,000 34,804 32,723
P.G Direct Infrastructure 2015 43,600 42,111 35,219
Total Dollars 88,600 78,993 69,565

‘PG’ above refers to Partners Group, the investment manager which invests in ‘alternatives’ (private equity and
infrastructure) on behalf of the Fund.

These commitments relate to outstanding call payments on unquoted limited partnership funds held in the private
equity part of the portfolio. The amounts ‘called’ by these funds are irregular in both size and timing over a number
of years from the date of the original commitment.

NOTE 26 – CONTINGENT ASSETS

Three admitted body employers in the Gwynedd Pension Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the possibility
of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in favour of the pension fund and payment
will only be triggered in the event of employer default.Page 118



106

NOTE 27 – IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

a) Impairment for bad and doubtful debts
As explained in Note 5 there has not been any impairment for bad and doubtful debts.

b) Impairment of Icelandic bank deposit
During 2008/09 the Council made a deposit of £4m with Heritable Bank which is a UK registered bank under
Scottish Law. The pension fund’s share of that investment was £565,200. The company was placed in administration
on 7 October 2008. The Council has received a return of £3,938,407, equating to 98% from the administrators up to
31 March 2017.

NOTE 28 - PENSION FUND PUBLICATIONS

A separate Annual Report is produced for the Pension Fund. This document includes the accounts for the Fund
along with more information regarding the administration and investment activities. It includes the following
documents:

Statement of Investment Principles
Funding Strategy Statement
Governance Policy and Governance Compliance Statement
Communications Policy Statement

Copies can be obtained from the Pension Fund website www.gwyneddpensionfund.org.uk on the investment page or
by contacting Mrs Caroline Roberts on 01286 679128.

Page 119



107

Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Members of Gwynedd Council

I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of:

• Gwynedd Council; and
• Gwynedd Pension Fund

for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

Gwynedd Council’s accounting statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, and the Cash Flow Statement.

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account and the Net Assets Statement.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17 based on International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for Wales

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the responsible financial
officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts and Gwynedd Pension Fund’s accounting
statements, which gives a true and fair view.

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me to comply with the Financial
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the accounting statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements and related
notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related notes are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to Gwynedd Council’s and Gwynedd Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial
officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and related notes.

In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the
course of performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I
consider the implications for my report.

Opinion on the accounting statements of Gwynedd Council

In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Gwynedd Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its income and
expenditure for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016-17.

Opinion on the accounting statements of Gwynedd Pension Fund

In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of Gwynedd Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March
2017 and of the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016-17.

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the accounting statements and
related notes.

Page 120



108

Matters on which I report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept;

• the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit;

• the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.

Certificate of completion of audit

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales)
Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice.

For and on behalf of

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Auditor General for Wales

Wales Audit Office

24 Cathedral Road

Cardiff CF11 9LJ

29 September 2016

Page 121



109

APPENDIX A

THE WELSH CHURCH FUND

2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000 £'000

952 Amount of Fund at 1 April 952

Add - Income during the year:-

5 Interest on Investments 5

0 Increase in land value 0

Less - Expenditure during the year:-

0 Transfer of Gwynedd's previous year’s interest 0

(16) Loss on sale of investments (11)

11 Grants and expenses 6

(5)

952 Amount of Fund at 31 March 952

Represented by the following Assets:-

365 Land and Buildings 365

30 Debtors 23

1,798 Cash in Hand 1,803

2,193 2,191

(1,232) Less - Proportion owing to Anglesey and Conwy Councils (1,232)

961 959

(16) Less - Creditors (13)

7
Add - Proportion owing from Anglesey and Conwy
Councils 6

952 Total 952

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. The Scheme for the administration of the Fund provides that the income be applied for charitable purposes -
educational, recreational and social, at the discretion of the Council.

2. The Charities Act 1993 requires that an independent examination of the statement of accounts of the Welsh
Church Fund be carried out annually.

Page 122



110

APPENDIX B

FMG MORGAN TRUST FUND

2015/16 2015/17

£'000 £'000

160 Amount of Fund at 1 April 167

Add - Income during the year

11 Interest on Assets 10

Less - Expenditure during the year

(4) Grants (3)

167 Amount of Fund at 31 March 174

Assets

144 Investments 144

23 Cash in Hand 30

167 174

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. This Fund was set up from the residuary estate of the late Mrs. Florence Merthyr Guest Morgan. The
income from the Fund was to be applied to aid residents of certain areas of Llŷn for specified purposes.

2. The investments are shown in the accounts at cost. The market value of the investments at 31 March 2017
was £351,416 (£313,376 at 31 March 2016).

3. The FMG Morgan Trust Fund is outside the provisions of the Charities Act 1993. No independent
examination or audit is therefore required in respect of this trust fund.

Page 123



111

APPENDIX C

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This statement meets the requirement to produce a Statement of Internal Control pursuant to Regulation

5 of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulation 2014.

Part 1: SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Gwynedd Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and

proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used

economically, efficiently and effectively. Gwynedd Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act

1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are

exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, Gwynedd Council is also responsible for putting in place proper

arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and which

includes arrangements for the management of risk and adequate and effective financial management.

Gwynedd Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is consistent with the

principles of the CIPFA/Solace Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the

code is available on our website or can be obtained by writing to the Gwynedd Council, Council Offices,

Shirehall Street, Caernarfon, Gwynedd LL55 1SH. This statement explains how the Authority has complied

with the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 5(5) of the Accounts and Audit (Wales)

Regulations 2014 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

Part 2: THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the

authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads

the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to

consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance framework and is designed to manage

risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives;

it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of

internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the

achievement of Gwynedd Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks

being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and

economically.

The governance framework described above has been in place at Gwynedd Council for the year ended 31

March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

Page 124



112

Part 3: GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

3.1 The Governance Arrangements Assessment Group keeps a continuous, disciplined overview on

matters of governance, raising a wider awareness of them and promoting a wider ownership of the

Annual Governance Statement. The Group comprises the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer,

the Head of Corporate Support, two Corporate Support Senior Managers, the Senior Manager

Revenues & Risk and the Risk & Insurance Manager.

3.2 Following the publication of a new version of the CIPFA/Solace Framework Delivering Good

Governance in Local Government in 2016, the Group has modified the Council’s arrangements for

identifying and assessing its governance arrangements to reflect the new framework. The result of

this was to set out the local framework in the form of a Governance Risk Register, which is part of

the Corporate Risk Register, which identifies 22 areas of governance risk.

3.3 An outline of the Governance Areas, the relevant risks and the Council’s arrangements for dealing

with them, and the effectiveness of these arrangements, is given in the rest of this part of the

Annual Governance Statement.

3.4 For each of the Governance Risks, a current risk score is shown, which is the score after an objective

assessment of the control arrangements that are currently in place. Two factors are considered:

• The Impact of the risk if the event were realised

• The likelihood of this happening

3.5 The Impact scores vary from 1 (visible effect) to 5 (catastrophic effect), and the Likelihood scores

from 1 (very unlikely) to 5 (is happening now). The risk score is calculated by multiplying these

scores together.

3.6 The comparative risk levels are assessed as follows:

Score 20-25 Very High Risk

Score 12-16 High Risk

Score 6-10 Moderate Risk

Score 1-5 Low Risk

Page 125



113

Culture

Risk: Inappropriate culture within the Council can hinder our ability to do the right things in the correct
manner

Assessment:

An appropriate culture can promote all aspects of governance noted in the register, and in the same
manner an inappropriate culture can hinder all aspects of governance.

If the culture is correct, this can dominate everything else that affects our ability to achieve, as the
principles of good governance are an inevitable part of the day to day conduct of each individual within the
establishment. The Ffordd Gwynedd Strategy now notes that one of the Council's main aims is to place
the people of Gwynedd at the heart of everything we do. In reality, this also describes the Council's values
- namely anything that is in keeping with that objective.

Ffordd Gwynedd work has already commenced at eight work locations within the Council with further
substantial work proceeding to try and permeate a change in culture throughout the Council by
highlighting what this means to them and their teams. By now there are continuous signs that the culture
linked to Ffordd Gwynedd is rooting in the conversations that arise within the Council, and even in some of
the talks that happen outside the Council. The hope is that a development programme that is proposed to
be given to all Council managers, and commences in 2017/18, will intensify the permeation of the culture
within the establishment.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

4 4 16

Conduct

Risk: Lack of integrity, ethics and respect in the conduct of members and officers, undermining the

public's confidence in the Council

Assessment:

Appropriate behaviour is essential in order to ensure that the County's residents have confidence in those
who make decisions on their behalf, and that they do so in a manner whereby they can be confident in
them.

The Council has adopted codes of conduct for its members and officers, based on national regulations
(codes such as the Member/Officer Relationship Code; Members' Code of Conduct; Officers’ Code of
Conduct; Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Policy and the Whistle blowing Code of Practice) and these
together set the foundation to ensure integrity and ethics. There is evidence of action when it appears
that these codes of conduct have been breached.

In the past, some evidence existed of tension between members as the new Cabinet arrangements were
implemented within the Council and the change of roles linked to this, and there is no evidence to suggest
that those tensions have completely disappeared, with a recent report by the External Auditor on Scrutiny
reinforcing this message. Nevertheless, there are signs that the tensions have started to diminish.
Tensions are inevitable and are to be expected when there are any significant changes.

There is clear evidence that the Council gives valid consideration to the Ombudsman's reports as part of
the work of the Standards Committee, which works effectively.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 2 4 Page 126



114

Lawfulness

Risk: Ignoring the rule of law, that means that the Council is open to challenges from the courts.

Assessment:

Everything the Council does has to be in compliance with the law.

Statutory Officers (the Monitoring Officer and the Head of Finance) have to offer comments on any formal
decision, as part of a comprehensive Constitution that is regularly reviewed. There are formal protocols
in place in order to safeguard the rights of statutory officers.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 1 3

Openness

Risk: A Council that is not open means that it is not possible to hold it accountable for its decisions.

Assessment:

Being open is essential for accountability and a healthy democracy.

Whilst there is a law that allows reports to be considered exempt for publication, only the minimum of
Committee reports are exempt, and in addition to publishing the minutes of full committees, publicity is
given to the decision notices of individual members, with procedures to ensure that this occurs.
Background papers are published with committee reports in order to ensure that the decisions are made
with full information. A number of committee meetings that make decisions are web-broadcast.

The Cabinet regularly considers performance reports as part of its meetings that are open and the Council
publishes its Corporate Plan, Annual Performance Report and the Statement of Accounts to seek to give as
much information as the residents need for us to be accountable.

Various other methods are also used such as the website, 'Newyddion Gwynedd' and social media to try to
ensure that Gwynedd residents are aware of what is happening within the Council.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 1 2

Stakeholders

Risk: Weak relationship with institutional stakeholders, ending with sub-optimal services

Assessment:

The willingness of public sector bodies, including Gwynedd Council, other neighbouring unitary councils,
the Police, the Health Board and others to collaborate in order to deliver public services jointly will have a
substantial and visible effect on Gwynedd people.

Work is currently proceeding to respond to the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 that facilitates such a principle. Amongst these requirements is the statutory need to
establish a Public Services Board, which includes local authorities and several other bodies. Work has been
undertaken to conduct an assessment of well-being, this is part of the initial work of the Public Services
Board and has been published.

The Council will consider this assessment when drafting its own Plan from 2018 onwards.Page 127



115

The Council is committed to the Public Services Board, introduced as a result of the Well-being of Future
Generations Act, as a means of maintaining a constructive relationship with other public sector
stakeholders. The Partnerships Criteria have been established for several years so that Gwynedd Council
only goes into partnership when this is for the benefit of the people of Gwynedd.

Collaboration also occurs at a regional level which is not always as effective as it could be due to the
footprint size and the difficulty of building a relationship with such a large number of people. There are
some examples of success (e.g. Ambition Board) and one of the Council's responses to the recent White
Paper was that collaboration should be sought according to the benefit that would stem from it rather
than dogmatically adhering to one model. It was also noted that there was a need to ensure that
collaboration does not hinder local accountability for services.

Collaboration also occurs at a county level and the success is varied.

There is work to review the system in the Care field; this includes close collaboration with Health and
others, which is showing promising signs. Work has been undertaken to identify plans to be commissioned
in the future.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 4 12

Engagement

Risk: Failure to engage with service users and individual citizens, leading to not doing things correctly.

Assessment:

Clear engagement with the People of Gwynedd to establish clear communication and to get a true
understanding of the needs, is one of the principal elements of the governance arrangements.

During 2015/16 the Gwynedd Challenge, a plan to discuss the financial position with Gwynedd residents,
demonstrated that a significant increase had been made in our engagement arrangements.

The Gwynedd Challenge exercise was extremely successful and attracted a response from over 2,000
Gwynedd residents; this enabled the Council to take logical decisions in terms of future priorities in light of
the views of the people we serve. Whilst there is a need to ensure that this good practice permeates
amongst all Council departments, the score now reflects the improvement seen in this area bearing the
Gwynedd Challenge in mind and the work done specifically in the area of Waste.

The purpose of Council’s Engagement Strategy is to ensure that the Council receives the views of the public
and other stakeholders as appropriate, with the Communication and Engagement Unit supporting services
to consult in a suitable method and give support by analysing the results.

Furthermore, the Research and Information Team supports services to make better use of the information
we have in order to increase inclusivity. There are guidelines in order to respond to the Well-being of
Future Generations Act for us to consider smaller units than the Council's footprint and the County has
been split into eight well-being areas. The residents of those areas were consulted when drafting the well-
being assessment.

It was possible to achieve all the elements of the Engagement Strategy; however a recent analysis indicates
that we have not yet reached our destination.

Page 128



116

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 3 9

Direction and vision

Risk: Direction and vision that is not rooted in the outcomes for individuals, ending with something on

paper that does not realise the needs of the People of Gwynedd.

Assessment:

The Strategic Plan is the high level statement that outlines what the Council aims to achieve during the life
of the current Council and this ensures that we are clear and open about what it is intended to achieve.
The current Plan ends in 2018 and the work of drafting the new plan will commence immediately following
the May 2017 election.

The current Plan comprises a number of projects in order to ensure an improvement for the people of
Gwynedd, and arrangements are in place to monitor progress of individual projects within the Plan. The
Council acknowledges that the nature of the existing Plan means that it is not easy to interpret from it
what is the Council's core work. The Plan in its present form is a catalogue of the matters that need to be
changed within the Council and in the Gwynedd area, rather than a comprehensive plan for the Authority.
Work has been undertaken to see how this can be changed with a view to change the Plan's format for
2018 onwards.

In addition to the content of the document there remains an element of vagueness in the Plan about what
exactly what benefit will flow to the people of Gwynedd from the delivery of some projects and what
exactly we intend to do.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 3 9

Sustainability

Risk: A risk of creating unsustainable answers that do not comply with the five principles of the Well-

being of Future Generations Act and do not therefore look at the long-term.

Assessment:

The Council has acknowledged the importance of acting in accordance with the Well-being of Future
Generations Act and, jointly with its partners on the Public Services Board, have done initial work to
identify what needs to be done to operate in accordance with the five principles - Long term, Prevention,
Integration, Collaboration and Involvement.

The Council is already complying with all the principles but to a different extent. We have submitted an
explanation of the principles of the Act to the Management Group who have agreed that the best way for
this to root is that the Department Management Teams pay attention to the principles in forward planning.
Whenever reports come before the Cabinet the Corporate Support Department will also review them in
order to keep an eye out for areas where perhaps those principles have not been followed as well as they
could. Through this it is hoped that we will root the principles naturally rather than tick boxes but time will
tell if we are successful. The principles mean that every group of society will of course be included and the
Council already has appropriate arrangements to ensure that we improve our provisions for those with
protected features.

Page 129



117

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 3 9

Decisions

Risk: Unwillingness to make decisions on action which means a delay to achieve the outcomes for the

people of Gwynedd

Assessment:

There is a danger that decisions will not be made as they are too difficult or unpopular, but over the last

few years there is evidence that this is not the case in Gwynedd with decisions taken to look at the area of

schools, externalising Council houses and acting on the difficult results of the Gwynedd Challenge.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 3 6

Planning Operations

Risk: Intervention without sufficient planning, that could mean either acting on impulse or excessive
planning wasting time and resources.

Assessment:

The Council is striving to maintain a suitable balance between Project Management procedures and
working efficiently. In this respect, the Council is already supporting robust project management
arrangements for the largest projects, using the less comprehensive version but based on the same
principles for other projects. In order to ensure that the right matters are measured the achievement
measures for every service will be based on achieving the purpose by trying to ensure that any action will
improve our ability to achieve this.

We will try to strike a balance between the need for order and the need to achieve as soon as possible by
doing as little paperwork as is consistent with this, encouraging simple, brief reports that set out the main
key points.

The Council has a Medium Term Financial Strategy, with annual budgets based on this. The Council's work
on financial planning is regularly praised by the external auditors, and the Audit and Goverance Committee
takes a leading role with financial scrutiny. When reviewing our scrutiny arrangements we will include
more forward scrutiny and it is hoped that this will assist the Cabinet to choose the appropriate steps to
take in various fields.

However, if we wish to do this we have already recognised that getting the Scrutiny Committee to look at
something immediately before it is adopted is not the way, but rather for Scrutiny members to be part of
the assessment at the very start. This means that matters need to be known early in the process and
Scrutiny used early enough. Time will tell if the new arrangements will do this.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 2 4

Page 130



118

Reviewing Outcomes

Risk: Failure to review the outcomes of our actions, which means that we do not learn lessons by
continuing to do the same things incorrectly.

Assessment:

The Council's arrangements for risk assessment, formulating a Corporate Plan and project management
will ensure that the intended outcomes to be achieved are clear at the start of any project. The annual
performance report will try to focus on assessing to what extent these outcomes have been achieved.
There are good examples of where this happened, but there are other examples where it is not as clear
that this has occurred.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 3 9

Property Assets

Risk: The Council's property assets are not used to their full potential

Assessment:

Physical assets, be they buildings, vehicles or structures are essential to achieve for the people of Gwynedd
but it is necessary to ensure that those assets meet the requirements of our residents whilst ensuring that
we do not spend unnecessarily on assets where the cost of provision is higher than the benefit received.

The Council has an Assets Strategy in place for the period 2009 - 2018 that is updated regularly. The result
is that a number of buildings that were not required any more have been disposed.

In terms of vehicles, there is a plan implemented to try and improve the use of the Council's fleet that has
already presented some financial savings and is likely to achieve more.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 2 4

Information Technology Assets

Risk: The Council's IT assets are not used to their full potential

Assessment:

Using technology in an effective way is a crucial tool to ensure that services are provided in a manner that
meets with the requirements of our residents, doing this in a cost effective way.

Over the years Information Technology activities have focused on ensuring appropriate infrastructure to
guarantee basic support for services. Whilst there are examples where we can use information
technology more extensively to improve how we achieve services for the residents of Gwynedd, there is no
evidence that this is consistent across the authority and that it happens at the speed we would wish.

The Information Technology Strategy adopted for the coming period will try to extend the use made of
technology in order to support the improvement aims in the Strategic Plan, by also improving the ability of
the services to take advantage of the opportunities available to use technology effectively.

There is an element of evidence that this is bearing fruit with self-service becoming more and more of a
part of using technology to make it easier for residents to receive services.

Page 131



119

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 3 6

Workforce Planning

Risk: Council's workforce not being developed, this means that we cannot provide the best services for
the people of Gwynedd.

Assessment:

To ensure that the Council is in a position to provide services that always place the residents of Gwynedd
at the centre, we must ensure that we have the right staff in place with the correct skills. This means that
we need to continuously train staff, evaluate their performance and foster and develop their talent. Staff
training arrangements are an important way of promoting and dissipating Ffordd Gwynedd thinking across
the Council and of course it is vitally important that the Council has officers with the skills to carry out their
duties.

Difficulties in filling some senior posts within the Council suggest that there is a need to improve our ability
to create progression at least for senior posts. This has been identified as a basis to develop internal talent
within the People Plan. Furthermore, there are recruiting difficulties for some posts in specific geographical
areas within Gwynedd (e.g. care workers in Meirionnydd).

A 360° evaluation system has been established for heads of departments. senior managers and some
managers; however, it needs to continue to be developed. If we wish to spread one culture of placing the
people of Gwynedd at the heart of everything we do, we need a method of ensuring that this occurs
consistently across the Council and it is essential that we give the appropriate tools to managers and staff
to be able to do this.

The People Plan was adopted for 2016-18 by the Cabinet in November 2016, this will try to improve our
arrangements to foster talent within the Council, improve our workforce planning arrangements; and
ensure that our learning and development arrangements focus on the essential matters.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 3 9

Leadership

Risk: Weaknesses in the Council's leadership means that we are not doing the right things.

Assessment:

Leadership establishes the standard that every member and employee in the Council follows. Therefore, its
impact is great – good Leadership can overcome everything else, whilst poor Leadership can destroy what
the Council is trying to achieve. It is this that facilitates the rooting of the Council's culture.

The roles of the Council, Cabinet, Individual Members and the Chief Officers, together with a clear
delegation plan, are set out in the Council's Constitution. Gwynedd Council has also prioritised the
development of its Leadership Programme and this is part of the People Plan adopted by the Cabinet.

Whilst there is a clear commitment to try and continuously improve leadership, we have not always been
clear regarding what this entails nor how to improve it. There is concern that we do not sufficiently
differentiate between staff and members when we think of this.Page 132



120

There is an element of evidence (via self-assessment) that leadership within the Council is improving with
many examples of transformational leadership shown rather than transactional leadership.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

4 3 12

Risk Management

Risk: Weaknesses in our risk management arrangements that increase the threat of something going
wrong or failure to take an opportunity to improve.

Assessment:

Our risk management arrangements are an integral part of the Authority’s management arrangements.
Robust, correct and proportionate risk management arrangements support innovation and do not inhibit
it.

Self-assessment of the Council's risk management arrangements indicated that the procedure for
identifying the main risks occur instinctively, but by being systematic when recording these risks there are
gaps and in one or two examples this leads to a lack of action or action where it is not required.

Arrangements are in place for every department to maintain a departmental risk register and there are
also cross-departmental registers in place with protocols to support them. Nevertheless, the danger is that
they only follow a procedure and the permeation of risk management amongst individual business units
continues to be a little inconsistent.

There are strong arrangements to monitor our compliance with Health and Safety risks and quantitative
evidence that performance in this field is improving - although there are examples of where to improve
further.

System tests indicate that not all the workforce is aware of the risks that could prevent achievement for
the People of Gwynedd and take ownership of them – risk management tends to be seen as a matter for
Managers. Substantial work has already been done in the field of Emergency Planning and Service
Continuity to prepare the authority better for unforeseeable events.

Arrangements to deal with risks around Arrangements for Safeguarding Children and Adults continue to
receive attention in order to maintain the progress made since 2013. Additional work specified for the
Safeguarding Panel during 2016/16 is the PREVENT agenda in relation to radicalisation.

Council risk management arrangements continue to develop and they will evolve further as Ffordd
Gwynedd and the culture permeate throughout the Council, and when preparing the Strategic Plan 2018-
2022.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

5 2 10

Performance

Risk: Weaknesses in our performance management arrangements mean that we cannot take
appropriate steps to achieve our purpose.

Assessment:

In the past, the perception was that the effectiveness of Performance Management was comparatively low
and reflected inconsistency across the Council. By now, officers and members continually question if wePage 133



121

are measuring the right things. Regular meetings take place with Cabinet Members and managers to
assess the latest performance with members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee also present to challenge.
Regular performance reports are submitted by Cabinet members on their fields of responsibility to Cabinet
meetings.

The Council's Performance Management system has evolved considerably over the last few years. More
than anything we now focus on ensuring that business units achieve their purpose and this is done by
continuously reviewing if we are measuring the right things. A performance handbook has been
developed, it is not prescriptive, but sets out the general principles to be followed.

However, whilst there has been a significant improvement there is evidence that this has not yet
permeated every corner of the Council and is not understood by all.

The Auditor General will also observe our performance in different areas by publishing various reports and
the Audit and Governance Committee is responsible for ensuring that any recommendations receive
attention. Whilst reports include constructive criticism, the Council will try to implement the matters
raised but sometimes there may be conflict between what the Council feels should be addressed and some
matters raised in terms of the effort required to be given to them and the level of risk they represent.
However, these examples are not numerous; there were no recommendations in the most recent report
and in general the messages are positive.

Complaints are also a key way of getting information for improvement. The new Corporate Complaints
Procedure continues to develop well and the Services Improvement Officer ensures that we learn lessons
from any complaints, and try to avoid making the same mistakes again.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 3 6

Internal Control

Risk: Unsuitable internal control arrangements that entail that we either do not protect ourselves from
risks or waste resources on over-control.

Assessment:

Getting suitable levels of internal control is core to the aim of placing the people of Gwynedd at the heart
of everything we do. Namely, do the tasks undertaken by staff actually add value, or are they bureaucratic
actions that are done without much thinking about their real purpose?

Getting rid of barriers is part of everyone's work, leading to a suitable level of internal control. On the
other hand, the principles of public stewardship mean that it is not desirable to dispose of all internal
controls (i.e. there are some risks that are not acceptable), and therefore a combination of risk
management procedures and an Internal Audit service that meets with professional standards is a vital
tool.

The effectiveness of the Internal Audit system is under continuous review and although the service satisfies
the professional standards in accordance with expectation, there is a need to consider further whether it
reviews the right things and if it operates in a manner that complies with Ffordd Gwynedd. The service's
capacity has been reduced significantly since April 2015, down from 10 to 7 full time officers. It is expected
that adopting the principles of Ffordd Gwynedd will ensure that the service effectiveness is maintained,
however there might be some reduction in the short term.

Gwynedd Council’s Audit and Governance Committee has been established since 1999 and it has agreed
terms of reference.

Page 134



122

There is evidence that the Audit Committee is very effective in achieving some of the functions that it has
undertaken for some time, its capacity to deal with new responsibilities by virtue of the Local Government
(Wales) Measure 2011 continue to develop.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 2 4

Information

Risk: Failure to control information leading to the failure of safeguarding the information we have, or
not to make the best use of it.

Assessment:

Having the correct information is essential if the Council wishes to provide the right services to the right
people in the correct way. The information collected and retained needs to be current and relevant, not
only in order to comply with the Data Protection Act but also to ensure that the services we provide do the
right things. Good Information Governance is the foundation to good decisions.

Despite efforts to improve the arrangements of Information Governance, the Council continues to retain a
great deal of information, and we need to continue to work to ensure that it does not maintain more data
than is required.

It is expected that the project to introduce an ERDMS system will contribute to a significant improvement
in this, and the Governance Arrangements Assessment Group have also commissioned further work on the
arrangements within individual departments.

Whilst there are examples where information is used to make effective decisions, there is room to
challenge if the practice is as good as it can be and as wide across all the Council's service units.

Research has shown that there is a continuous need to raise awareness about the principles of Data
Protection and improving attitudes in the field. This work continues as part of the Council’s Strategic Plan,
and shows progress.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 3 9

Finance

Risk: Weaknesses when controlling public finance, that entails that the Council's finance is not used and
prioritised.

Assessment:

It is the Financial Strategy that sets the key context for everything the Council wishes to do. The financial
forecast for the Council suggests that substantial savings must be identified in the next few years. It is the
Financial Strategy that sets out how we will achieve this and, therefore, it is a very important statement
that outlines how the Council will deal with the situation.

Clear evidence exists that the Council's arrangements are robust and the reviews of the external auditors -
not only of the Annual Statements of Accounts but also reviews of financial resilience - offer an
independent opinion that confirms this.

Page 135



123

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

3 1 3

Accountability

Risk: Poor reporting without transparency and unsuitable for the audience, does not highlight to the
public what the Council does for them, undermining the democratic position.

Assessment:

The Council has provided guidelines on preparing reports and on making good decisions, in order to ensure
that the reports available to the public are clear. As well as formal reports for making decisions, the
reports produced also include the Annual Performance Report, the Strategic Plan (that includes
departmental business plans) and the Annual Governance Statement produced in accordance with the
CIPFA/Solace framework. The Council also produces regular reports on its financial position.

However despite the Council's efforts, and apart from cases where there is a fairly fundamental change in
question, it appears that there is no great aspiration amongst the public to hold the Council accountable.
This may be because they are satisfied with what the Council is doing or that it is not their priority.

Even with the Gwynedd Challenge consultation where we prioritised (and considered closing) some fairly
key services only 2,000 residents responded out of a 18+ population of nearly 100,000.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 2 4

Assurance

Risk: Lack of assurance and accountability that raises suspicion amongst the public regarding what the
Council is doing.

Assessment:

There are many ways available within the Council in order to provide independent assurance that the
Council's governance arrangements are working as they should. Statutory officers ensure that matters
comply with the law and the arrangements of the Constitution whilst the Chief Executive and the Directors
continually challenge if the departments are doing the right things. Cabinet members also meet often to
challenge each other regarding developments.

However, formally it is the scrutiny procedure that continues to hold the Cabinet to account. The Scrutiny
arrangements have been subject to a detailed review in 2016/17 and the Audit and Governance
Committee keeps an overview of the governance arrangements as well as the implementation of the
external auditors' recommendations.

Supporting this is the Internal Audit service that operates in accordance with the statutory professional
standards, namely the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

The External Auditor's report was published during 2015/16 noting that in his opinion there were still
significant problems with the Scrutiny Procedure and the Council's internal 360° Review has also confirmed
that several elements within the system required further attention for improvement.

There is transparent and objective scrutiny and challenging of decisions and policies, however, there is
uncertainty regarding how effective this is. This has received attention in the Scrutiny Review

Page 136



124

commissioned by the Audit Committee in 2016/17, but at its meeting on 3 May the Council resolved
contrary to the Audit Committee's decision and to adopt a different procedure in the future.

The new system will be implemented and the proposals to further refine the purpose of scrutiny and the
value it adds with more scrutiny before a decision is made. Some of the proposals of the action plan have
already been implemented with others receiving attention with a view on the scrutiny procedure following
the elections in May 2017.

Current Risk Score:

Impact Likelihood Risk score

2 3 6

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Audit and Governance Committee, and that the arrangements continue to
be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas that have
already been addressed and those which the Council will address specifically have new on-going action
plans and are outlined below.

Part 4: SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE MATTERS

4.1 The scores above show that none of the 22 governance areas present a very high risk, but 3 are

high risk and 11 are moderate risk.

4.2 Action steps for those areas that are of high or moderate priority are noted below. Where a

specific project within the Strategic Plan has been noted as a response, progress will be reported

regularly to the Cabinet in the Performance Report of the relevant Cabinet Member.

HIGH RISKS

Governance Area Response Arrangements Responsible
Department

The Council’s Culture The Council’s Culture is receiving attention under the Ffordd
Gwynedd priority area in the Strategic Plan, project FfG1 –
Empowering Units to Implement Ffordd Gwynedd.

By the end of March 2018, it is anticipated that 15 formal
service reviews will have been completed and the majority
of Service Managers will have been trained in the Ffordd
Gwynedd principles (including robust performance
management principles) in order for them to be able to
undertake their own reviews.

Corporate Support

Page 137



125

Governance Area Response Arrangements Responsible
Department

Stakeholders Continue to ensure that any collaboration occurs when that
is for the benefit of the people of Gwynedd. We will
continue to attempt to ensure that the Public Services Board
adds value for Gwynedd residents and attempt to simplify
the relationship of that body with the various other regional
boards that are being established. We will also review our
relationship with the Third Sector to ensure that it
maximises the benefit that can be derived from having a
good relationship with the sector.

Assessing the Council’s working arrangements to ensure that
they are consistent with the Wellbeing Aims and Sustainable
Development Principles of the Well-being of Future
Generations Act, and sustaining the effort to embed the
sustainability principles in the ways of working.

Leadership Team
and Legal

Leadership Continue to develop and implement the Leadership
Programme by implementing Project FfG2 in the Strategic
Plan - Leaders development programme. This means
focussing on developing the leadership amongst Cabinet
Members following the Election in May 2017.

Corporate Support

Page 138



126

MODERATE RISKS

Governance Area Response Arrangements
Responsible
Department

Engagement

Continue to strengthen Engagement arrangements by
implementing Project FfG3 in the Strategic Plan. This
will include reveiwing internal arrangements,
strengthening the engagement resource and support
and ensuring that the Gwynedd Council brand appears
prominently on services and schemes funded by the
Council.

Corporate
Support

Direction and vision

When preparing a new Corporate Plan the Council will
address the contents of the plan to ensure that it gives
details of what the Council is currently doing and what
plans it wishes to commission in order to do things
differently. We will need to ensure that in doing this
we note clearly and simply what exactly we intend to
do and what benefits will derive to the people of
Gwynedd from accomplishing the schemes.

Corporate
Support

Sustainability

Continue to assess the Council’s working arrangements
to ensure that they are consistent with the Wellbeing
Aims and Sustainable Development Principles of the
Well-being of Future Generations Act, and sustaining
the effort to embed the sustainability principles in the
ways of working.

Corporate
Support

Decisions Accept the current risk level.
Leadership Team

and Legal

Reviewing Outcomes Accept the current risk level.
Leadership Team

and Legal

Information
Technology Assets

Acting in accordance with the work programme
contained in the Information Technology Strategy -
Project FfG5 in the Strategic Plan.

Finance

Workforce Planning
The new People Plan will be completed, and
implementation will begin.

Corporate
Support

Risk Management

The significant steps that have been taken during
2016/17 will be accelerated further, in order to ensure
that risk management is becoming an integral part of
service planning and the culture of the Council. For the
first time, in 2017/18 the contents of risk registers will
be taken into account when monitoring the
performance of departments.

Finance

Performance
The arrangements that have been established over the
last few years will continue to be refined, so that they
become increasingly effective.

Corporate
Support

Page 139



127

Information

Project FfG7 in the Strategic Plan - Information
Governance. By the end of March 2018, the Council
will have moved on to assess how departments use
their information for their daily work and forward
planning, the Council will have placed more of the
Council's information on the website in order for it to
be available for others to use and it will have put
arrangements in place to prepare for the new data
protection legislation.

Corporate
Support

Assurance

Adopt the new Scrutiny arrangements following the
2017 Election. Continue to evolve the role of the Audit
and Governance Committee, including consideration of
the sufficiency of the information it receives on the
governance of partnerships, joint committees etc.

Corporate
Support

Part 5: OPINION

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our

governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that

were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part

of our next annual review.

Page 140



 

Audit of Financial Statements Report – 
Gwynedd Council 

Audit year: 2016-17 

Date issued: September 2017 

Page 141



 

 

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  

is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 

authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 

General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 

disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 

not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

The Deloitte team who delivered the work comprised Ian Howse – Engagement Partner, Clare Edge – 
Engagement Manager and Lauren Parsons – Team Leader. 

 

 

Page 142

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

The Auditor General intends to issue an unqualified audit report on your financial 

statements. There are no issues to report to you prior to their approval. 

 

Summary report  

Introduction 4 

Status of the audit 4 

Proposed audit report 4 

Audit outcomes 5 

Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 financial audit work 8 

Independence and objectivity 8 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Draft Letter of Representation 10 

Appendix 2 – Proposed audit report of the Auditor General to Gwynedd Council 12 

Appendix 3 – Summary of corrections made to the draft financial statements  

which should be drawn to the attention of the Audit Committee 14 

Appendix 4 – Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 financial audit work 15 

Appendix 5 – Recommendations arising from our 2015-16 financial audit work 17 

Page 143



Contents 

Page 4 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Introduction 

1 The Auditor General is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the financial statements 

give a true and fair view of the financial position of Gwynedd Council and the Gwynedd Pension 

Fund at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended. The Gwynedd 

Pension Fund has a separate audit outcomes report which details audit materiality and findings 

in respect of the 2016-17 audit. 

2 We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are correctly stated, 

but adopt the concept of materiality. In planning and conducting the audit, we seek to identify 

material misstatements in your financial statements, namely, those that might result in a reader 

of the accounts being misled. 

3 The quantitative levels at which we judge such misstatements to be material for Gwynedd 

Council are £7,640,000. Whether an item is judged to be material can also be affected by 

certain qualitative issues such as legal and regulatory requirements and political sensitivity 

4 International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 requires us to report certain matters arising from 

the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance of a body in sufficient 

time to enable appropriate action. 

5 This report sets out for consideration the matters arising from the audit of the financial 

statements of Gwynedd Council, for 2016-17, that require reporting under ISA 260. 

Status of the audit 

6 We received the draft financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 on 30 June 2017, 

and have now substantially completed the audit work and at the date of our presentation of this 

report the following were outstanding:  

a. Finalisation of pension fund valuation assurances;  

b. Finalisation of Partner and independent quality assurance review; and 

c. Receipt of letter of representation. 

7 We are reporting to you the more significant issues arising from the audit, which we believe you 

must consider prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit team has already 

discussed these issues with the Section 151 Officer and the Senior Finance Manager. 

Proposed audit report 

8 It is the Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the financial 

statements once you have provided us with a Letter of Representation based on that set out in 

Appendix 1.  

9 The proposed audit report is set out in Appendix 2.  

  

Page 144



 

Page 5 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Audit outcomes 

Uncorrected misstatements  

10 There are no misstatements identified in the financial statements, which remain uncorrected. 

Corrected misstatements 

11 There is one misstatement that has been corrected by management, and we consider it should 

be drawn to your attention due to its relevance to your responsibilities over the financial 

reporting process. This is set out with explanations in Appendix 3. 

Significant Risks 

12 In our Financial Audit Plan, we set out information regarding the significant audit risks that were 

identified during our planning process. The table below sets out the outcome of our audit 

procedures in respect of those risks. We have conducted our audit in line with the Financial 

Audit Plan.  

Potential risks assessed Testing completed in Gwynedd Council 

Management override of controls 

The risk of management override of controls 

is present in all entities. Due to the 

unpredictable way in which such override 

could occur, it is viewed as a significant risk 

[ISA 240.31-33]. 

The audit team has completed the following 

procedures:  

 tested the appropriateness of journal 

entries and other adjustments made in 

preparing the financial statements using 

enhanced data analytics to analyse the 

whole journal population for characteristics 

of audit interest; 

 performed testing on the design and 

implementation of controls over journal 

entries to the financial ledger; 

 tested the appropriateness of accounting 

estimates for biases; and 

 evaluated the rationale for any significant 

transactions outside the normal course of 

business including those with related 

parties. 

No issues were identified. 

Completeness and recognition of grant 

income   

We have identified completeness and 

recognition of grant income as a significant 

risk as there is a need to apply management 

judgement on recognition of grant income, 

including determining whether a grant has 

conditions and whether they have been met to 

allow recognition. 

There are two types of grant income which we 

have considered to be relevant to this risk, 

these being, specific revenue grants and 

capital grants and contributions.  

The audit team undertook the following 

procedures: 

 carried out detailed testing of grant income 

to check that recognition of income 

properly reflects the grant scheme rules, 

that entitlement is in agreement with the 

draft or final grant claim and that the grant 

control account balance has been properly 

reconciled; 

 reviewed and validated correspondence 

attached to specific grants and compared 

to the Council’s accounting treatment; and 

Page 145



 

Page 6 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

 tested the design and implementation of 

controls around recognition of grant 

income. 

No issues were identified. 

Pension liability 

The Council currently holds a material net 

liability in respect of its pension obligations on 

the balance sheet, the calculation of which is 

based on a series of actuarial judgements. 

 

The audit team undertook the following 

procedures: 

 obtained the IAS19 valuation as at 31 

March 2017, and engaged experts to assist 

with our review and testing of the 

appropriateness of the IAS19 valuation 

bases, assumptions and financial 

statement disclosures; and 

 tested the design and implementation of 

controls around the recording of the 

pension valuations and related accounting 

entries and disclosures. 

 

No issues were identified. 

Page 146



Summary report 

Page 7 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Other significant issues arising from the audit 

13 In the course of the audit, we consider a number of matters both qualitative and 

quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you. 

There were no issues arising in these areas this year: 

 We have no concerns about the qualitative aspects of your accounting 

practices and financial reporting. We found the information provided to be 

relevant, reliable, comparable, material and easy to understand. We 

concluded that accounting policies and estimates are appropriate and 

financial statement disclosures unbiased, fair and clear.  

  We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit. 

 There were no significant matters discussed and corresponded upon 

with management which we need to report to you.  

 There are no other matters significant to the oversight of the financial 

reporting process that we need to report to you.  

 We did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls. 

 There are not any other matters specifically required by auditing 

standards to be communicated to those charged with governance. 

  

Page 147



 

Page 8 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 
financial audit work 

14 The recommendations arising from our financial audit work are set out in Appendix 

4. Management has responded to them and we will follow up progress on them 

during next year’s audit. Where any actions are outstanding, we will continue to 

monitor progress and report it to you in next year’s report. 

Recommendations arising from our 2015-16 
financial audit work 

15 The recommendations arising from our financial audit work are set out in Appendix 

5. Management has responded to them and we have followed up on progress 

during the 2016-17 audit. Where any actions are outstanding, we will continue to 

monitor progress and report it to you in next year’s report. 

Independence and objectivity 

16 As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with 

representations concerning our independence. 

17 We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are 

independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships 

between the Wales Audit Office and Gwynedd Council that we consider to bear on 

our objectivity and independence. 

 

Page 148



Appendix 1 

Page 9 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Draft Letter of Representation 

Auditor General for Wales 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff 

CF11 9LJ 

28 September 2017 

 

Representations regarding the 2016-17 financial 
statements 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 

Gwynedd Council for the year ended 31 March 2017 the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on their truth and fairness and their proper preparation. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 

consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 

 

Management representations 

 

Responsibilities 

 We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:  

 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative 

requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting; in 

particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 

therewith. 

 The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent 

and detect fraud and error. 

Information provided 

We have provided you with: 

 Full access to: 

o all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 

the financial statements such as books of account and supporting 

documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters; 

o additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 

the audit; and 

o unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 

Page 149



Appendix 1 

Page 10 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

 The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 

materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects 

Gwynedd Council and involves: 

o management; 

o employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

o Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting 

the financial statements communicated by employees, former 

employees, regulators or others. 

 Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected  

non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered  

when preparing the financial statements. 

 The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 

transactions of which we are aware. 

 

Financial statement representations 
All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and 

are reflected in the financial statements. 

Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 

at fair value, are reasonable. 

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed. 

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 

disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 

when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and 

accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework. 

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The 

effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both 

individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

 

Representations by those charged with governance 
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 

discussed with us. 

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial 

statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial 

statements were approved by Gwynedd Council’s Audit and Governance Committee on 

28 September 2017. 

Page 150



Appendix 1 

Page 11 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 

ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 

communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 

information of which you are unaware. 

 

 

 

 

Signed by: Signed by: 

Dafydd L Edwards 

Head of Finance 

Gwynedd Council 

Councillor R. Medwyn Hughes  

Audit & Governance Committee 

Chairman 

Gwynedd Council 

Date: Date: 

 

Page 151



Appendix 2 

Page 12 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Proposed audit report of the Auditor General to 
Gwynedd Council  

 

Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Members of Gwynedd Council 

I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 

 Gwynedd Council; and 

 Gwynedd Pension Fund  

for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  

Gwynedd Council’s accounting statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, and the Cash Flow 

Statement.  

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account and the Net Assets 

Statement. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17 based on 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for 

Wales 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the 

responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts and 

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 

applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me 

to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements 

and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related 

notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 

assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Gwynedd Council’s and 

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial 

officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and related notes. 

In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to identify 

material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes and to identify any 

information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the 

knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent 

material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the implications for my report. 

Page 152



Appendix 2 

Page 13 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

 

Opinion on the accounting statements of Gwynedd Council 

In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of Gwynedd Council as at 31 March 

2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 

Opinion on the accounting statements of Gwynedd Pension Fund 

In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  

 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of Gwynedd Pension Fund 

during the year ended 31 March 2017 and of the amount and disposition of the fund’s 

assets and liabilities as at that date, and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 

accounting statements and related notes. 

 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 

opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 

 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 

 the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  

Certificate of completion of audit 

I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Gwynedd Council in 

accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor 

General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 

 

For and on behalf of       Wales Audit Office 

Huw Vaughan Thomas      24 Cathedral Road 

Auditor General for Wales     Cardiff 

29 September 2017      CF11 9LJ 

 

Page 153



Appendix 3 

Page 14 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Summary of corrections made to the draft 
financial statements which should be drawn to 
the attention of the Audit Committee 

During our audit we identified the following misstatement that has been corrected by 

management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to its 

relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process. 

 

 Nature of correction CIES 

Dr 

CIES 

Cr 

BS 

Dr 

BS 

Cr 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

1 Note 33 – Related Parties 

We identified that one individual’s 

declaration of interest return for 2016/17 

misstated “Grŵp Cynefin” as “Cynefin”. As 

a result the Related Parties note had been 

understated by £941,000.  

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

 

  

Page 154



Appendix 4 

Page 15 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 
financial audit work 

We set out all the recommendations arising from our audit with management’s response 

to them. We will follow up these next year and include any outstanding issues in next 

year’s audit report: 

 

Matter arising 1 – Trust Funds  

Findings We identified that a central record of bequests is 
maintained, which populates Note 40. These bequests 
are deducted from the Council’s bank balance as they 
are not Council assets and are highly immaterial as the 
total recorded bequests for 2016-17 are £678k. We note 
that each individual bequest has its own ledger code so 
expenditure made against the code can be monitored to 
be in accordance with the bequestor’s wishes. To 
determine the accuracy of these records we selected a 
sample of bequests and from a sample of two we could 
not be provided with the original bequest documentation 
for one of the bequests. 

Note, we have not performed detailed testing on the 
nature of the expenditure against the bequest as this is 
not an asset of the Council and therefore outside the 
scope of our testing. 

Recommendation It is recommended that all bequest documentation is 

retained to ensure the bequest amount and restrictions 

have been recorded accurately.  

Priority Low 

Benefit of Implementing 

Recommendation 

If accurate records are not maintained in respect of 

bequest balances held, there is a risk that bequested 

funds may be incorrectly accounted for.  

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response Following Local Government Reorganisation 

reorganisation in 1996, many of the original bequest 

documents have been archived. Most of the information 

is held on file in the Finance Department and currently 

the Legal Department is assisting in order to obtain 

information for the remaining few. 

Implementation date Ongoing and in advance of 2017/18 closure. 

 

Page 155



Appendix 4 

Page 16 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Matter arising 2 – IT findings 

Finding As part of our financial audit we engaged IT specialists to 
assist the audit team with testing the appropriateness of 
the Council’s IT systems which have a direct impact on 
the production of the financial statements. The IT 
specialists identified a number of recommendations 
which have been communicated to management. 

Recommendation It is recommended that management work with the IT 
Manager to ensure these recommendations are 
implemented in a timely manner. 

Priority Low 

Benefit of Implementing 

Recommendation 

To improve the quality and robustness of the IT 

systems. 

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response Agreed 

Implementation date Two of the recommendations have already been 

implemented, with the third to be implemented in 

October 2017. 

Page 156



Appendix 5 

Page 17 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Recommendations arising from our 2015-16 
financial audit work 

We set out all the recommendations arising from our 2015-16 audit with management’s 

response to them. We have followed these up during the 2016-17 audit and have 

recorded the results below. 

 

Matter arising 1 – Estates 

Findings As part of our financial audit we engaged a valuation 
expert to assist the audit team with testing the 
appropriateness of the IAS 19 disclosure. The expert 
valuer has raised a number of areas for improvement 
which largely relate to procedures and processes around 
the valuations performed by the Estates Manager in line 
with the instructions provided by finance. These 
recommendations have been communicated to 
management. 

Recommendation It is recommended that management work with the 
Estates Manager to ensure these recommendations are 
implemented in a timely manner. 

Priority Medium 

Benefit of Implementing 

Recommendation 

To improve the quality and robustness of valuation 

process. 

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response Agreed and some aspects already actioned. 

Implementation date Ongoing and in advance of 2016/17 closure 

2016-17 findings Our experts identified that appropriate procedures are in 
place whereby the Council’s Finance Team instructs 
their in-house estates team/valuer, to undertake the 
necessary valuations each year. The instructions cover 
reference to the five year rolling programme of 
valuations and the appropriate requirements to 
undertake revaluations of selected assets each year 
together with schedules of the specific categories to be 
valued each year as part of the five year rolling 
programme. In terms of the valuations undertaken by 
the Council’s internal valuer, our experts are satisfied 
that the correct RICS,IFRS, IAS and CIPFA guidance 
has been followed, and the correct valuation 
bases/methodology have been adopted. However, the 
experts have identified a number of areas for 

Page 157



Appendix 5 

Page 18 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

improvement which largely relate to procedures and 
processes around the valuations and the related reports 
including timeliness of delivery of the valuation reports 
performed by the Estates Manager in line with the 
instructions provided by finance.  

Status Recommendation re-raised. 

Management response Improvements have been implemented based on last 

year’s recommendations. The Council will strive to 

continue to improve in this area within the resources 

available. 

 

 

Matter arising 2 – Bad debt provision 

Findings The total bad debt provision in the year to 31 December 

2016 is £4,106,000 which is not material. 

The Council currently has a mix of bad debt provision 

categories, the largest being the Sundry Debtors and 

Council Tax provisions amounting to £2,044,000 and 

£1,300,000 respectively. The Council has a different 

approach to calculating the provision for the Sundry 

debts to all other debts. 

The provision for Council Tax Debtors is based on 

sliding scale % per ageing category of debt, which is not 

in accorndance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement. Paragraphs AG89 and 

AG90 of IAS 39 state that a provision should be based 

on historical experience of losses and that the 

methodology and assumptions for estimating future 

cashflows should be regularly reviewed. 

 

The provision in relation to the Sundry Debtors system 
however, is based on an assessment as to how likely 
management believe individual debts over £10k are 
recoverable, a different provision percentage is then 
applied to these debts based on the assessment. We 
performed a test of detail on this area of provision and 
from a sample of five items we identified that Council 
applied judgements which appear reasonable and in line 
with the Sundry Debtors bad debt policy 

Recommendation It is recommended that management perform a review of 
their approach to calculating the bad debt provision and 
that this approach should be an informed approach, 
which could include reviewing debtor dates and payment 
terms, particularly those less than a year old and then 
standardise across the Council as far as possible. 

Priority Medium 

Page 158



Appendix 5 

Page 19 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

Benefit of Implementing 

Recommendation 

A more informed bad debt provision in accordance with 

the requirements of IAS 39. This will also ensure a more 

accurate financial reporting and that the bad debt 

provision is less likely to be misstated. 

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response Agreed. 

Implementation date In advance of 2016/17 closure. 

2016-17 findings We identified that the sundry debt provision is calculated 
by applying set percentages to all individual debtor 
balances below £10k and applying the percentages to 
all debtor balances above £10k, where appropriate, 
following a specific review.  

We note that the percentages applied to the sundry 
debtor balances were determined in 2002/03 and are as 
follows: 

2016/17 – 10% 

2015/16 – 10% 

2014/15 – 20% 

2013/14 – 50% 

2012/13 onwards -100% 

 
The methodology as to how these percentages have 
been determined could not be provided, however, 
management have confirmed that an annual 
assessment as to the reasonableness of the provision 
for debts less than £10k is undertaken. 

Status Revised recommendation: It is recommended that the 

percentages used to generate the sundry debts 

provision are formally reviewed on an annual basis and 

that an analysis of collection rates is used to inform the 

percentages determined. 

Management response Agreed. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 159



Appendix 5 

Page 20 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Council 

 
 

Matter arising 3 – Journals 

Findings Our testing of income and expenditure selected a number 
of journal postings and that upon request the accountants 
were able to provide a rationale as to why the journal was 
posted, however, the journal posting itself did not include 
such narrative.   

Recommendation It is recommended that all journals prepared and posted 
are supported by a clear narrative as to its reason and 
rationale. 

Priority Medium 

Benefit of Implementing 

Recommendation 

That a full rationale is provided which gives 

transparency over an area which is deemed an area 

where management override of controls is deemed to be 

a specific risk. 

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response We will endeavour to provide explanatory information as 

far as possible within the restrictions of the ledger 

system, as we are limited to the number of characters 

allowed in the description field. Further information will 

continue to be made available outside of the ledger 

system. 

Implementation date In advance of 2016/17 closure. 

2016-17 findings We identified that improvements have been made 
regarding the journal rationale and from our sample 
testing detailed rationales for all journals sample 
selected journals were provided.   

Revised recommendation N/a - Recommendation implemented. 

  

Page 160



Page 161



 

 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Page 162

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Audit of Financial Statements Report – 
Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Audit year: 2016-17

Date issued: September 2017

Page 163



This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  

is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 

authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 

General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 

disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 

not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

This document is also available in Welsh. 

Page 164

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

The Auditor General intends to issue an unqualified audit report on your financial 

statements subject to satisfactory resolution of outstanding matters noted on page four. 

There are no issues to report to you prior to their approval. 

Summary report  

Introduction 4 

Status of the audit 4 

Proposed audit report 4 

Audit outcomes 5 

Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 financial audit work 7 

Independence and objectivity 7

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Draft Letter of Representation 8

Appendix 2 – Proposed audit report of the Auditor General to the Gwynedd Council and 

Gwynedd Pension Fund 11 

Appendix 3 – Recommendations arising from our 2015-16 financial audit work  13 

Page 165



Summary report 

Page 4 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Introduction 
1 The Auditor General is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the 

financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Gwynedd 

Pension Fund at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year then 

ended. 

2 We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are 

correctly stated, but adopt the concept of materiality. In planning and conducting 

the audit, we seek to identify material misstatements in your financial statements, 

namely, those that might result in a reader of the accounts being misled. 

3 The quantitative levels at which we judge such misstatements to be material for 

Gwynedd Pension Fund are £18,642k for income and expenditure items and 

working capital balances. Whether an item is judged to be material can also be 

affected by certain qualitative issues such as legal and regulatory requirements 

and political sensitivity. 

4 International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 requires us to report certain matters 

arising from the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance 

of a body in sufficient time to enable appropriate action. 

5 This report sets out for consideration the matters arising from the audit of the 

financial statements of Gwynedd Pension Fund, for 2016-17 that require reporting 

under ISA 260. 

Status of the audit 
6 We have now substantially completed the audit work. When we issued this report 

we had not yet finalised: 

• Our testing including testing of underlying membership data,  approach to 

uprating in relation to the triennial valuation, journals testing and review of 

employer contributions made within 19 day of the month end;  

• Our completion of review of annual report and accounts; and 

• Our quality assurance and partner reviews. 

7 We are reporting to you the more significant issues arising from the audit, which we 

believe you must consider prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit 

team has already discussed these issues with the Investment Manager on the 13 

September 2017 and communicated to the S151 Officer at a later date. 

Proposed audit report 
8 It is the Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the 

financial statements subject to satisfactory resolution of outstanding matters above 

and once you have provided us with a Letter of Representation based on the one 

set out in Appendix 1. 

Page 166



Page 5 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

9 The proposed audit report is set out in Appendix 2. 

Audit outcomes 

Uncorrected misstatements  

10 We set out below one judgemental misstatement that we have identified, which has 

been discussed with management but remains uncorrected. We request that this is 

corrected. If you decide not to correct this misstatement, we ask that you provide us 

with the reasons for non-correction. 

• Judgemental - Investment Valuations – Property & Private Equity: We 

developed an independent expectation for the valuation of the property funds 

held by Gwynedd Pension Fund based on the draft statement of accounts, taking 

the Net Asset Value and flexing by an appropriate property benchmark to roll 

forward to the year-end Our testing identified an overstatement of the property 

and private equity investments held (Partners and UBS) of £1,421k compared 

to managements calculations.   

Corrected misstatements 

11 There are no corrected misstatements which we consider should be drawn to your 

attention. 

Significant Risks 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 

Management Override of Controls. 

The risk of management override of 
controls is present in all entities. Due to 
the unpredictable way in which such 
override could occur, it is viewed as a 
significant risk [ISA 240.31-33]. 

My audit team performed the following 
tests to address the significant risk 
around Management Override of 
Controls:  

• tested the appropriateness of journal 
entries and other adjustments made 
in preparing the financial statements 
using enhanced data analytics to 
analyse the whole journal population 
for characteristics of interest; 

• reviewed the design and 
implementation of controls over 
journal entries to the financial ledger 
and accounting estimates; 

• reviewed accounting estimates for 
evidence of bias; and 

• evaluated the rationale for any 
significant transactions outside the 

Page 167



Page 6 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 

normal course of business including 
those with related parties.

No issues identified, other than 
internal control recommendation 
raised. See Appendix 3.

Valuation of investments

The Fund makes some use of investments 
in unquoted investment vehicles, such as 
private equity funds.  

Market volatility raises questions about 
how to value private equity funds. It would 
normally be expected that the 
reasonableness of the Fund managers’ 
valuation could be assessed by 
comparison with the funds’ latest available 
audited accounts as adjusted for 
subsequent cash movements (investments 
and distributions) between the pooled 
investment vehicle and the investors. 
However, market volatility means such 
comparison may be inappropriate 
especially when there is a significant time 
period between the latest audited accounts 
and the Fund year-end. 

My audit team performed the following 
tests to address the significant risk 
around valuation of investments:  

• we identified and tested the design 
and implementation of controls 
present which ensure investments 
are valued correctly; 

• we reviewed the internal control 
reports to gain an understanding of 
the control environment at the 
investment managers and reviewed 
management’s consideration of these 
reports; 

• we obtained third-party confirmations 
of investment balances as at 31 
March 2017; 

• we selected a sample of investments 
and recalculated the valuations; and  

• we engaged our internal financial 
instrument experts to ensure our 
testing approach was appropriate 
given the Fund’s specific investment 
strategy and portfolio.

No issues identified.

Triennial Valuation Data 

During the year, the Local Government 
Pension Scheme for Gwynedd Pension 
Fund has undergone a triennial valuation 
with an effective date of 31 March 2016 in 
line with the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Administration) Regulations 
2013. The Authority provides the actuary 
with a large volume of data in relation to 
admitted bodies including their share of 
pensions assets and liabilities to carry out 
this triennial valuation. 

There is a risk that the data provided to the 
actuary for the valuation exercise is 
inaccurate and that these inaccuracies 
affect the actuarial figures in the accounts. 

My audit team performed the following 
tests to address the significant risk 
around the Triennial Valuation Data: 

• we identified and tested the design 
and implementation of controls 
around the transfer of the data; 

• reviewed and inspected and tested 
the processes for cleansing the data; 

• engaged with the actuary to discuss 
the data used in the valuation, and; 

• we reviewed the data reports from 
the actuary.

Testing is ongoing with no issues 
identified to date, however, 
understanding the uprating of data 
and testing of underlying accuracy of 

Page 168



Page 7 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 

membership data in relation to the 
triennial valuation remains 
outstanding which is being completed 
by specialists.

Other significant issues arising from the audit 

12 In the course of the audit, we consider a number of matters both qualitative and 

quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you. 

There were no issues arising in these areas this year: 

• We have no concerns about the qualitative aspects of your accounting 

practices and financial reporting.  

• We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit.  

• There were no significant matters discussed and corresponded upon with 

management which we need to report to you.  

• There are no other matters significant to the oversight of the financial 

reporting process that we need to report to you.  

• We did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls. 

However we have raised one control observation in Appendix 3. The audit 

team has already discussed these issues with the Investment Manager on 

the 13 September 2017 and these have been subsequently shared with the 

S151 Officer. 

• There are not any other matters specifically required by auditing standards 

to be communicated to those charged with governance. 

Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 
financial audit work 
13 There are no new recommendations arising from our financial audit work, other 

than revised recommendations being raised as a result of the follow up of 2015-16 

financial audit work, see below.   

Recommendations arising from our 2015-16
financial audit work 
14 The recommendations arising from our financial audit work are set out in Appendix 

3. Management has responded to them and we have followed up on progress 

during the 2016-17 audit. Where any actions are outstanding, we will continue to 

monitor progress and report it to you in next year’s report. 

Page 169



Page 8 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Independence and objectivity 
15 As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with 

representations concerning our independence.

16 We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are 

independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships 

between the Wales Audit Office and the Gwynedd Pension Fund that we consider 

to bear on our objectivity and independence. 

Page 170



Appendix 1 

Page 9 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Draft Letter of Representation 
Auditor General for Wales 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff 

CF11 9LJ 

28 September 2017 

Dear Sir, 

Representations regarding the 2016-17 financial 
statements 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Gwynedd Pension 

Fund for the year ended 31 March 2017 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and 

fairness and their proper preparation.  We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having 

made enquiries as we consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you: 

Management representations 

Responsibilities 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:  

1. The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative requirements and Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17; in particular the 

financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith. 

2. The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent and detect 

fraud and error.

3. We confirm that the Scheme is a Registered Pension Scheme. We are not aware of any reason 

why the tax status of the Scheme should change. 

4. We have not made any reports to The Pensions Regulator nor are we aware of any such reports 

having been made by any of our advisors. We confirm that we are not aware of any late 

contributions or breaches of the payment schedule/schedule of contributions that have arisen 

which we considered did not require reporting. We also confirm that we are not aware of any 

other matters which have arisen that would require a report to The Pensions Regulator. 

5. There have been no other communications with The Pensions Regulator or other regulatory 

bodies during the Scheme year or subsequently concerning matters of noncompliance with any 

legal duty / We have drawn to your attention all correspondence and notes of meetings with 

regulators. 

Page 171



 Appendix 1 

Page 10 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

6. We confirm that, under section 27 of the Pensions Act 1995, no trustee of the Scheme is 

connected with, or is an associate of Deloitte LLP, which would render Deloitte LLP ineligible to 

act as auditor to the Scheme. 

7. There have been no changes to the Scheme rules during the year and up to the current date. 

Information provided 

We have provided you with: 

1. Full access to: 

• all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial 

statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, minutes of meetings 

and other matters; 

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 

• unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 

misstated as a result of fraud; 

3. Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects Gwynedd 

Pension Fund and involves: 

• management; 

• employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

• others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

4. Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements 

communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others. 

5. Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected  

non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered  

when preparing the financial statements. 

6. The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which 

we are aware. 

7. The Membership data contained within the annual report is accurate and a true and fair view of 

the Pension Fund’s membership numbers. 

Financial statement representations 

All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected 

in the financial statements. 

Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 

are reasonable. 

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed. 

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure have 

been adjusted for or disclosed. 

Page 172



 Appendix 1 

Page 11 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing 

the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects of 

uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, 

to the financial statements taken as a whole

Representations by Gwynedd Council’s Audit and 
Governance Committee
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been discussed with us. 

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 

accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were approved 

by Gwynedd Council’s Audit and Governance Committee on 28 September 2017. 

We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make ourselves 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated to you. We 

confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which you are unaware. 

Yours faithfully, 

Signed by: …………………………………….. Signed by: ………………………………….. 

Dafydd L Edwards 

Head of Finance 

Gwynedd Council

Councillor R Medwyn Hughes 

Audit and Governance Committee Chairman 

Gwynedd Council

Date:  28 September 2017 Date: 28 September 2017 

Page 173



Appendix 2 

Page 12 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Proposed audit report of the Auditor General to 
Gwynedd Council and the Gwynedd Pension Fund 
Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Members of Gwynedd Council 

I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of: 

• Gwynedd Council; and 

• Gwynedd Pension Fund  

for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  

Gwynedd Council’s accounting statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, and the Cash Flow 

Statement.  

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account and the Net Assets 

Statement. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17 based on 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for 

Wales 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the 

responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts and 

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 

applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me 

to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements 

and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related 

notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 

assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Gwynedd Council’s and 

Gwynedd Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial 

officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and related notes. 

In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to identify 

material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes and to identify any 

information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the 

knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent 

material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the implications for my report. 

Page 174



Appendix 2 

Page 13 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Opinion on the accounting statements of Gwynedd Council 

In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Gwynedd Council as at 31 March 

2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 

Opinion on the accounting statements of Gwynedd Pension Fund

In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of Gwynedd Pension Fund 

during the year ended 31 March 2017 and of the amount and disposition of the fund’s 

assets and liabilities as at that date, and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17. 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 

accounting statements and related notes. 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 

opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; 

• the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 

• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 

• the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  

Certificate of completion of audit 

I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Gwynedd Council in 

accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor 

General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 

For and on behalf of   Wales Audit Office 

Huw Vaughan Thomas  24 Cathedral Road 

Auditor General for Wales Cardiff 

29 September 2017  CF11 9LJ 

Page 175



Appendix 3 

Page 14 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Recommendations arising from our 2015-16
financial audit work 
We set out all the recommendations arising from our 2015-16 audit with management’s 

response to them. We have followed these up during the 2016-17 audit and have 

recorded the results below. 

Suspense Accounts are not Formally Reconciled 

PY Recommendation It is recommended that the Fund’s suspense accounts are reviewed on a 
monthly basis. 

Priority Medium 

2015-16 Finding We identified that the suspense account which is used to allocate the 
employee and employer contributions on an almost daily basis and the 
suspense account which posts transactions between the Pension Fund and 
Gwynedd Council are not formally reconciled and signed off as prepared 
and then separately reviewed. 

Management Response No specific response made as recommendation largely focussed on review 
of journals. 

2016-17 Finding It was identified that the suspense accounts are not currently being formally 
reconciled on a monthly basis  

Status Recommendation Revised: It is recommended that the Fund’s suspense 
accounts are reconciled and reviewed on a monthly basis. 

Management response We intend to clear, rather than reconcile, the relevant suspense account on 
a weekly, rather than monthly basis.

Journal Authorisation 

PY Recommendation It is recommended that journals are authorised before being posted. 

Priority Medium 

2015-16 Finding We identified that there is no process in place for the authorisation of 
journals. Management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls, and therefore management 
override is required to be a presumed risk for all audits carried out under 
International Standards of Auditing.

Management response The staff who enter journals are at a responsible level and review of each 
journal would take up managerial time, but we intend to generally review the

processing of journals and will do so in consultation with Deloitte.

Page 176



Appendix 3 

Page 15 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

2016-17 Finding We identified that there is no process in place for the authorisation of 
journals prior to them being posted, however, we are satisfied that there are 
sufficient reviews undertaken by management which mitigate the risk of 
management override.

Status: N/a - Recommendation implemented.

Investments Should be held at Market Value 

PY Recommendation It is recommended that the Fund’s investments are held at market value in 
the ledger. 

We identified that the Fund holds investments in the ledger at book cost, 
relying on a complex set of spreadsheets to reconcile and derive the year-
end market value. 

Priority Medium 

2015-16 Finding We identified that the Fund holds investments in the ledger at book cost, 
relying on a complex set of spreadsheets to reconcile and derive the year-
end market value. 

Management response We will consider the practicality of recording the market value on the ledger.
The year-end market value is not derived from the reconciliation. It is 
derived from the reports from the custodian and the investment managers. 

The reconciliation ensures that the ledger entries are correct.

2016-17 Finding We identified that the Fund continues holds investments in the ledger at 
book cost, relying on a complex set of spreadsheets to reconcile and derive 
the year-end market value.

Status Recommendation Re-raised

Management response We will implement this recommendation when the equity investments have 

been transferred to the Wales Pool.

The year-end market value is not derived from the reconciliation. It is 
derived from the reports from the custodian and the investment managers. 
The reconciliation ensures that the ledger entries are correct.

Improving Banking Controls 

PY Recommendation It is recommended that the euro account is brought into the eFinancials 
accounting system. In addition, it is recommended that bank reconciliations 
are prepared and reviewed in a timely manner. 

Priority Medium 

Page 177



Appendix 3 

Page 16 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

2015-16 Finding The Fund has four bank accounts. We identified that the euro bank account 
is not set up on the eFinancials accounting system. We also identified that 
for December 2015, two bank accounts had an untimely review (prepared 
on 5 January 2016, and reviewed on 2 February 2016). In addition, we 
identified that one bank account reconciliation showed no evidence of 
review and that a further account reconciliation showed no evidence of sign 

off of preparation or review.

Management response We will ensure that all bank reconciliations are reviewed by another officer. 
We will investigate the practicality of bringing the Euro account onto the 
ledger. The bank system requires three officers to process transactions, 
which minimises the risk of misappropriation of funds.

2016-17 Finding We identified that the euro bank account is not set up on the eFinancials 
accounting system.  

Status Recommendation Revised: It is recommended that the euro account is 
brought into the eFinancials accounting system. 

Management Response We are still investigating the practicality of bringing the Euro account onto 
the ledger and the exchange rate to use for this purpose. 

Membership Numbers 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Pension Manager develops an Altair report that 
can count the total (and identify individual) retrospective changes to 
membership data. 

In addition, it is recommended that the Pension Database Administrator 
runs a data extract of Membership data on, or as close to 31 March as 
possible. 

It is also recommended that the Pension Fund Manager performs a 
reconciliation between prior-year reported membership numbers and 
revised membership numbers. 

Priority Medium 

2015-16 Finding We identified that the Pension Manager could not supply a membership 
number reconciliation between 2014-15 and 2015-16.  
The reconciliation should show movements of members in the financial year 
and retrospective changes that revised any prior-year figures. This 
reconciliation would allow us to audit the movement of member numbers, 
which we have not been able to do. 

Management response An Altair report will be developed to produce the movements in membership 
between two specific dates. This should enable reconciliation.  

Running the data extract of membership data close to 31 March will not 
solve the problem as the March data is entered during April when it is 
received from employers.

Page 178



Appendix 3 

Page 17 of 18 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – Gwynedd Pension Fund 

2016-17 Finding We identified that the Pension Manager could not supply a membership 
number reconciliation between 2015-16 and 2016-17.  
The reconciliation should show movements of members in the financial year 
and retrospective changes that revised any prior-year figures. This 
reconciliation would allow us to audit the movement of member numbers, 
which we have not been able to do. 

Status: Recommendation Re-raised

Management response Data reports from our pensions system (Altair) are produced at the end of 

each financial year and have been presented to the Auditors as 

requested.  These reports show figures in relation to all records held on the 

system at any given time, and the numbers that fall into each type of status 

e.g. active members, deferred members or pensioners etc.  Other reports 

show the movement between different statuses between two specific dates 

(movement analysis reports).  However, it should be noted that the data for 

the end of the financial year (31st March) is not immediately accepted (it can 

take a substantial number of weeks to receive data from employers), and 

therefore, the quality of the data extracted from the system on certain dates 

can be incorrect in relation to the true situation. 

It should be noted that the pensions system is a system in constant use 

changing from day to day with new records being created, modified and 

deleted, as members of staff respond to new information received by 

employers and by processing members pension benefits.   Our opinion is 

that it would be difficult or impossible to store evidence other that the 

documents held on individual member records in order to show, for 

example, why the number of pension records increase or decrease between 

two dates. 

A request has been made to employers that they provide their data to the 

Pensions Section using the system “I-Connect” which facilitates the process 

of transferring data accurately and regularly on a monthly basis between the 

employers and the pension system Altair.  It is believed that this method of 

transferring data will greatly improve the accuracy of the data held and the 

efficiency of administering the pension scheme.          

Page 179



Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

Page 180

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


 

 

1 

MEETING:   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    28 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 
TITLE: TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2017/18 – MID YEAR 

REVIEW 
 
PURPOSE: CIPFA’s Code of Practice recommends that a report 

on the Council’s actual Treasury Management during 
the current financial year is produced. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: RECEIVE THE REPORT FOR INFORMATION 
 
AUTHOR:   DAFYDD L EDWARDS, HEAD OF FINANCE 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
During the five month period between 1 April and 31 August 2017, the Council’s 
borrowing remained well within the limits originally set. There were no new defaults 
by banks in which the Council deposited money. 
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION   
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management 
Code (CIPFA’s TM Code) requires that Authorities report on the performance of the 
treasury management function at least twice yearly (mid-year and at year end). This 
report provides a mid-year update. 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18 was approved by full 
Council on 2 March 2017 which can be accessed on 
https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/ielistdocuments.aspx?cid=130&mid=1657
&ver=4  
 
The Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is therefore 
exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect 
of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of 
risk are therefore central to the Council’s treasury management strategy. This report 
covers treasury activity and the associated monitoring and control of risk.  

Page 181

Agenda Item 6

https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/ielistdocuments.aspx?cid=130&mid=1657&ver=4
https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/ielistdocuments.aspx?cid=130&mid=1657&ver=4


 

 

2 

2. EXTERNAL CONTEXT 
 

UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) index rose over the first quarter of 2017/18 and 
the data print for May showed CPI at 2.9%, its highest since June 2013. The effect 
of the fall in fuel prices was offset by rises in a number of other categories in the CPI 
‘basket’ as the fall in the value of sterling following June 2016’s referendum result 
continued to feed through into higher import prices.   
 
Prime Minister Theresa May called an unscheduled General Election in June, to 
resolve uncertainty and in the hope of gaining an enhanced mandate to enter the 
forthcoming Brexit negotiations. The surprise result has led to a minority 
Conservative government in an arrangement with the Democratic Unionist Party. 
This political impasse clearly results in an enhanced level of political uncertainty, 
however the potential for a so-called hard Brexit is now diminished, reducing the 
associated economic headwinds for the UK economy from a ‘no deal’ or otherwise 
unfavourable trade agreement.  
 
The reaction from the markets on the election’s outcome has been fairly muted, 
business confidence now hinges on the progress (or not) on Brexit negotiations, 
whether new trade treaties and arrangements are successfully concluded and 
whether or not the UK continues to remain part of the EU customs union post the 
country’s exit from the EU.   
 
In the face of this uncertainty, Arlingclose expects the Bank of England will look 
through periods of high inflation and maintain its low-for-longer stance on policy 
interest rates for an extended period. 
 
There were a few credit rating changes during the period. Moody’s downgraded 
Standard Chartered Bank’s long-term rating to A1 from Aa3 on the expectation that 
the bank’s profitability will be lower following management’s efforts to de-risk their 
balance sheet. The agency also affirmed Royal Bank of Scotland’s and NatWest’s 
long-term ratings at Baa1 
 
 
 

Page 182



 

 

3 

3. LOCAL CONTEXT 
 
At 31/3/2017 the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes as 
measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) was £173.5m, while usable 
reserves and working capital which are the underlying resources available for 
investment were £68.5m. The Council had £111m of borrowing and £29m of 
investments.  
 
The Council’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their 
underlying levels, referred to as internal borrowing, in order to reduce risk and keep 
interest costs low. 
 
The treasury management position as at 31st August 2017 and the change in the 
quarter is show in the table below. 

 

 

 
31.3.17 
Balance 

£m 

5 month 
Movement 

£m 

31.8.17 
Balance 

£m 

31.8.17 
Rate 

% 

Long-term borrowing 

Short-term borrowing 

108 
3 

0   
(2) 

108 
1 

5.8 
10.6 

Total borrowing 111 (2) 109 5.7 

Long-term investments 

Short-term investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

2 
26 
1 

0 
5 

17 

2 
31 
18 

1.8 
0.4 
0.3 

Total investments 29 22 51 0.4 

 
 
4. BORROWING STRATEGY  

 
At 31/8/2017 the Council held £109.7m of loans, (a decrease of £2.2m on 
31/3/2017), as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes.   
 
The Council does not expect to borrow in 2017/18. 
 
Affordability and the “cost of carry” remained important influences on the Council’s 
borrowing strategy alongside the consideration that, for any borrowing undertaken 
ahead of need, the proceeds would have to be invested in the money markets at 
rates of interest significantly lower than the cost of borrowing. As short-term interest 
rates have remained, and are likely to remain, lower than long-term rates, the 
Council determined it was more cost effective in the short-term to use internal 
resources instead.   

 
The benefits of internal borrowing were monitored regularly against the potential for 
incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-term 
borrowing rates are forecast to rise.  Arlingclose assists the Council with this ‘cost 
of carry’ and breakeven analysis which did not indicate any value in borrowing in 
advance for future years’ planned expenditure. 

Page 183



 

 

4 

Borrowing Position at at 31.08.17 
 

 
31.3.17 
Balance 

£m 

5 months 
Movement 

£m 

31.8.17 
Balance 

£m 

31.8.17 
Rate 

% 

Public Works Loan Board 

Bank (fixed-term) 

95 
16 

(2) 
0 

93 
16 

5.8 
4.2 

Total borrowing 111 (2) 109 5.5 

 
 

PWLB Certainty Rate and Project Rate Update  
 
The Council qualified for borrowing at the ‘Certainty Rate’ (0.20% below the PWLB 
standard rate) for a 12 month period from 1 November 2016. In September 2017 
the Council submitted its application to the Treasury to access this reduced rate for 
a further 12 month period from 1 November 2017. 
 
Debt Rescheduling  
 
The premium charge for early repayment of PWLB debt remained relatively 
expensive for the loans in the Council’s portfolio and therefore unattractive for debt 
rescheduling activity.  No rescheduling activity was undertaken as a consequence.  
 
Changes in the debt portfolio over the period have achieved a reduction in the level 
of borrowing as well as a reduction in credit risk by repaying loans from investment 
balances.  
 
 
5. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY  
 
The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. 
 
The Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance gives priority to security and 
liquidity and the Council’s aim is to achieve a yield commensurate with these 
principles.  
 
The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During the 5 months, the Council’s 
investment balance ranged between £68.5 and £31.6 million due to timing 
differences between income and expenditure. The investment position during the 
period is shown in the table below. 
 
 

Page 184



 

 

5 

 

 
31.3.17 
Balance 

£m 

5 month 
Movement 

£m 

31.8.17 
Balance 

£m 

Banks & building societies 
(unsecured) 

Covered bonds (secured) 

Government (incl. local 
authorities) 

Money Market Funds 

21.3 
 

2.2 
 

6.0 
0.0 

(8.1) 
 

0 
 

11.0 
18.2 

13.2 
 

2.2 
 

17.0 
18.2 

Total investments 29.5 21.1 50.6 

 
 
Security of capital has remained the Council’s main investment objective. This has 
been maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2017/18.  
 
Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with reference to credit 
ratings (the Council’s minimum long-term counterparty rating for institutions defined 
as having “high credit quality” is A- across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and 
Moody’s); credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential 
government support and reports in the quality financial press. 
 
Performance Report 
 
The Council measures the financial performance of its treasury management 
activities both in terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship to 
benchmark interest rates, as shown in the table below. 
 

Date 
Value Weighted 
Average – Credit 

Risk Score 

Value Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating 

Time Weighted 
Average – Credit 

Risk Score 

Time Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating 

31/03/17 4.22 AA- 3.27 AA 

30/06/17 4.07 AA- 3.30 AA 

 
Scoring:  
-Value weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to the size of the deposit 
-Time weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to the maturity of the deposit 
-AAA = highest credit quality = 1 
- D = lowest credit quality = 26 
-Aim = A- or higher credit rating, with a score of 7 or lower, to reflect current investment approach with main focus on security 

 

Investments were made with banks and building societies and included call 
accounts, fixed-rate term deposits and certificates of deposit, Money Market Funds 
and covered bonds. 
 
The average cash balances were £36.5m during the five months.  The UK Bank 
Rate had been maintained at 0.25% since August 2016. 
  
The Council’s budgeted investment income for the year is estimated at £0.17m.  
based on an investment outturn of 0.5% for the whole year. 
 

Page 185



 

 

6 

Compliance Report 
 

The Head of Finance confirms compliance with its Prudential Indicators for 
2017/18, which were set in March 2017 as part of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement.  
 
Debt Limits 
 
Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is 

demonstrated in table 8 below. 

 

 
5 month 

Maximum 

31.8.17 

Actual 

2017/18 
Operational 
Boundary 

2017/18 
Authorised 

Limit 
Complied 

Borrowing 109m 106.5m 180m 190m  

PFI & finance leases 4.0m 4.0m 0 0  

Total debt 113m 113m 180m 190m  

 
 
Treasury Management Indicators 
 
The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks 
using the following indicators. 
 
The Head of Finance is pleased to report that all treasury management activities 
undertaken during the five months to 31 August 2017 complied fully with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice and the Council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit 
risk by monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating or credit score of its 
investment portfolio.  This is calculated by applying a score to each investment 
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of 
each investment. 
 

 Target Actual 

Portfolio average credit score 6.0 3.30 

 

Page 186



 

 

7 

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to 
interest rate risk. The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate 
exposures, expressed as the proportion of net principal borrowed will be: 
 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure 100% 100% 100% 

Actual 100%   

Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure 50% 50% 50% 

Actual 0%   
 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s 
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of 
fixed rate borrowing will be: 
 

 Upper Lower Actual 

Under 12 months 25% 0% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 25% 0% 0.3% 

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 4.9% 

5 years and within 10 years 75% 0% 16.3% 

10 years and within 20 years 100% 0% 25.5% 

20 years and within 30 years 100% 0% 12.7% 

30 years and within 40 years 100% 0% 16.6% 

40 years and within 50 years 100% 0% 8.7% 
 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year.  The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. 
 
Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The purpose of this 
indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by 
seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the total principal sum 
invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be: 
 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Limit on principal invested beyond year 
end 

£40m £20m £10m 

Actual £2.18m £2.18m £2.18m 

 

 

7. Investment Training 
 
During the period officers have attended investment training with Arlingclose and 
CIPFA relevant to their roles. 
 
 

Page 187



 

 

8 

8. Outlook for the Remainder of 2017/18 
 
UK GDP growth is forecast to be around 1.6% for 2017 and 1.4% in 2018. 
Subdued consumer spending will be the main driver behind this period of weaker 
growth, along with muted business investment due to Brexit-related uncertainty.  
 
Arlingclose’s central case for the path of Bank Rate over the next three years 
remains at 0.25%. Arlingclose believes that the high inflation reflects the impact of 
sterling’s weakness on imports, and in the face of weaker growth prospects, will be 
looked through by Bank of England policymakers. The likely path for Bank Rate is 
for it to remain flat at 0.25%. However, there is downside risk for rates to be cut to 
0.00% in the short-term and medium-term, and scope for rates to be increased 
from 2019 onwards, albeit modestly to 0.50%. 
 

Sep-17 Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

Arlingclose Central Case 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

Downside risk 0.00 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25  
 
Arlingclose believes that the Government and the Bank of England have both the 
tools and the willingness to use them to prevent any immediate market-wide 
problems leading to bank insolvencies. The cautious approach to credit advice 
means that the banks currently on the Authority’s counterparty list have sufficient 
equity buffers to deal with any localised problems in the short term. 
 
 
 
  

Page 188



 

 

9 

Appendix 1 
 

Prudential Indicators 2017/18 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to CIPFA’s 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) 
when determining how much money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the 
Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital investment 
plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury 
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice. 
To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code 
sets out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each year. 
 
Estimates of Capital Expenditure: The Council’s planned capital expenditure and 
financing may be summarised as follows.   
 

Capital Expenditure and 

Financing 

2016/17 
Actual 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate* 

£m 

General Fund Expenditure 29.3 25.5 10.3 6.7 

Capital Receipts 0.8 1.3 0.0 0.0 

Government Grants 11.5 6.7 2.5 2.5 

Revenue 2.9 8.9 3.5 0.0 

Borrowing 14.1 8.6 4.3 4.2 

Total Financing 29.3 25.5 10.3 6.7 

* The estimate for 2018/19 does not include new schemes as they have not yet been approved. 

 

Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement: The Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow for a capital 
purpose.  
 

Capital Financing 

Requirement 

2016/17 
Actual 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate* 

£m 

General Fund 177.0 179.6 176.4 173.0 

 

Page 189



 

 

10 

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that over 
the medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure 
that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing 
requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. This is a key 
indicator of prudence. 
 

Debt 
31/03/17 
Actual 

£m 

31/08/17 
Actual 

£m 

31/03/18 
Estimate 

£m 

31/03/19 
Estimate 

£m 

31/03/20 
Estimate* 

£m 

Borrowing 113.4 106.8 106.8 106.8 106.1 

Finance leases 2.3 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.1 

Total Debt 115.7 109.3 109.1 109.0 108.2 

 

Total debt is expected to remain below the CFR during the forecast period.   
 
The actual debt levels are monitored against the Operational Boundary and 
Authorised Limit for External Debt, below.  
 
Operational Boundary for External Debt: The operational boundary is based on 
the Council’s estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent, but not worst case scenario for 
external debt.  
 

Operational Boundary 
2016/17 
 Actual 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£m 

Borrowing 175 180 190 190 

Other long-term liabilities 0 0 0 0 

Total Debt 175 180 190 190 

 

Authorised Limit for External Debt: The authorised limit is the affordable 
borrowing limit determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003. It is 
the maximum amount of debt that the Council can legally owe.  The authorised limit 
provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for unusual cash 
movements. 
 

Authorised Limit 
2016/17 
 Actual 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£m 

Borrowing 195 190 200 200 

Other long-term liabilities 0 0 0 0 

Total Debt 195 190 200 200 

 

Page 190



 

 

11 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: This is an indicator of 
affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed 
capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to 
meet financing costs, net of investment income. 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs 

to Net Revenue Stream 

2016/17 
 Actual 

% 

2017/18 
Estimate 

% 

2018/19 
Estimate 

% 

2019/20 
Estimate 

% 

General Fund 5.02 5.78 5.81 6.07 

 

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: This is an indicator of 
affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax 
levels. The incremental impact is the difference between the total revenue budget 
requirement of the current approved capital programme and the revenue budget 
requirement arising from the capital programme proposed. 
 

Incremental Impact of Capital 

Investment Decisions 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£m 

General Fund - increase in annual 

Band D Council Tax 
0 0 0 

 

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code: The Council adopted the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in 
the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 Edition in March 2011. 
 

Page 191



COMMITTEE   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
DATE    28 SEPTEMEBER 2017  
 
TITLE REPORT OF THE CONTROLS IMPROVEMENT WORKING 

GROUP 
 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT TO REPORT ON THE MEETING HELD ON 11 SEPTEMEBER 2017  
 
AUTHOR COUNCILLOR RICHARD MEDWYN HUGHES 
 
ACTION TO ACCEPT THE REPORT AND CONSIDER THE 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 A meeting of the Working Group was held on 11 Septemeber 2017 with the 

Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee, Councillor Richard Medwyn 
Hughes, Vice-chair Councillor John Brynmor Hughes, Councillors Angela Russell and 
Cemlyn Rees Williams, Luned Fôn Jones, Audit Manager and Bleddyn Rhys, Audit 
Leader present.  

 
1.2 The reports that the Working Group addressed were: 
 

TITLE DEPARTMENT AUDIT OPINION 

 
Social Services 

Complaints 
Procedures 

 

Adults, Health and Wellbeing B 

 
Deprivation of 

Liberty Safeguards 
 

 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing 

C 

 
Support Workers 

(Adults) 
 

 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing 

 
C 
 

 
2.3 Officers attended to discuss the individual reports. 
 
  

Page 192

Agenda Item 7



2.4 Social Services Complaints Procedures 
2.4.1 The main findings of the audit were as follows: 
 

 The Department succeeds in investigation complaints effectively, and avoiding the 

need for the vast majority of investigations to escalate to 'step 2' investigation. 

However, it appears that they do not follow Welsh Government directions, and 

therefore are not taking advantage of opportunities to improve.  By listening to the 

people of Gwynedd, a fundamental change can be made to the way the Department 

operates and the service can be improved by learning lessons.  

It appears that a substantial number of enquiries reach the service that could have 

been discussed directly with the Unit manager to give them the opportunity to deal 

with the matters and learn from them.   This does not mean that complaints would be 

turned away, rather it would change practice and culture between the services and 

the users.  

Although there is some information available on the Council website regarding 

making a complaint and the procedure, there is room here to promote the new 

culture of Units using complaints to improve their service. Some of the information 

was also dated.  

Contrary to Welsh Government guidelines, there is no evidence that complaints are 

discussed with the users at meetings or in formal telephone conversations before 

closing the complaint.  Following investigations, meetings are arranged to discuss the 

way forward after closing the complaint.  It was seen that the content of telephone 

conversations are confirmed in the formal letter which closes complaints.   

Formal letters are being used to explain why the Council is not at fault rather than 

acknowledging and apologising for misconduct or a mistake. Similarly, no solutions 

are offered in relation to the users' dissatisfaction with the service. When a complaint 

is made about any action that is in accordance with policies, no consideration has 

been given to investigating the suitability of the policies, in order to improve the 

service for the user.  

The management team discusses an overview of the complaints meaning that some 

complaints are overlooked while only the matters which come up more than once 

receive attention. Once a discussion is held on the matters arising, there is no follow-

up on progress at the next meeting, and therefore there is no full assurance that the 

agreed actions have been implemented. 

2.4.2 Mannon Trappe, Senior Manager Safeguarding, Quality Assurance and Mental Health 

and Geraint Wyn Jones, Customer Care Officer were welcomed to the meeting to 

discuss the audit of Social Services Complaints Procedures.  

Page 193



2.4.3 The Audit Manager provided a summary of the audit findings. It was explained that 

there are specific arrangements in place for complaints against Social Services, and 

the Welsh Government have published comprehensive guidelines to empower 

Councils in how to respond to complaints. It was explained that the report received 

an audit opinion of B overall, but the Committee resolved that Managers should be 

invited to the meeting nevertheless due to its importance within the Social Services. 

2.4.4 The nature of complaints within the service was discussed, and it was agreed that it 

is necessary to distinguish between an official complaint and something that may be 

construed as a request for action, such as a complaint that a room is too cold or a 

one-off request to raise the room’s temperature. In addition, it was agreed that if a 

complaint was made in a care home, then it would be better if the manager was able 

to act on it straight away, but with a way for the Department to be also made aware. 

2.4.5 The Audit Manager stated that there were two stages in the complaints procedures. 

Where the complaint can not be resolved in stage one, then it can be elevated to 

stage 2, an independent investigation. The Department has generally been successful 

in resolving complaints before they reach stage 2. In Gwynedd Council's Director of 

Social Services Annual Report, it is expressed that only one case was referred to the 

Ombudsman in 2016/17. On the other hand, the Senior Manager Safeguarding, 

Quality Assurance and Mental Health stated that the Care and Social Services 

Inspectorate Wales had suggested that not enough complaints reached stage 2, 

which suggests that the Council prevented complaints from elevating to stage 2. 

However, the Working Group agreed that it was encouraging that complaints were 

dealt with in the first stage. 

2.4.6 One of the weaknesses identified was the fact that complaints were not being 

discussed with the users or their representatives, whether at a meeting or telephone 

conversation, which is contrary to the Welsh Government's guidelines. It was also 

seen that formal letters are sent out explaining why the Council does not accept 

blame rather than recognising or apologising for the error or action. The Customer 

Care Officer stated that he had considered the wording of the letters following the 

audit, although he did not fully agree with the findings of the audit in this regard. 

However, the Audit Manager stated that the findings of the audit were based on a 

sample of letters only, and this may not reflect the nature of the letters in their 

entirety. 

2.4.7 The Senior Manager Safeguarding, Quality Assurance and Mental Health and 
Customer Care Officer were thanked for attending the meeting and for explaining 
the operational steps taken to mitigate the risks identified during the audit. The 
Audit Manager stated that there are new arrangements within the Internal Audit 
Service where each agreed action will be subject to a follow up audit, and 
therefore any developments will be audited again during 2017/18. 

Page 194



2.5 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 
 
2.5.1 The main findings of the audit were as follows: 

 It was found that procedures existed in relation to Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

but that some aspects need to be tightened, mainly on staff training and resources. 

Fields in need of attention are detailed below: 

 Guidelines were distributed to the care home staff in 2014, explaining the procedure 

in addition to sharing forms which are needed for referral etc. A file was distributed 

to every Residential Home and the Managers at the time signed to declare that they 

received the package. 

 Recently, a letter was provided noting that it is the responsibility of the homes to re-

refer the residents when the current DoLS authorisation comes to an end, and it is 

also their responsibility to contact Gwynedd Council if there is any change which 

could impact the residents' DoLS authorisation in the meantime. This letter will now 

be sent out with every DoLS authorisation in order to ensure that the private homes 

are aware of their duties.   

 It was found that training has been provided in the past for Managers and Assistant 

Managers of the Council's Care Homes and the Housing and Support staff, with the 

majority of them having received training in 2015. However, some of them had not 

received training since 2013 and two Care Home Assistant Managers had not 

received training at all. 

 During the audit, there were times where it was not possible to gain access to the 

current database with DoLS details due to the Assistant Administrator's long term 

absence. 

 The Council has an appropriate number of Best Interest Assessors (BIAs), but they do 

not work full-time on DoLS cases as they are in other posts from day-to-day which has 

priority. The DoLS Team has submitted a bid to the Council for additional finance 

towards employing a full-time Best Interest Assessor in order to improve the service 

of dealing with applications. 

 A large number of individuals in Gwynedd are waiting to be assessed, some for over a 

year which does not comply with the Act as standard applications are supposed to be 

assessed within 21 days, and urgent applications within 7 days. As noted above, the 

main problem is the lack of resources. The Service's bid has been approved and 

finance is available to employ one full-time officer for two years, or two full-time 

officers for a year only. No appointments have been made to date. 

 

 

Page 195



Following the change in the law in relation to the Cheshire West Case ruling, the 

Coroner should deal with the deaths of individuals with DoLS "As the Law now stands 

the death of every person subject to DoLS Order must be reported to the Coroner. I 

emphasize that there must be an Order in existence on the day of death." There is no 

way of knowing whether the private Homes notify the Coroner when an individual 

with DoLS dies but, maybe there would be a way of including it in the training or 

sending a letter reminding the homes of the requirements, including Supported 

Housing. 

The Council has identified over 150 individuals who are tenants in Gwynedd and who 

may need a DoLS authorisation. To date, only one case has been provided for the 

court. It is understood that the lack of resources to assess the individuals is holding 

back the process. A lawyer has been appointed specifically to deal with these cases. 

2.5.2 Kevin Wyn Griffiths, DoLS Co-ordinator joined Mannon Trappe, Senior Manager 
Safeguards, Quality Assurance and Mental Health to discuss the Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards and was welcomed to the meeting. 

 
2.5.3 The Audit Manager explained that this was a contentious, complex and sensitive area 

and that changes in legislation as a result of the ruling in the case of "P v Cheshire 

West and Chester Council" had led to a tremendous increase in the number of 

assessments required in relation to DoLS. However, the Law Commission has 

prepared a Draft Mental Capacity Bill that proposes to replace DoLS with a new 

scheme of Freedom of Protection Arrangements (Liberty Protection Safeguards). The 

new arrangements will not be likely to reduce the workload on the Service in the 

short term. 

2.5.4 At the time of the audit, a large number of individuals were awaiting an assessment, 

and the situation had not improved since then. The penalty for delaying a DoLS 

assessment may be as much as £1,000 per person per week. The main obstacle in 

completeing the necessary DoLS assessments are the lack of staffing resources. The 

Senior Manager Safeguards, Quality Assurance and Mental Health stated that the 

Service had recently appointed an additional temporary officer to undertake the 

assessment work, but it was not possible to fill a similar second post. Following an 

inquiry from a Member, the Senior Manager Safeguards, Quality Assurance and 

Mental Health stated that the Department will re-advertise the post in the near 

future, but the fact that it has been a temporary post has likely reduced the number 

of applicants. 

 

 

 

Page 196



2.5.5 Different options were discussed such as diverting the budget for the second post 

towards training existing officers to be Best Interest Assessors, or setting formal 

performance targets for the approximately 25 Social Workers who already have the 

BIA accreditation in order to try and reduce the large number of Individuals who are 

awaiting an assessment. However, the Social Workers with the BIA accreditation do 

not come under the managaement of the Senior Manager Safeguards, Quality 

Assurance and Mental Health, but it was explained that a meeting with the Senior 

Enablement Manager to discuss these targets was already planned. At the moment, 

one assessment per month is expected to be completed by a Social Worker, but this 

isn’t achieved by all. 

2.5.6 A member inquired whether the situation had improved by now. The officers 

explained that the situation has exacerbated, with a backlog of around 280 for 

residential homes, and 150 which are referred through the court. 

2.5.7 It was agreed that a lack of resources is at the heart of this problem, and the Service 

was praised for their efforts and performance compared to other Authorities, but 

Members of the Working Group reinforced the importance of reducing the waiting 

time for an assessment. 

2.5.8 The Senior Manager Safeguards, Quality Assurance and Mental Health and the 

DoLS Co-ordinator were thanked for explaining the developments since the audit 

report was released and for outlining the arrangements in place. The Senior 

Manager Safeguards, Quality Assurance and Mental Health and the DoLS Co-

ordinator proposed to update the Working Group on further developments within 

6 months. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 197



2.6 Support Workers (Adults) 
2.6.1 The main findings of the audit were:  
 

It was found that the service has no current job description for the Support Worker 

post, and it was therefore agreed that a review needed to be carried out on it. 

Cases were seen where the DBS disclosure date for new workers was later than the 

date recorded on the new staff appointment form (TR139 forms). The relevant 

managers and supervisors expressed that they were aware of the expected 

procedure and rules with DBS disclosures, and it was informed that the Support 

Worker would not be included on the timetable should they not have an acceptable 

and current disclosure. Arrangements are in the pipeline to deal with disclosures 

corporately through the self-service portal.  

The relevant managers suspect that some Support Workers provide personal care 

for the service users despite the fact that this does not fall within the scope of the 

duties. 

It is understood that carrying out formal supervision with the Workers is of high 

importance to the service, but that it proved to be difficult at times with so many 

staff to supervise periodically. Most of the Support Workers also have other jobs and 

responsibilities, and it is considered that this adds obstacles when attempting to 

arrange a time to carry out the supervision. It is considered to be beneficial for the 

supervisors should they receive practical assistance with this task. 

It was discovered that the care plans of a vast number of service users were not 

current and did not contain necessary information so that the Support Worker could 

support the individual in the most appropriate method. The service have a 

commitment to revise the structure of the care plans to ensure that they include the 

necessary information and to ensure that constructive assistance is provided to 

service users. That is, that the Support Worker supports in a way that would assist 

with the development of the service user, and it is considered that the care plans 

need to focus on outcomes in order to achieve this effectively.  

There were two cases within the sample of staff audited where their Safeguarding / 

POVA training was not current. Often, the Support Workers do not have a Council e-

mail address and, as a result, have no access to the e-learning portal. It is expected 

that the Integrated Learning and Development System, when it is introduced in 

summer 2017, will meet these needs.  

Cases were seen where Support Workers have claimed a vast number of travelling 

expenses in a week, e.g. it was found that a worker claimed 200-300 miles weekly, 

which is a burden on the budget. It was explained that the Supervisor is attempting 

to connect Workers and service users in an efficient manner, but matters can arise 

Page 198



which are beyond their control, such as the need for a specific worker to work with 

the service user. Carrying out a review of the structure of the care plans, and making 

them more prescriptive in terms of the activities to be conducted, along with the 

locations would have the potential of leading to a reduction in the travelling 

expenses paid. 

2.6.2 Olwen Ellis Jones, Service Manager - Mental Health and Learning Disabilities and 

Selwyn Lloyd Jones, Disability Service County Manager were welcomed to the 

meeting. 

2.6.3 The Audit Manager explained that the main focus of this audit was to ensure that the 
needs of users were met in accordance with their Care Plans. The Social Services and 
Welfare (Wales) Act 2014 came into force on 6 April 2016. In accordance with the 
Act, if an individual meets the eligibility criteria, then the local Council must write a 
plan. Individuals with care and support needs will receive a care and support plan. 
Furthermore, the Care and Support (Care Planning) (Wales) Regulations 2015 detail 
what should be included in a care and support plan together with the arrangements 
for reviewing the plans. Following the audit, it was found that a large number of care 
plans were not up to date. 

 
2.6.4 The other key areas of risk that emerged were the failure to maintain formal 

supervision and failure to properly manage the use of time and locations which 
meant that an employee was claiming a high amount of travel costs on a weekly 
basis. 

 
2.6.5 The Officers stated that the focus of care plans have now moved to enable 

measurable outcomes, such as social skills, to be achieved. As part of this, group 
activities are organized locally with less emphasis on employees traveling with 
service users to a variety of different locations. The plans are now tailored to 
improve the wellbeing of individuals with SMART targets in place. 

 
2.6.6 A discussion was had about the Service's recruitment arrangements, where the 

frustration of finding individuals enthusiastic in the field who are willing to accept the 
responsibilities involved in the job for relatively low wages was clear. 

 
2.6.7 The officers explained that they had already re-visited the job description and that 

they are currently awaiting feedback from Human Resources before negotiating with 
the relevant unions. 

 
2.6.8 The Service Manager - Mental Health and Learning Disabilities and the Disability 

Service County Manager were thanked for attending the meeting and updating the 

Working Group on the arrangements already implemented and the upcoming 

proposed arrangements. 

2.7 The Chair thanked the Working Group and praised all the Services for their actions. 

Page 199



COMMITTEE   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
DATE    28 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
TITLE OUTPUT OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT SECTION 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT TO OUTLINE THE WORK OF INTERNAL AUDIT FOR THE PERIOD 

TO 15 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
AUTHOR LUNED FÔN JONES – AUDIT MANAGER 
 
ACTION TO RECEIVE THE REPORT, COMMENT ON THE CONTENTS AND 

SUPPORT THE ACTIONS THAT HAVE ALREADY BEEN AGREED 
WITH THE RELEVANT SERVICES 

 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The following report summarises the work of the Internal Audit Section for the 

period from 1 July 2017 to 15 September 2017. 
 
2. WORK COMPLETED DURING THE PERIOD 
2.1 The following work was completed in the period to 15 September 2017: 
 

Description Number 
 

Reports on Audits from the Operational Plan 10 

 
 Further details regarding this work are found in the body of this report and in the 

enclosed appendices. 
  

Page 200

Agenda Item 8



2.2 Audit Reports 
2.2.1 The following table shows the audits completed in the period to 15 September 2017, 

indicating the relevant opinion category and a reference to the relevant appendix. 
 

TITLE DEPARTMENT SERVICE OPINION APPENDIX 
 

Training New Members 
Corporate 
Support 

Democracy B Appendix 1 

Death Grants Finance 
Pensions and 

Payroll 
A Appendix 2 

Leisure Centres’ Direct 
Debit Payments 

Economy and 
Community 

Leisure B Appendix 3 

Arfon Tennis Centre 
Economy and 
Community 

Leisure B Appendix 4 

Pavillion Leisure Centre 
Economy and 
Community 

Leisure B Appendix 5 

Glan Wnion Leisure 
Centre 

Economy and 
Community 

Leisure B Appendix 6 

Plas Maesincla 
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Residential 
and Day 

B Appendix 7 

Plas Hafan 
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Residential 
and Day 

A Appendix 8 

Plas Ogwen  
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Residential 
and Day 

C Appendix 9 

Tan y Marian 
Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Residential 
and Day 

C Appendix 10 

 
2.2.2 The opinion categories within the reports affirm the following: 
 

Opinion “A”  Assurance of financial propriety can be expressed as the controls in 
place can be relied upon and have been adhered to. 

 
  

Page 201



Opinion “B”  Controls are in place, and partial assurance of financial propriety can 
be expressed as there are aspects where some procedures can be 
strengthened. 

 
Opinion “C”  Assurance of financial propriety cannot be expressed as the controls 

in place cannot be relied upon, but losses/fraud due to these 
weaknesses were not discovered. 

 
Opinion “CH”  Assurance of financial propriety cannot be expressed as acceptable 

internal controls are not in place; losses/fraud resulting from these 
weaknesses were discovered.  

 
 
3. FOLLOW-UP WORK 
3.1 New arrangements have been established for follow-up audits. In 2016/17, a total of 

205 actions were agreed to be undertaken before 31 March 2018. Now, rather than 
carrying out a follow-up on only “C” opinion reports, all agreed actions will be 
addressed by requesting the unit/service/establishment to provide evidence to 
prove implementation. On 15 September 2017, there was acceptable 
implementation on 26.83% of the agreed actions.  

 
 
4. WORK IN PROGRESS 
4.1 The following work was in progress as at 16 September 2017.   

 Disposal of Confidential Waste – The Use of Red Sacks and Shredders (Corporate) 

 Obtaining References, Proof of Identity and Evidence of Qualifications 
(Corporate) 

 Safeguarding Arrangements – Field Workers’ Awareness of Policy (Corporate) 

 Safeguarding Arrangements - Establishments (Corporate) 

 Proactive Prevention of Fraud and Corruption (Corporate) 

 Information Management - Establishments (Corporate) 

 National Fraud Initiative (Corporate)  

 School Uniform Grant (Education) 

 Pupil Deprivation Grant (Education) 

 Education Improvement Grant for Schools (Education) 

 Awareness of the Whistleblowing Policy – Primary and Secondary (Education) 

 Health and Safety – Primary Schools (Education) 

 Schools - General (Education) 

 Bro Ffestiniog Leisure Centre(Economy and Community) 

 Victoria Dock (Economy and Community) 

 Supporting People Grant (Part 2) (Adults, Health and Wellbeing) 

 Depots (Highways and Municipal) 

 Garden Waste Collection (Highways and Municipal) 

 Smallholdings (Regulatory) 

 Housing Waiting List (Housing) 
 

Page 202



 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
5.1 The Committee is requested to accept this report on the work of the Internal Audit 

Section in the period from 1 July 2017 to 15 September 2017, comment on the 
contents in accordance with members’ wishes, and support the actions agreed with 
the relevant service managers.  

 

Page 203



Appendix 1 
TRAINING NEW MEMBERS 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 
 
1.    Background 
1.1  Section 7 of the Local Government Measure (Wales) 2011 states that local authorities 

are required to ensure that reasonable training and development opportunities are 
provided to its members, in addition to providing members with the opportunity to 
receive an annual review of their training and development needs. 

1.2  The 'Development Framework for Councillors in Wales' outlines the essential skills and 
information for local authority councillors in Wales to fulfil their duties. The framework 
was formed as part of a continuing professional development programme for 
councillors, and corresponds with The Wales Charter for Member Support and 
Development. Gwynedd Council is eager to submit an application to the Welsh Local 
Government Association (WLGA) to attain this 'Members' Charter' during the second 
half of 2017.  

 
2. Purpose and Scope of the Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that appropriate arrangements had been 

established in order to achieve the training needs of Gwynedd Council's new members. 
In order to achieve this, the audit included assessing the procedure of identifying and 
providing training to members elected in May 2017 in accordance with their needs and 
the requirements of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 

 
3. Main Findings   
3.1  It was found that the Council's arrangements were in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. The minutes of the Democratic 
Services Committee and Full Council show that thorough preparatory work had been 
done for the 2017 election in order to ensure a complete and relevant training 
programme for the new Members. Ffordd Gwynedd has influenced the process of 
identifying the needs of Members, with some aspects intertwining with the application 
for the Members Charter. The arrangements are elaborated upon below. 

3.1.1  Specific Role Descriptions have been suggested by the WLGA; Gwynedd has recently 
adopted and adapted these in order to comply with the principles of Ffordd 
Gwynedd and to reflect the duties that are to be achieved as Members of the 
Council's Committees. 

3.1.2  A Training Programme for the year has been planned and shared with the Members 
on paper, via the Outlook calendar, and e-mail, and a current copy is available on the 
E-Learning Portal. The programme will be updated if there is any additional training, 
or if requests for specific training are received, either from the Members or the 
Council's staff. Learning and Development and the Democratic Service are eager to 
take advantage of available technology to facilitate the process for Members by 
making the most of the 'MS Surface' tablets and the Integrated Learning and 
Development System (SIDD). Input by Heads of Department, the Learning and 
Development team, the Democratic Service and feedback from Members have been 
considered whilst drawing up the Programme, and extensive discussions about the 
contents have been held by Committees such as Democratic Services. 

Page 204



 
3.1.3  Specific induction sessions and 'stalls' were held in May 2017, and this is considered 

as part of the induction process. New Members' first six months are considered as 
'Induction', and is part of the '5 year cycle' where the Learning and Development 
Team identify the needs annually. The specific induction sessions included a taste of 
what is available to Members in addition to necessary training that must be 
completed at the beginning (e.g. Conduct, Information, Committees/Democracy etc). 

3.1.4  In accordance with the Ffordd Gwynedd mindset, Members are expected to 
contribute to the training process by highlighting their own needs, rather than 
adhering to a specific programme. In addition to training via courses and e-learning, 
one-to-one sessions are offered to the Members by the Corporate Support 
Department to discuss and review their needs. Members were notified on the 
induction 'stalls' that they had an opportunity to receive Coaching by a Qualified 
Coach. This is a new step, and there appeared to be much interest amongst 
Members. 

3.1.5  Members have the right to request to attend additional external training, and 
criteria is in place in order to consider whether the requests are worthy or not, and 
whether they offer value for money to the Council. A specific leaflet is not currently 
available, but there is an intention to publish and share it on the E-Learning Portal so 
that Members can access them. 

3.1.6  All training is carefully considered before it is offered; value for money and the 
location are considered. Members are contacted to gauge the interest in the subject 
and how convenient is the timing and the location. The majority of training is mainly 
held in Penrhyndeudraeth and Caernarfon due to the available resources there, in 
addition to the fact that Penrhyndeudraeth is fairly central. 

3.1.7  20 of the 24 new Members attended all of the five induction 'stalls' held on 9-10 
May 2017, with one Member attending four 'stalls', and one Member attending 
three 'stalls'. Only two Members failed to attend any 'stalls'. These stalls were not 
restricted to new Members elected in May 2017, 27 re-elected Members also 
attended the stalls. All the material presented during the stalls are available on the 
members' portal to give members an opportunity to browse through them or remind 
themselves of the content. 

3.1.8  The Report of the Pension Fund 2015-16 explains that "Specific training (LAPF 
Trustee's Basic Training) was attended by three Members, whilst two others attended 
in 2016". The five have now completed the Training. Four newly elected additional 
Members to the committee have received an induction from the Head of Finance 
and a Specialist Consultant, and will be receiving the training (LAPF Trustee's Basic 
Training) between October and December 2017. Every Member of the Board has 
access to the on-line 'Pensions Toolkit'. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(B)  Partial assurance can be expressed of the propriety in the arrangements of Training 

New Members as there are controls in place, but there are aspects where some 
arrangements could be tightened. The services have committed to implement the 
following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:   

 Complete and share a specific leaflet for Members to request additional training and 
draw up and share a Criteria leaflet to assess their requests. 

Page 205



 Move forward with the arrangements to win the Charter (Members' Charter). 
 

Appendix 2 
DEATH GRANTS  

FINANCE 
 
1.  Background 
1.1  Gwynedd Council are responsible for providing a local government pension service for 

itself, Isle of Anglesey County Council, Conwy County Borough Council, statutory 
employers, Community Councils and other optional towns, in addition to the right to 
accept other bodies which conform to the provisions of the regulations. From the first 
day a worker joins Gwynedd's pension scheme, a death grant which corresponds to 
three times their annual salary is payable if they were to die whilst in service and were 
younger than 75 years old. 
 

2.  Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that adequate internal controls are in place in 

the accounting arrangements and administration of death grants payments. In order to 
achieve this, the audit included auditing a sample of death grant payments recently 
made, ensuring they were appropriate. 
 

3. Main Findings   
3.1  A sample of 'death grant' payments were selected from the ledger, and the supporting 

paperwork was checked. The sample covered payments made during 2016/17 and 
included workers from a variety of organisations which are a part of the Gwynedd 
Pension Fund. 

3.2  All workers do not submit a 'death grant expression of wish form', which informs the 
Pensions Service of who would receive the death grant if they were to die in service. If a 
form has been received, the Pensions Service must conclude that the information 
continues to reflect the wishes of the deceased, however, they do have the right to go 
against the form if they have an adequate reason to do so.  In every case within the 
sample, a proof of relationship between the deceased and recipient was seen. Some 
cases within the sample included a will/probate rather than a grant declaration form. 

3.3  Whilst checking the payments, an appropriate audit trail was seen for the calculations 
and that independent checks were also included in the process. Evidence such as 
certificates was also seen in support of every payment made. 

3.4  Interest is calculated daily at a rate of 1% higher than the Bank of England's basic rate 
from the date of death (not the date the Pensions Service is notified). Interests on late 
payments are added to any payments made one month later than the date of death. 
From the sample, it was seen that interest costs could be high, such as £1,538 in one 
case and £480 in another case. However, it was seen that delays were mostly as a result 
of external bodies' failure to provide essential information or documentation required 
to release the payment.  

 
4. Audit Opinion 

(A) An assurance of propriety can be stated in the administration arrangements of 
death grants as it is possible to depend on the internal controls that are in place 

Page 206



and that these have been followed. 
 

          Appendix 3                                                                                
LEISURE CENTRES' DIRECT DEBIT PAYMENTS 

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 
 
1. Background 
1.1  Gwynedd Council Leisure Centres are part of the Healthy Communities service, within 

the Economy and Community Department, and they all offer a service that can be paid 
for through direct debit. Every direct debit application is processed at the Arfon Tennis 
Centre in Caernarfon.  

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that appropriate controls were in place for the 

administration and processing of Leisure Centres direct debits, in accordance with the 
IMS/FIN/02 guidelines, namely the Direct Debit procedure handbook. In order to 
achieve this, the audit included verifying that adequate arrangements were in place for 
processing and monitoring direct debit applications, requests to change or freeze an 
account, corporate discount applications, and cancelled/missed direct debits, by 
ensuring that a recovery process is in place.  

 
3.  Main Findings   
3.1  It was generally seen that there are appropriate internal controls for processing direct 

debit applications, but that the following aspects need to be tightened in order to 
mitigate the risks highlighted. 

3.1.1  It was found that some of the prices sent to the Business & System Support Officer 
to be input on the Gladstone system (Leisure's financial system), were different to 
what was approved by the Cabinet. However, confirmation was received that the 
prices were verified before being input on the system, in order to ensure that 
customers were charged the correct price. The Senior Business and Performance 
Officer was notified of these errors via e-mail. An updated price spreadsheet was 
received confirming that the errors had been rectified. 

3.1.2  There are no arrangements in place to verify applications to the Corporate Discount 
Scheme.  The scheme requires that a payslip from the past two months must be 
received in order to join, and annually thereafter to confirm their employment with 
the company registered with the scheme. The Terms and Conditions of the Direct 
Debit Packages Application Form notes that "A payslip from the last two months is 
required and must be updated annually." Although evidence is received for initial 
membership, there was no case where a payslip had been seen a year after that. It 
was confirmed that a lack of resources and time made it difficult to achieve this. This 
was highlighted to the Healthy Lifestyles Centres Manager, whom agreed to 
investigate different options, such as that members employed by Gwynedd Council 
paid the fee directly from their salary. 

 
 
 
 

Page 207



 
 
3.1.3  The terms of the Corporate Discount Scheme confirms that the registered company 

could be asked for a list of staff members who have left their employment in the 
past year, in order to identify any members who are not eligible to take advantage of 
the scheme. Similarly to the above, a lack of resources and time means that it is 
impossible to achieve this.  This was discussed with the Healthy Lifestyles Centres 
Manager. It was agreed to investigate options for corresponding with the companies 
to request confirmation of members' employment.  

3.1.4  There is no process in place to recover income from anyone who has taken 
advantage of the corporate discount when they are not eligible to do so. It is 
impossible to identify these members without any monitoring of the discount. 

 
  
4. Audit Opinion 
(B)  Partial assurance can be expressed of the propriety in the administration of leisure 

centres direct debits as there are controls in place, but there are aspects where 
some arrangements could be tightened. The service has committed to implement 
the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:   

 Investigate and trial different options to mitigate the risk.   

 That a process is in place to recover money from any customers who have 
benefited from the discount without being eligible to receive it. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 208



 
 

Appendix 4 
ARFON TENNIS CENTRE  

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 
 
1. Background 
1.1  Gwynedd Council Leisure Centres are part of the Healthy Communities service which is 

within of the Economy and Community Department. There are four Area Managers who 
are responsible for managing the Centres under the Authority's control. The Arfon 
Tennis Centre provides a number of services for the public, including tennis courts, 
fitness/weights room and fitness classes. 

 
2.  Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that secure arrangements were in place in the 

Leisure Centre in order to control and reduce risks appropriately, and to ensure 
conformity with the Council’s internal procedures and other relevant acts.    

2.2  The audit involved visiting a sample of four Leisure Centres unannounced in order to 
ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for managing various risks which 
could exist in the areas of collection of income, budgetary control, procurement, 
storage of goods and health and safety. 

 
3. Main Findings   
3.1  It was seen that robust internal controls are in place at Arfon Tennis Centre, but that 

the following aspects need to be tightened: 
3.1.1  A stock check of the vending machine was last carried out in May, the machine has 

been out-of-order until very recently, but it is now operational and therefore the 
stock record/check should be up to date. A monthly stock check is also carried out 
on the equipment sold at the centre, a sample of records was selected to be checked 
and it was found that three out of four of these records were correct. 

3.1.2 The centre's risk assessment has not been reviewed annually. 
3.1.3  Whilst going around the centre, only one poster notifying the public not to take 

photographs was seen and this was in the weights room. The Duty Manager had said 
that they had some on the toilet doors but they were not on display on the day of 
the inspection.  He believed that these might have been removed to prepare for the 
doors to be painted. 

 
4.   Audit Opinion 
(B)  The Audit opinion is  that partial assurance can be expressed of the propriety in the 

Arfon Tennis Centre as there are controls in place, but there are aspects where 
some arrangements could be tightened. The establishmente has committed to 
implement the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:  

 Remind staff of the need to correctly carry out stock checks every month. 

 Review the risk assessments. 

 Ensure that there are posters notifying the public not to take pictures on display 
at  all times. 

 

Page 209



 
 

Appendix 5 
PAVILION LEISURE CENTRE 

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 
 
1. Background 
1.1 Gwynedd Council Leisure Centres are part of the Healthy Communities service which is 

within of the Economy and Community Department. There are four Area Managers who 
are responsible for managing the Centres under the Authority's control. The Pavilion 
Leisure Centre provides many services to the public, including a sports hall, fitness room 
and sauna.  

 
2. Purpose and scope of the Audit  
2.1 The purpose of the audit was to ensure that secure arrangements were in place in the 

Leisure Centre in order to control and reduce risks appropriately, and to ensure 
conformity with the Councils internal procedures and other relevant acts.    

2.2 The audit involved visiting a sample of four Leisure Centres unannounced in order to 
ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for managing various risks which 
could exist in the areas of collection of income, budgetary control, procurement, 
storage of goods and health and safety. 

 
3. Main Findings 
3.1 Generally, it appears that the Pavilion Leisure Centre has appropriate internal controls 

in place, but there is a need to tighten controls on the following aspects in order to 
reduce the risks identified.  

3.1.1 The vending machine isn’t emptied at least once a month in accordance with IMS 
Vending Machines Guidelines. The Duty Manager confirmed that this area was 
already the subject of discussion with the Business and Systems Support Officer An 
agreement was reached to empty the machine every two months due to the minimal 
income it generates. However, evidence was seen proving that the machine has not 
been emptied for 4 months. Following the release of the draft report, both the Area 
Manager and the Duty Manager confirmed that the vending machine would be 
emptied on a monthly basis from now on. Evidence was received confirming the 
machine was emptied recently.  

3.1.2  The expected reports are not produced, checked and certified on a monthly basis. It 
was seen that the reports relating to ‘Point of Sales Transactions’, ‘Point of Sales 
Transactions Cancelled’, ‘Record Refunded’ and ‘log in log out’ had not been 
produced for the last two months. The Duty Manager confirmed that a long leave of 
absence had made it difficult to cope with the workload. The reports for June were 
produced on the day of the audit, with assurance that May’s reports would be 
produced soon. Evidence was received following the release of the draft report 
confirming that the reports have since been produced.  

3.1.3 It appears that no fire evacuation route tests have been performed since 2015. The 
Duty Manager confirmed that he performed these tests daily, but had not 
documented them. Following the release of the draft report, evidence was received 
confirming the tests are now performed and documented on a weekly basis. 

Page 210



 
 
3.1.4 Many of the risk assessments present on the Health and Safety database have not 

been reviewed in the last year. However, these assessments are no longer relevant, 
as the activities are no longer provided at the Centre. 

3.1.5 A new member of casual staff has not received an induction. The Duty Manager 
confirmed that it is difficult to find the time provide induction as casual staff only 
work minimal hours. The Duty Manager stated that he will attempt to undertake the 
induction training in the near future. 

3.1.6 The Duty Manager’s First Aid training has recently passed its three year validity. The 
Area Manager has confirmed that training will be arranged in the near future. 

3.1.7 COSHH sheets aren’t reviewed regularly in accordance with IMS/HS/09.1.4. Evidence 
was received following the release of the draft report confirming that new COSHH 
sheets had since been received at the Centre and that they have been checked and 
signed by the Duty Manager. The next review is due in 2018. 

 
 
4. Audit opinion 
(B) The Audit opinion is that partial assurance can be expressed of the propriety of the 

Pavilion Leisure Centres arrangements, as there are controls in place, but there are 
some aspects where arrangements can be tightened. The establishment has 
committed to implement the following steps to mitigate the risks identified.  

 Ensure the vending machine is emptied at least every two months. 

 That the expected reports are produced, checked and certified monthly. 

 Perform and document weekly evacuation route test. 

 Ensure that all COSHH sheets are reviewed regularly. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 211



 
 

Appendix 6 
GLAN WNION LEISURE CENTRE 
ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 

 
1. Background 
1.1  Gwynedd Council Leisure Centres are part of the Healthy Communities service which is 

within the Economy and Community Department. There are four Area Managers who 
are responsible for managing the Centres under the Authority's control. Glan Wnion 
Leisure Centre provides a number of services for the public, including tennis courts, 
fitness/weights room and fitness classes. 

 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that secure arrangements were in place in the 

Leisure Centre in order to control and reduce risks appropriately, and to ensure 
conformity with the Councils internal procedures and other relevant acts.    

2.2 The audit involved visiting a sample of four Leisure Centres unannounced in order to 
ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for managing various risks which 
could exist in the areas of collection of income, budgetary control, procurement, 
storage of goods and health and safety. 

 
3. Main Findings    
3.1  It was generally seen that appropriate internal controls are in place at Glan Wnion 

Leisure Centre, but that the following aspects need to be tightened in order to 
mitigate the risks highlighted. 

3.1.1    It was found that occasional errors were made when completing the TR34 forms 
when banking, which results in the Income Section amending the totals by making 
use of the surplus/deficit account code. This results in the Centre not being aware 
of all the use made of this account code. 

3.1.2 It was found from Gladstone system reports that many small debts had been 
deleted because staff had entered the incorrect member details into the system. 
This is likely as a result of a member requesting a service without presenting a 
membership card, whether it be over the phone or at the reception, and the 
request is processed on the account of a member with a similar name. 

3.1.3  It was found that some customers attended sessions without paying on the day, 
and  there was no evidence that the debts are paid promptly. It was explained to 
the Auditor that it was not possible to accept money on Sundays and that card 
payments had a minimum of £5. As a result, the Centre permit reliable/regular 
members to use the facility on the condition that they pay on their next visit. 

3.1.4  A comprehensive inventory is kept of items within the Centre although only items 
over £100 need to be recorded. It appears that the information on the IMS 
documents are misleading with regards to this as it notes that only items with a 
value of up to £100 should be recorded. 

3.1.5  The stock change arrangements were verified and an arithmetic error was 
discovered on one occasion on the Lucozade machine's sales spreadsheet. In 
addition, it was found from the records that a number of bottles had been disposed 

Page 212



from the storeroom as they were out of date, whilst some of them were for sale in 
the machine at the time. 

3.1.6 It was found that some orders had been created on the e-procurement system 
after the Centre had received an invoice which suggests there is no certification 
and separation of duties when ordering goods on all occasions. 

3.1.7  A tablet and the Legend system is used to conduct daily/weekly/monthly etc. tests 
at the Centre. It was seen from the system that a number of the tests were not 
being completed or not always recorded, and occasionally that some of the tests 
were also recorded on paper in accordance with the previous procedure. 

3.1.8 The Centre uses three forms to record the required training for inducting new 
contracted staff whilst casual staff receive training as the manager sees it 
necessary. 

3.1.9  The staff were not aware of the safeguarding poster/pamphlets/ card and the 
processes that should be followed. The procedure was explained to the manager 
whilst highlighting the relevant links on the pamphlet. The staff were not clear 
about the safeguarding training that must be completed. It was found that some 
had accepted the Safeguarding Children and Adults Policy in the Policy Centre, and 
that two members of staff had completed the Safeguarding and Protecting Children 
module on the E-Learning Portal. None of the staff have completed the 
Safeguarding Adults Module. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(B)  The Audit opinion is that partial assurance can be expressed of the propriety in Glan 

Wnion Leisure Centre as there are controls in place, but there are aspects where 
some arrangements could be tightened. The Manager has committed to implement 
the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:  

 Ensure that the required tests are undertaken and recorded in a timely manner on 
the 'Legend' system and reduce the cases where the work is unnecessarily 
duplicated on paper. 

 Tighten arrangements in ensure that the banking forms TR34 and bankings are 
completed correctly before being sent to the Income Section. 

 Ensure that official orders are created before procuring goods and that there is 
separation of duties involved with the process. 

 Ensure that all members are aware of the payment system, in relation to paying for 
every session before accessing the centre's facilities. 

 The Centre to receive and display Safeguarding posters in order to raise awareness 
amongst staff of the procedures and processes which are in place. 

 The Centre's staff to complete the Safeguarding and Protecting Children Module 
and  
and Safeguarding Adults Module on the E-Learning Portal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213



 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 7 
PLAS MAESINCLA 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING  
 
1. Background 
1.1  Plas Maesincla, Caernarfon is a residential home for older people who have been 

diagnosed with dementia. The home has been registered for 23 residents.  
 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the management and maintenance 

arrangements of Plas Maesincla Residential Home are appropriate and in accordance 
with relevant regulations and standards. In order to achieve this, the audit included 
verifying that the home's arrangements were sufficient in terms of administration and 
staffing, budgetary control, procurement of goods and receiving income, health and 
safety, and monitoring performance along with ensuring that the service users and their 
property are safeguarded. 

 
3. Main Findings   
3.1  There is a homely and friendly feel to the home and good controls exist but the 

following aspects need to be tightened: 
3.1.1  Not all Service User Plans are updated every month in accordance with the National 

Minimum Standards for Care Homes for Older People, which notes, "the service 
user’s plan is reviewed by care staff in the home at least once a month". The 
Manager was aware of this, and was in the process of updating them following a 
busy period at the home. 

3.1.2  A sample of the staff supervision records were verified and it was found that not 
everyone had received supervision within the last two months in accordance with 
the National Minimum Standards, "care staff receive formal supervision at least once 
in every two months". The Manager has been having difficulties supervising casual 
staff who only work a small number of days during the week.  

3.1.3  Orders are not signed on every occasion. 
3.1.4  Invoices are not dated and stamped as 'received', which makes it difficult to identify 

the tax point in order to complete the TR252 slip.  
3.1.5  Up to £40 is being kept in a drawer without a lock in the office. There is a keypad on 

the office door but every staff member is aware of the code. This was discussed 
during the visit; the Manager and Clerk were happy with this arrangement and were 
aware of insurance requirements. 

3.1.6  An evacuation exercise has not been conducted since February 2015. 
3.1.7  A sample of the Home's generic risk assessments were verified and it was found that 

they had not been reviewed since February 2016. 
3.1.8  Whilst verifying the Home's training spreadsheet, it was found that the Manual 

Handling and Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults training of 8 members of staff was 

Page 214



not up-to-date. It was explained that the Manual Handling Trainer had confirmed a 
number of training sessions for the near future. Places on the Safeguarding of 
Vulnerable Adults courses are scarce but the home had notified the Learning and 
Development Service about the staff members who needed training in this area. 

3.1.9  There is a keypad on the door of the medication room, however, during the visit, it 
was discovered that the door was not tightly shut. The Manager was notified of this 
and the door was tightly shut immediately. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(B)  The Audit opinion is that partial assurance can be expressed in the management and 

maintenance arrangements of Plas Maesincla as there are controls in place, but there 
are aspects where some arrangements could be tightened. The service has committed 
to implement the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:  

 Update the Care Plans of the Service Users every month in accordance with the 
National Minimum Standards for Care Homes for Older People. 

 Dedicate time for staff supervision at least every two months in accordance with the 
National Minimum Standards for Care Homes for Older People. 

 Ensure that every order is authorised and signed by the relevant officer. 

 Use a 'received' stamp on every occasion from now on. 

 Ensure that an evacuation exercise is carried out annually.   

 Ensure that risk assessments related to the home are reviewed annually. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 215



 
 
 
 

Appendix 8 
PLAS HAFAN 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING  
1. Background 
1.1  Plas Hafan, Nefyn is a residential home for older people. The home has been registered 

for 32 residents.  
 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the management and maintenance 

arrangements of Plas Hafan Residential Home are appropriate and in accordance with 
relevant regulations and standards. In order to achieve this, the audit included verifying 
that the home's arrangements were sufficient in terms of administration and staffing, 
budgetary control, procurement of goods and receiving income, health and safety, and 
monitoring performance along with ensuring that the service users and their property 
are safeguarded. 

 
3. Main Findings   
3.1  It was found that there is a homely and friendly feel to the home.  It was also found 

from the audit that the home's management and maintenance arrangements were 
appropriate, and this is reinforced by a recent report by the CSSIW in addition to the 
internal monitoring arrangements of the Adults, Health and Well-being Department.  

3.2  The 'Statement of Purpose' has been included in the 'Service User's Guide' document. 
The statement was verified to ensure that the contents coincided with Appendix 1 of 
the Care Homes (Wales) Regulations 2002. The content was found to be appropriate, 
but some information was not included, such as a record of staff's qualifications, and 
details in respect of room sizes, although it is accepted that this is not completely 
practical. 

3.3  Following a discussion with the Manager and the clerk, it was found that it would be 
beneficial if these officers had read-only access to the ledger.  This will mean that the 
home would have access to their budget and details of expenditure without having to 
depend on the Finance Unit. 

3.4  In relation to ordering and paying for goods, it appears that some official orders are 
created after the invoice date. 

3.5  It was found that workers attended training appropriately. However, it was found that 
the training record spreadsheet was not completely up-to-date and did not coincide 
with the training database. Work is already being undertaken to update this 
spreadsheet. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(A)  The Audit opinion is that assurance of propriety can be stated in the management and 

maintenance arrangements of Plas Hafan Residental Home as it is possible to depend 
on the internal controls that are in place and that these have been followed. The 
service has committed to implement the following steps to mitigate the risks 

Page 216



highlighted: 

 Update the training records of the Home's staff in order to keep this information up-
to-date and facilitate the process of monitoring skills gaps. 

 Manager and Clerk to enquire with the Finance Unit in order to receive 'read-only' 
access and training on the ledger to proactively monitor payments and their budget. 

 Ensure that orders are created and certified in the order book before the goods or 
service are supplied. 

Appendix 9 
PLAS OGWEN 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING  
 
1. Background 
1.1 Plas Ogwen, Bethesda is a care home for older adults. The home has been registered for 

27 residents. 
 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the management and maintenance 

arrangements of Plas Ogwen residential home are appropriate and in accordance with 
relevant regulations and standards. In order to achieve this, the audit included verifying 
that the home's arrangements were sufficient in terms of administration and staffing, 
budgetary control, procurement of goods and receiving income, health and safety, and 
monitoring performance along with ensuring that the service users and their property 
are safeguarded. 

 
3. Main Findings   
3.1  There is a homely and friendly feel to the home and good controls exist but the 

following aspects need to be tightened:   
3.1.1  The home's Statement of Purpose was not entirely up to date, however, we were 

informed that it was already the subject of a review when the audit was being 
undertaken.  

3.1.2  The staff do not receive formal supervision every two months, which is an 
expectation set in the Care Homes (Wales) Regulations and the National Minimum 
Standards. It was confirmed that it was difficult to find time to supervise night and 
casual staff.   

3.1.3  Invoices are not dated and stamped as 'received' on all occasions.  This makes it 
difficult to identify the tax point required in order to complete the TR252 slip. A 
stamp was bought for the kitchen following the publication of the draft report, in 
order to date the invoices received. 

3.1.4  The TR34 forms were not checked and certified by a second officer.  
3.1.5  Every member of the home's staff has access to the safe, this was discussed further 

with the Manager, and she was happy with the arrangement.  
3.1.6  The Officer in Charge is responsible for the home's keys including the keys to the 

medication room. The keys are transferred to the next Officer in Charge at the end of 
every shift. There is an expectation that they keep the keys on their person 
throughout the shift. However, on the day of the visit, it was found that the keys had 
been kept in a drawer in the office as they are heavy to carry. Evidence was received 
following the publication of the draft report that the Manager had ordered aprons 

Page 217



and chains in order to facilitate carrying the keys.  
3.1.7  Following a resignation, a new Key Worker is needed for one of the residents, as a 

risk assessment had not been carried out for over six months, where they should be 
completed monthly. The Manager was already aware of this and was in the process 
of arranging to conduct a new assessment.    

3.1.8  Risk assessments have not been sent with the HS11 forms (Accidents and Incidents 
Report) when reporting accidents. It was agreed that this would be done from now 
on.  

3.1.9  Although there is an existing copy of the Safeguarding Children and Adults Policy and 
Guidelines available to staff, there is no evidence the workers have read them. 
Following the publication of the draft report, evidence was received by the Manager 
confirming that all members of staff except for one had by now read the Policy. 

3.1.10  Whilst verifying the Home's training spreadsheet, it was found that several members 
of staff had not completed the 'Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults' training for several 
years, including one member of staff who had not completed the training since 2001. 
However, the Manager confirmed that training had been arranged for 9 members of 
staff within the next 4 months. 

3.1.11  Medication competence tests have not been completed annually, and many have 
not been completed since 2013. Also, the record of who is permitted to administer 
medication is not up-to-date, as one member of staff no longer works for the home. 
Following the publication of the draft report, the Manager confirmed that the record 
of staff who are permitted to administer medication has been updated, but no 
evidence was received to support this. 

3.1.12  Although a copy of the Medication Policy was available in the Medication room and 
in the office, evidence shows that only the Assistant Manager had read the policy 
since 2016. Following the publication of the draft report, evidence was received 
confirming that all members of staff had now read and understood the Policy. 

3.1.13  A sample of 5 MAR's (Medication Administration Record) were checked and it was 
found that two members of staff had not signed to confirm receipt of medication in 
every case. Whilst verifying the arrangements for returning/disposing of medication, 
two instances were found where only one member of staff had signed the 
‘Destroyed or Returned Medication’ form where two signatures are required. The 
Assistant Manager was notified of these shortcomings during the visit, she was 
aware of the Policy's requirements. The Manager confirmed that she had conducted 
a supervision session with these members of staff following the publication of the 
draft report to remind them of the importance of two different members of staff 
signing the form when receiving and disposing of medication, no evidence was 
received to support this. 

3.1.14 Work has commenced to meet the requirements of “The Quality Dashboard” 
following a poor Audit of the home's Site Management. A negative report was also 
received recently following an audit of the home's menus; the Manager confirmed 
that these would be the subject of a review in the near future. 

 
4. Audit Opinion  
(C)  The Audit opinion is that assurance cannot be given in the arrangements at Plas 

Ogwen as the controls in place cannot be depended upon, but no losses / fraud 

Page 218



resulted from control weaknesses. The Home has committed to implement the 
following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted: 

 Ensure that time is dedicated for one-to-one staff supervision at least every two 
months, and that formal records are kept in accordance with the National Minimum 
Standards for Care Homes for Older People. 

 Send the relevant risk assessments with the HS11 forms from now on. 

 Ensure that medication competence tests are carried out annually. 

 Update the list of staff who are qualified to administer medication. 

 Two members of staff to sign the MAR forms when accepting medication in every 
case. 

 Two staff members to sign "Return of Medication" forms when disposing  
medication. 

Appendix 10 
TAN Y MARIAN  

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING  
 
1. Background 
1.1  Tan y Marian Home, Pwllheli is a residential home which provides care for up to nine 

young adults with learning disabilities.  
 
2. Purpose and Scope of Audit 
2.1  The purpose of the audit was to ensure that the management and maintenance 

arrangements of Tan y Marian Home are appropriate and in accordance with relevant 
regulations and standards. In order to achieve this, the audit included verifying that the 
home's arrangements were sufficient in terms of administration and staffing, budgetary 
control, procurement of goods and receiving income, health and safety, and monitoring 
performance along with ensuring that the service users and their property are 
safeguarded. 

 
3. Main Findings   
3.1  A report, dated 30 January 2017, was published by the CSSIW (Care and Social Services 

Inspectorate Wales), which noted: "Overall, we found that people receive a good 
service at Tan y Marian where they have positive relationships with the staff and are 
cared for in a warm, relaxed manner." Although the scope of the internal audit 
overlapped the CSSIW inspection, audit tests were not reduced and we took advantage 
of the opportunity to verify the actions against the recommendations proposed by the 
CSSIW. The main findings that arose from the audit can be seen below: 

3.1.1  The 'Statement of Purpose' has been included in the Home's 'Service User's Guide'. 
The statement was verified to ensure that the contents coincided with Appendix 1 of 
the Care Homes  (Wales) Regulations2002. The content was found to be appropriate, 
but some information was not included, such as details about room sizes - although 
it is accepted that this is not completely practical and that the opening paragraph 
(Aims and Objectives) refers to the 'elderly'.  

3.1.2  A sample of residents' Care Plans were verified and found to be very comprehensive. 
However, it was found that the periodic reports (namely the daily, monthly, 3 
monthly and 6 monthly notes) were not up-to-date. 

3.1.3  There are no contracts in place between the Council and the residents who have 

Page 219



been in residence at the home for a long time. 
3.1.4  The CSSIW report stated that the frequency of supervision sessions appeared to be 

inconsistent, and suggested that care workers should receive formal supervision at 
least once every two months and staff appraisals every twelve months. Whilst 
verifying the supervision records of a sample of workers, it was found that they were 
not conducted every two moths, but that there were steps in place to address this. 

3.1.5  An example of a mistake on one worker's holiday card was seen, where the holiday 
total had been incorrectly calculated following a holiday application. The mistake 
had not been corrected although two later occasions were recorded on the card. The 
mistake meant that the worker had an additional 10 hours of holidays. 

 
 
3.1.6  Following a discussion with the Manager and the clerk, it was found that it would be 

beneficial if these officers had read-only access to the ledger.  This will mean that the 
home would have access to their budget and details of expenditure without having 
to depend on the Finance Unit. 

3.1.7  A sample of 13 invoices were selected, and it appears for five of them that order had 
been created following receipt of the invoice. 

3.1.8  A sample of E11 forms were selected, namely 'Record of Residents' Finances' for 
three of the Residents. It was found that no witnesses had signed the E11 on several 
occasions, and there were no receipts to support all the expenditure. The 
arrangements of recording residents' finances is the subject of a separate audit in 
the 2017/18 Audit Plan and Internal Audit will re-visit Tan y Marian's arrangements 
in due course. 

3.1.9  During the visit, it was found that the entrance door and the external door from the 
kitchen and staff room were held open on a hook. The risk of keeping doors open 
was discussed with the Manager, not only to restrict residents from leaving, but to 
restrict unauthorised individuals from entering. The Home believes that there is a 
need to move away from risk-averse systems and that the individual's rights 
overcame any acceptable risk. It was expressed that there had not been any cases of 
unauthorised access, neither of any missing residents.   

3.1.10  The CSSIW's report (30 January 2017) states: "we saw a spray bottle containing 
disinfectant in the two bathrooms which was in easy reach of the residents. We 
brought this to the attention of the registered manager who said she would lock 
them away." On the day of the Internal Audit, the toilet chemical cleaning material 
was seen to be in easy reach of the residents in the toilets.  

3.1.11  It was found that the temperature of the medication room records were 
inconsistent. The temperature had not been recorded for five of the 22 days in June 
up to Internal Audit's visit. It was seen at times that the room's temperature could 
('generally') exceed the maximum of 25 degrees as is stated in the Policy. 

 
4. Audit Opinion 
(C)  The Audit opinion is that assurance cannot be given in the arrangements at Tan y 

Marian Home as the controls in place cannot be depended upon, but no losses / 
fraud resulted from control weaknesses. The Home has committed to implement 
the following steps to mitigate the risks highlighted:  

 Conduct periodic reviews of the Care Plans. 

Page 220



 Continue to work towards establishing a routine where care workers receive 
formal supervision at least once every two months and a staff appraisal every 
twelve months. 

 Verify that the total on the holiday cards are correct when approving holidays. 

 Manager and Clerk to enquire with the Finance Unit in order to receive 'read only' 
access and training on the ledger in order to proactively monitor payments and 
their budget. 

 Ensure that orders are created and certified in the order book before the goods or 
service are supplied. 

 Move toilet chemical cleaning material to a safe area. 

 Record the temperature in the medication room daily. 
 

Page 221



COMMITTEE   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
DATE    28 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
TITLE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT TO GIVE THE COMMITTEE AN UPDATE ON PROGRESS 

AGAINST THE 2017/18 AUDIT PLAN  
 
AUTHOR LUNED FÔN JONES – AUDIT MANAGER 
 
ACTION FOR INFORMATION 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 This report is a progress report on completion of the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
2. SUMMARY OF PROGRESS AGAINST THE PLAN 
2.1 The 2017/18 internal audit plan is included in Appendix 1 with the status of the work 

as at 15 September 2017 noted, together with the time spent on each project. The 
status of the work in the operational plan at that date was as follows: 

     
Audit Status Number 
Planned 31 
Working Papers Created 3 
Field Work Started 11 
Field Work Completed 5 
Manager Review 2 
Draft Report 0 
Final Report Issued 12 

Total 64 

  
 
2.2 The performance target for 2017/18 is to have 95% of the audits in the plan to be 

either closed or with the final report released by 31 March 2018. The quarterly 
profile of this indicator is as follows: 

 
  End of quarter 1    8% 
  End of quarter 2  20% 
  End of quarter 3  50% 
  End of quarter 4  95% 
 
2.3 As seen from the table above, Internal Audit’s actual achievement up to 15 

September 2017 was 18.75% - out of 64 individual audits contained in the 2017/18 
plan, 12 had been released in a finalised version and it is expected that this figure 
will rise to 26.5% by 30 September 2017.  

Page 222

Agenda Item 9



3. AMENDMENTS TO THE PLAN 
3.1 The days allocated to one of the audits from the original plan – “Leisure Centres”  

have been assigned to four individual leisure centres. Unannounced visits were 
made to the leisure centres selected. 

 
3.2 20 days had been allocated to the audit of “School Meals Income”, however, it 

appears that the new arrangements have not yet been fully established, therefore it 
was decided to transfer 12 days to undertake the audit of the School Uniform Grant 
for the financial years 2014/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17 as required by the Welsh 
Government.  

 
 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
4.1 The Committee is asked to note the contents of this report as an update on progress 

against the 2017/18 audit plan, and offer comments thereon and accept the report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 223



 
Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 

Audit Status 
Audit Code Audit Name 

Revised 
Plan Adjustment 

Original 
Plan 

Actual 
Days 

CORPORATE 
1-CORFF-01/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Field Work Started Disposal of Confidential Waste  – The Use of Red Sacks and 

Shredders 
1-CORFF-09/2018/001  20.00  0.00  20.00 Planned Supporting Ffordd Gwynedd Reviews 

1-CORFF-09/2018/002  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned Learning and Development Integrated System 

1-CORFF-11/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Manager Review Obtaining References, Proof of Identity and Evidence of 
Qualifications 

 9.61 

1-CORFF-12/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Final Report Issued Awareness of the Whistleblowing Policy  15.12 

1-CORFF-13/2018  5.00  0.00  5.00 Planned Self-service Travelling Expenses 

1-CORFF-19/2018/001  35.00  0.00  35.00 Field Work Started Safeguarding Arrangements - Field Workers' Awareness of 
Policy 

 1.39 

1-CORFF-19/2018/002  4.00  0.00  4.00 Field Work Started Safeguarding Arrangements  – Establishments  0.31 

1-CPGV-01/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Culture and Conduct 

1-CPGV-02/2018  20.00  0.00  20.00 Manager Review Proactive Prevention of Fraud and Corruption  16.04 

2-ADN-CGC-DPA/2018cy  6.00  0.00  6.00 Field Work Started Information Management  – Establishments  0.45 

AO-ARL-05/2018  40.00  0.00  40.00 Field Work Started National Fraud Initiative  14.47 

EDUCATION 

Resources 
4-DAT-X-ADD/2018/GY  0.00  12.00  12.00 Field Work Complete School Uniform Grant  8.97 

4-DAT-X-ADD/2018GAD  10.00  0.00  10.00 Field Work Started Pupil Deprivation Grant  7.70 

4-DAT-X-ADD/2018GGA  15.00  0.00  15.00 Field Work Complete Education Improvement Grant for Schools  10.68 

4-DAT-X-ADD/2018ol16  3.00  0.00  3.00 Planned Post-16 provision in Schools Grant 

EADDA03/2018  25.00  0.00  25.00 WP Created Awareness of the Whistleblowing Policy – Primary and 
Secondary 

 4.28 

EADDA29/2018  25.00  0.00  25.00 Field Work Started Health and Safety – Primary Schools  2.35 

GwE 
4-GWE/2018  20.00  0.00  20.00 Planned Business Arrangements 

Schools 
EADDA21/2018  20.00 -12.00  8.00 Planned School Meals Income 

EADDA35/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Field Work Started Schools - General  0.22 

15/09/2017 

P
age 224



 

Audit Status 
Audit Code Audit Name 

Revised 
Plan Adjustment 

Original 
Plan 

Actual 

Days 

NORTH AND MID WALES TRUNK ROAD AGENCY 
3-AMG-ACGC/2018  25.00  0.00  25.00 Planned Health and Safety 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 

Democracy 
BB-YSG-18/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Final Report Issued Training New Members  9.18 

FINANCE 

Across the department 
AW-TG-12/2018tg  30.00  0.00  30.00 Planned IT System Security 

Financial 
AD-DY-01/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Debt Recovery Arrangements and Legal Action 

Accountancy 
AN-ACY-10/2018  5.00  0.00  5.00 Final Report Issued Precepts  7.42 

Pensions and Payroll 
AP-PEN-01/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Pension Fund 

AP-PEN-15/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Final Report Issued Death Grants  12.50 

Revenue 
AB-BD-01/2018kc  12.00  0.00  12.00 Field Work Started Benefits – Review of Key Controls  2.54 

AC-TR-01/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned Council Tax System -  Advantage Digital Portal 

ECONOMY AND COMMUNITY 

Community Regeneration 
EADDZ-01/2018  5.00  0.00  5.00 Planned Welsh Church Fund 

Record offices, museums and the arts 
EDIW-MU-03/2018/001  5.00  0.00  5.00 Planned Storiel – Closing the Project 

EDIW-MU-03/2018/002  1.00  0.00  1.00 Planned Storiel – Unannounced Visit 

Leisure 
E-DGO-01/2018/002  10.00  0.00  10.00 Final Report Issued Membership Direct Debit Payments  10.04 

EHAMAC6402/2018  12.00  0.00  12.00 Final Report Issued Arfon Tennis Centre  9.47 

EHAMAC6443/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Final Report Issued Pavillion Leisure Centre  9.96 

EHAMAC6444/2018  8.00  0.00  8.00 Field Work Complete Bro Ffestiniog Swimming Pool  8.68 

15/09/2017 

P
age 225



 

Audit Status 
Audit Code Audit Name 

Revised 
Plan Adjustment 

Original 
Plan 

Actual 

Days 

EHAMAC6446/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Final Report Issued Glan Wnion Leisure Centre  11.05 

Maritime and country parks 
EHAMM-03/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 WP Created Victoria Dock  1.16 

Strategy and development Programmes 
DDAT-AD-02/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Caernarfon Waterfront and Town Centre Regeneration 

Initiative – Governance Arrangements 

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

Business 
GRH-CD01/2018  30.00  0.00  30.00 Planned Commissioning Arranagements 

Supporting People 
GDAPR-SP01/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Field Work Complete Supporting People Grant  8.89 

Adults 
GGWAS-H07/2018tel  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned Teleofal 

Residential and Day 
5-GOF-CART1333/2018  12.00  0.00  12.00 Final Report Issued Plas Maesincla, Caernarfon  12.27 

5-GOF-CART1338/2018  12.00  0.00  12.00 Final Report Issued Plas Hafan, Nefyn  11.51 

5-GOF-CART1339/2018  12.00  0.00  12.00 Final Report Issued Plas Ogwen, Bethesda  12.08 

GDARP-D07/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Housing Support 

GDARP-D08/2018/tm  10.00  0.00  10.00 Final Report Issued Tan y Marian  10.19 

GDARP-D08/2018/yf  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned Y Frondeg 

GGWAS-D11/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Adult Placement Scheme (Shared Lives Scheme)  1.03 

CHILDREN AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

Children and Families 
5-GOF-X-PL/2018  24.00  0.00  24.00 Planned Grants 

GGWAS-P05/2018  20.00  0.00  20.00 Planned Arrangements for Children Leaving Care 

GGWAS-PLANT8/2018  20.00  0.00  20.00 Planned Care and Support Plans (Children) under Part 4 – Social 
Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014 

HIGHWAYS AND MUNICIPAL 

Fleet 
PGW-TR-02/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 WP Created Depots  1.72 

15/09/2017 

P
age 226



 
 

Audit Status 
Audit Code Audit Name 

Revised 
Plan Adjustment 

Original 
Plan 

Actual 

Days 

Waste Management and Streets 
PBW-10/2018/001  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned Recycling Targets  0.20 

PBW-10/2018/002  15.00  0.00  15.00 Field Work Complete Garden Waste Collection  10.04 

REGULATORY 

Public Protection 
2ADN-GGYC-GYC/2018bw  8.00  0.00  8.00 Planned Food Hygiene  0.45 

BB-YSG-11/2018  8.00  0.00  8.00 Planned Licensing 

Council Land and Property 
BA-EID-04/2018  8.00  0.00  8.00 Field Work Started Smallholdings  0.74 

BA-EID-05/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned School Schemes – Ysgol Glancegin 

Transportation and Street Care 
DDAT-CC-01/2018  8.00  0.00  8.00 Planned Concessionary Fares 

HOUSING 

Rent and Housing Management 
T-TAI-T01/2018  12.00  0.00  12.00 Field Work Started Housing Waiting List  3.89 

GWYNEDD CONSULTANCY 

Buildings and Environmental 
PYM01/2018  10.00  0.00  10.00 Planned Employment Status 

Across the department 
PYMG-CON/2018  15.00  0.00  15.00 Planned Accreditations 

15/09/2017 

 

P
age 227



COMMITTEE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE 28 SEPTEMBER 2017 

TITLE NON-DOMESTIC RATES – DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

PURPOSE OF REPORT TO REQUEST THAT THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE ESTABLISHES A WORKING GROUP TO 
INVESTIGATE AND REVIEW THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON 
ALLOWING DISCRETIONARY RELIEF 

AUTHOR DEWI MORGAN, SENIOR MANAGER REVENUES AND RISK  

ACTION TO CONSIDER AND DECIDE IF A WORKING GROUP SHOULD BE 
ESTABLISHED TO INVESTIGATE THE MATTER BEFORE THE 
CABINET CONSIDERS A NEW FRAMEWORK 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 One of the statutory responsibilities of the Audit and Governance Committee is to make 
reports and recommendations in relation to the authority's financial affairs, in accordance 
with Section 81(1)(b) the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.  The Committee also 
undertakes the scrutiny function on corporate matters. 

1.2 The Council's Policy for the granting of Discretionary Relief to Non-Domestic Rate Payers 
has been established for several years, and has received minor modifications.  It is 
therefore timely for the Council to undertake a comprehensive review of its Discretionary 
Relief Policy, not only to ensure that it remains suitable following legislative changes, but 
also to consider if the relief that the Council currently allows is aimed at the correct places 
and is affordable in view of the continuing need to find savings. 

1.3 The current Policy appears in the Appendix. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 Non-Domestic Rates in their current form were introduced by the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988; this is the principal legislation that continues to set the legal context. 

2.2 Non-Domestic Rates (or Business Rates, or NNDR) are a tax on property.  They are relevant 
to every property (“hereditament”) that is not a domestic property and has not been 
exempt from rating (e.g. agricultural buildings). 

2.3 Although “Business Rates” is a commonly used term, many of the properties that are 
subject to the rates are not “businesses” as such, as they include a variety of buildings such 
as Council buildings, village halls, beach huts and buildings used by charities. 

2.4 There are approximately 7,500 hereditaments within Gwynedd that are subject to Non-
Domestic Rates. 

2.5 Two factors are used to calculate the business rates of any property: 

 the rateable value of the property as determined by the valuation Office Agency (VOA).  
This is a professional assessment of the annual rent a property would fetch at a set 
valuation date. 

 a multiplier set annually by the Welsh Government.  The multiplier is constant for each 
business and for each local authority – this is what is meant with the phrase "Uniform 
Business Rate". 

  
Page 228

Agenda Item 10



2.6 Therefore: 

Non-Domestic Rates Bill = Rateable value x National Multiplier 

2.7 The above is outlined by Section 43 of the 1988 Act; this part of the Act also states that the 
amount payable on the property of a charity that is used for charitable purposes or by a 
Community Amateur Sports Club (CASC) is 20% of the above. 

2.8 That is, for a charity or CASC, 

Non-Domestic Rates Bill = 0.2 x Rateable value x National Multiplier 

2.9 Section 43 also makes provision for Welsh Ministers to allow relief to cohorts of properties, 
such as “small businesses” whose properties have a rateable value less than a set amount. 

2.10 The Council’s role in terms of Non-Domestic Rates is as a tax collector.  The Council, in its 
role as a “billing authority”, collected business rates and pays the sum over to the Wales 
NNDR pool, with the Council then receiving a portion of the total pooled amount from 
Welsh Government.  The National Pool carries the financial burden of every mandatory 
relief that is allowed. 

3. DISCRETIONARY POWERS TO REDUCE NON-DOMESTIC RATES 

3.1 Section 47 of the 1988 Act includes discretionary provision for billing authorities to amend 
non-domestic rates (except in specific cases such as local authority properties) beyond the 
mandatory relief permitted by Section 43.  The Council must consider all applications for 
such relief on its merits, but a policy framework was designed to provide objective guidance 
when considering if discretionary relief is to be allowed where the taxpayer is not a charity 
or CASC, or to increase the relief given to a charity/CASC beyond the mandatory 80%, up to 
100%. 

3.2 There is a financial cost to the authority in using its local discretion to grant such relief.  In 
accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating Contributions (Wales) Regulations 1992, the 
proportion of this cost that is payable by the local taxpayers will vary based on the nature 
of the business that receives the relief: 

Type Maximum 

Relief 

Proportion of 

the cost from 

the National 

Pool 

Proportion of 

the cost from 

the Council 

Additional discretionary relief to a charity 
(above the mandatory 80%) 

Additional 

20% 

25% 75% 

Additional discretionary relief to a CASC 
(above the mandatory 80%) 

Additional 

20% 

90% 10% 

Discretionary relief to an organisation which is 
not for profit, whose main objects are 
charitable or are otherwise philanthropic or 
religious or concerned with education, social 
welfare, science, literature or the fine arts 

100% 90% 10% 

Discretionary relief to an organisation which is 
not for profit, for purposes of recreation 

100% 90% 10% 

  
Page 229



3.4 In addition to the above, the Localism Act 2011 introduced further modifications to the 
1998 Act which now gives the Council legal powers to allow discretionary relief to any 
organisation that does not fall into one of the above categories.  However, in such cases: 

 The Council would have to be able to demonstrate transparently that it is satisfied that 
it would be reasonable for it to do so, having regard to the interests of persons liable to 
pay Council Tax. 

 The Council would have to pay 100% of such a discretionary relief, there would be no 
contribution from the national pool. 

3.5 The Council has not yet allowed any relief using these “Localism” powers. 

3.6 At present, the Discretionary Relief awarded costs Gwynedd Council approximately 
£300,000 per year, with over £280,000 of this total being the cost of providing additional 
relief to charities beyond the mandatory 80%.  In a period where there is a need to discover 
significant financial savings, it is timely for the Authority to consider if every discretionary 
relief allowed is reasonable, if the categories receiving relief should be curtailed, or if 
additional eligible categories should be added. 

4. CONCLUSION 

4.1 It is timely that the Council’s policy for allowing discretionary relief from non-domestic 
rating is reviewed, to: 

 Reflect changes in legislation since the establishment of the current policy 

 Consider if financial savings can be identified, given the on-going financial pressures on 
the Council and on those who pay Council Tax 

 Be able to respond to Gwynedd’s economic situation, and the range of organisations 
that could apply for relief in the future 

 Focus on making the best use of the resources available to support local charities and 
other organisations. 

4.2 Adoption of a new policy will be a matter for the Cabinet.  However, it is believed that the 
Audit and Governance Committee has a role in challenging officers and expressing an 
opinion on the suitability and appropriateness of what will be proposed.  Not only would 
that fall within the statutory role of the Committee to make reports and recommendations 
in relation to the Authority's financial affairs in accordance with the 2011 Measure, but also 
as part of its function of scrutinising corporate matters. 

5. RECOMMENDATION 

5.1 The Audit and Governance Committee is requested to consider establishing a Working 
Group to investigate the Council’s Policy on allowing discretionary relief, and offer guidance 
when designing a new policy. 

 

Page 230



Current Policy  

Non-Domestic Rates - 

Relief for Charitable Status 
 

Category of Relief Mandatory Discretionary 

1 
VILLAGE HALLS / COMMUNITY HALLS / COMMUNITY 
CENTRES 

  

(a) Registered Charities 80% 20% 

(b) Not Registered Charities 0% 100% 

2 YOUTH ORGANISATIONS   

(a) Registered Charities with local connections 80% 20% 

(b)  Not Registered Charities with local connections 0% 50% 

(c) Registered Charities without local connections 80% 0% 

3 ORGANISATIONS SERVING THE ELDERLY   

(a) Registered Charities beneficial to the local people 80% 20% 

(b)  Registered Charities with no local connections. 80% 0% 

(c) Not Registered Charities but beneficial to the local people 0% 50% 

(ch) 
Not Registered Charities with provision for people outside 
the Council's area, but still of a philanthropic nature. 

0% 10% 

4 
NON PROFIT ORGANISATIONS WHOSE AIMS ARE 
PHILANTHROPIC, LITERARY OR DEAL WITH FINE ART 

  

(a) 
Registered Charities that benefit local people and 
membership is open to anyone. 

80% 20% 

(b)  
Registered Charities that benefit local people but 
membership is restricted. 

80% 0% 

(c) 

Not Registered but benefits the local people and 
membership is open to anyone. (Officers to refer cases 
to the Executive where doubt exists regarding their 
objectives). 

0% 100% 

(ch) Registered Charities without local connections 80% 0% 

 

  

Page 231



Current Policy  

Non-Domestic Rates - 

Relief for Charitable Status 

 
 

Category of Relief Mandatory Discretionary 

5 
ORGANISATIONS OF SPECIFIC INTEREST TO SOME e.g. 
WOMENS INSTITUTE 

  

(a) Registered Charities beneficial to the local people 80% 20% 

(b) Not Registered Charities but beneficial to the local people 0% 50% 

6 MUSEUMS   

(a) Registered Charities 80% 20% 

(b) 
Not Registered Charities but non-profit and beneficial to 
local people. 

0% 100% 

7 
OTHER EDUCATIONAL ORGANISATIONS OR DEALING WITH 
CULTURE 

  

(a) 
Registered Charities of benefit to the local people with 
open membership, including Voluntary Aided Schools. 

80% 20% 

(b)  
Registered Charities of benefit to the local people but 
with restricted membership 

80% 0% 

(c) 
Not Registered but exists for the benefit of the local people 
and membership is open 

0% 50% 

8 COLLEGES 80% 0% 

9 CHARITY SHOPS   

(a) Not selling “new stock” or “bought-in goods” 80% 20% 

(b) Selling “new stock” or “bought-in goods” 80% 0% 

10 NATIONAL TRUST PROPERTIES 80% 20% 

 

  

Page 232



Current Policy  

Non-Domestic Rates - 

Relief for Charitable Status 

 

Category of Relief Mandatory Discretionary 

11 
LEISURE PROPERTY MANAGED BY NATIONAL REGISTERED 
CHARITY ORGANISATIONS 

  

(a) Leisure Hostels with no bar (or other trading activity). 80% 20% 

(b) Leisure Centre with a bar (or other trading activity). 80% 0% 

12 R.S.P.C.A / R.S.P.B. PROPERTIES 80% 20% 

13 HOUSING ASSOCIATION (OFFICES) 80% 20% 

14 
AMATEUR SPORTS / LEISURE e.g. RUGBY CLUB, GOLF CLUB, 
etc. 

  

(a) 
With local membership ( >90% resident in Gwynedd or in 
the counties surrounding Gwynedd) but no bar (or other 
trading activity). 

0% 100% 

(b) 

With local membership ( >90% resident in Gwynedd or in 
the counties surrounding Gwynedd) and with a bar (or 
other trading activity), annual profit <£10,000 & 
membership <£25 per head. 

0% 100% 

(c)  
With local membership ( >90% resident in Gwynedd or in 
the counties surrounding Gwynedd) and with a bar (or 
other trading activity). 

0% 100% 

15 
ORGANISATION WHICH IS NOT A REGISTERED CHARITY BUT 
CHARITABLE BY NATURE (Officers to refer all applications to 
the Executive) 

  

(a) Educational 80% 0% 

(b) General, for the benefit of the local community. 80% 0% 

 

Organisations will have a right to appeal if they believe that they deserve more relief than others, 
and the Executive will consider such individual applications. 

Page 233


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 FINAL ACCOUNTS 2016/17
	(a) - Statement of Accounts 2016-17
	(b)(i) - ISA260 Gwynedd Council
	(c)(i) - ISA260 Gwynedd Pension Fund

	6 2017/18 TREASURY MANAGEMENT - MID YEAR REVIEW
	7 REPORT OF THE CONTROLS IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP
	8 INTERNAL AUDIT OUTPUT 1/7/17 - 15/9/17
	9 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18
	10 NON-DOMESTIC RATES - DISCRETIONARY RELIEF
	Appendix


